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Chairman Statement

ERHRSE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of Yuan Heng Gas Holdings Limited (the “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), | would like to present
the audited results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2020
to the shareholders.

During the year, slowing global economic growth and continuous
international trade tensions, the global demand for oil slowed
down and international oil prices remained volatile. The growth
of natural gas industry has also slowed down in China due to the
narrowing of increase in “Coal to Gas”.

At the beginning of 2020, the outbreak of novel coronavirus
disease ("COVID-19") epidemic resulted in a further slowdown in
the global economy. The gross consumption of natural gas in China
climbed down with downward pressure in overall pricing and the
international oil price also plunged.

Under the strains of the COVID-19 pandemic and intensified
competition in the oil and gas market, the Group's business had,
during the year, faced hefty challenges.

During the financial year, the Group recorded gross amounts from
operations (“turnover”) of approximately RMB6,447 million (2019:
approximately RMB8,553 million), representing an decrease of
24.6%. The loss after tax of approximately RMB44 million (2019:
profit of approximately RMB46 million).

During the year, the China government consistently implemented
energy reform policies to intensify the development of the natural
gas market and persists in preventing and controlling pollution with
full force. It is clearly that natural gas will be one of the dominant
energy sources in the energy consumption market. Following with
the development of energy market, China will continue to deepen
the natural gas market reform and implement the green and low-
carbon energy policy, the energy market in which the Group
operates, are expected to have a healthy and sustainable growth.

Seizing opportunities in the continuous progress and further
implementation of natural gas market reform, the Group has
continued to optimize the cost and business structures and to seek
and explore the expansion of its LNG distribution channel through
proposed collaboration with industry player(s) and/or state-owned
enterprises; foster strategic cooperation with global renowned oil
and gas supplier to facilitate the trading business of the Group
and sought to further expand collaboration with quality end users
of nature gas.
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Chairman Statement
FEHE

Looking ahead, the management is mindful of the market
environment and will continue to adopt cautionary steps in and
implementing various strategies to mitigate the adverse impact on
the business arising from challenges as in this market condition.
Moreover, the Group will continues to develop its business in
natural gas sector and to explore new business opportunities in
order to create value for its shareholders.

On behalf of the board, | would like to extend my sincere gratitude
to our shareholders and business partners for their continuing
support. | would also like to express my appreciation to our
management team and all staff for their outstanding contributions
and hard work over the past year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis of the Group Financial Review

AEEZ2EEE R R 2835

BUSINESS REVIEW

Group results

For the year ended 31 March 2020 and at present, the Group has
been principally engaged in (i) trading of oil and gas products and
the provision of related consultancy services; and (ii) processing,
distribution, sales, trading and transportation of LNG and other
auxiliary operations and networks in the PRC.

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group recorded turnover
of approximately RMB6,447 million (2019: approximately RMB8,553
million) with loss after tax of approximately RMB44 million (2019:
profit of approximately RMB46 million). The Group's performance
for the year ended 31 March 2020 was contributed mainly by the
sales of piped gas and production and sales of LNG.

The Group's financial results were adversely affected as compared
to that for the corresponding period in 2019 is mainly due to
stiff competition in the oil and gas market, both locally and
internationally and the slowdown of the economic growth of the
PRC amid outbreak of the COVID-19 during the first quarter of
2020 (as further elaborated under the sections headed “Production
and sales of LNG” and "Oil and gas transactions”).

Production and sales of LNG

During the year, the Group produced approximately 453 million
cubic meters of LNG, representing a decrease of approximately
17 million cubic meters or 3.6% compared with the last year. The
revenue from the sales of LNG business for the year ended 31
March 2020 was approximately RMB1,265 million representing
an increase of approximately RMB25 million or 2% compared
with the last year, contributing approximately 19.6% of the total
turnover of the Group. Gross profit, however, decreased by
approximately RMB119 million to approximately RMB6T million
(2019: approximately RMB180 million), gross profit margin,
decreased from approximately 14.5% to approximately 4.8%.

During the year, the downward movements of average gas prices
together with the fact that fierce competitions on the market had
shown no signs of easing. Moreover, the temporary suspension
of customers’ business operations under the quarantine and
lockdown measures imposed by the governments of the PRC amid
outbreak of the COVID-19 during the first quarter of 2020 which
also resulted in decrease in both revenue and profit margin.
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Management Discussion and Analysis of the Group Financial Review
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Oil and gas transactions

During the year, gross amounts of oil and gas sales contracts
decreased to approximately RMB4,750 million from approximately
RMB6,976 million, representing a decrease of approximately
RMB2,226 million or 31.9% compared with the last year,
contributing approximately 73.7% of the total turnover of the
Group. Gross profit, however, increased to approximately RMB40
million from approximately RMB17 million, gross profit margin
increased from approximately 0.2% to 0.8%.

Given the volatility of the oil prices and the nature of the oil trading
contracts, the management will continue to adopt cautionary steps
while seeking for profitable trading opportunities.

Sales of piped gas

During the year, revenue arising from sales of piped gas increased
to approximately RMB404 million from approximately RMB306
million, representing an increase of approximately RMB98 million
or 32% compared with the last year, contributing approximately
6.3% of the total turnover of the Group. Gross profit, increased to
approximately RMB57 million from approximately RMB21 million,
gross profit margin increased from approximately 7.2% to 14.5%
as a result of the bloom of the white wine markets in the Guizhou
Province which increased the demand and usage of the piped gas.

Prospect

During the year, the Group's business was affected by adverse
market conditions in the oil and gas industry as described in
the previous sections. Along with the PRC government persists
in preventing and controlling pollution with full force, being
resolute in promoting clean production in enterprises, and steadily
implements coal-control objectives in key regions, and as a result
the demand of natural gas will maintain steady growth. The
Group expects that such policies in the natural gas market would
be conducive to the market environment, in which the Group
operates.

The management is mindful of the market environment and
will continue to adopt cautionary steps and implement various
strategies to mitigate the adverse impact on the business arising
from challenges as in this market condition. Looking forward, the
Group will continue to develop its businesses in natural gas sector
and to explore new business opportunities in order to create value
for its shareholders.

EFHRERXARARXS

FRN REABERAARBEEEGHOREE
4 A R #6,976,000,0007T & 2 & 4 A
R #4,750,000,0007% * & FER D HAR
#2,226,000,0007T 5(319% 1 &N % E 4
BEEENTIIT% R EFBHHARE
17,000,0007T # 11 £ £ A K #40,000,000
JT EFERHL0.2% EFE0.8% °

ERNOHERNBROBESANMNE -
EEEREBRMEBEESBEIRAKRS KA
MABNESHKS -

EEXARMHE

FR BEBRATNEEREZHOARE
306,000,0007T & 11 = 49 A R #404,000,000
U R A F N4 A K #98,000,0007T 3K
2% HASKEBEEBEN63I% EFNMAE
# A R #21,000,0007C 1= 9 A R
57,000,0007C © EFIERL72% FHZE14.5%
THREMNEABMEMNELRENTHE
ERAROERMER -

Al R

W ESCRERTEGE - A AREERBZE
AHERARITENTNTRAMEZE - B8
ETREBNAENEHREGGR  BRE
HEXRBREE EERMEBIERK
RIEFIBE - Bt - RARBRBEREFTR
ERE - AEEBHPEBRAARTHHNK
REBAEELLEMENTHREER -

EEETYBITISERE XA % &R
ZEEENRERSHERE  AERBELT
SRR T SBEBERGHROTFZE -
REARK AEEREBEREERAR
BEMER  URRFOEE USEK
RAEEEBE-

TTFRRIER AR AR 2020 F iR

5



Management Discussion and Analysis of the Group Financial Review

AEB2EE BRI H B 55 B B

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Turnover

The Group's turnover for the year ended 31 March 2020 was
approximately RMB6,447 million (2019: approximately RMB8,553
million). The decrease in turnover was mainly attributable to the
decrease in the gross amounts of oil and gas sales contracts of
which reported a turnover of approximately RMB4,750 million
during the year ended 31 March 2020 (2019: approximately
RMB6,976 million).

Gross Profit

Gross profit for the year ended 31 March 2020 was approximately
RMB135 million (2019: approximately RMB226 million). The
decrease in gross profit was primarily due to the global economic
growth worsened by China-US trade war and the COVID-19
outbreak in the first quarter of 2020, thus intensified the
competition in the oil and gas market. However, the decline was
offset by the favorable contribution from the sales of piped gas,
the Group's gross profit margin for the year ended 31 March 2020
slightly decreased from approximately 2.6% (year ended 31 March
2019) to approximately 2.1%.

Other Income

Other income for the year ended 31 March 2020 was
approximately RMB15 million (2019: approximately RMB48 million).
The significantly decrease in other income is mainly due to the
Group has ceased to record the interest income from the deposit
paid for acquisition of an associate as a result of the disposal of
Ju Yuan on 13 March 2019.

Administrative Expenses

The Group’'s administrative expenses for the year ended 31
March 2020 amounted to approximately RMB77 million (2019:
approximately RMB91 million), representing an decrease of
approximately 15.4% as compared to the previous year.

Finance Costs

The Group incurred finance costs of approximately RMB100
million during the year ended 31 March 2020 (2019: approximately
RMB88 million), representing an increase of approximately 14.4%.
The increase was mainly due to the increase in bank and other
borrowings and guaranteed notes during the year.
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Income Tax Expenses

The Group is subjected to taxes in Hong Kong and the PRC due
to its business operations in these jurisdictions. For the year ended
31 March 2020, income tax expenses of the Group approximately
RMB12 million (2019: approximately RMB25 million). The decrease
was mainly due to a decrease in the taxable income.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure
As at 31 March 2020, the Group maintained bank balances and
cash of approximately RMB29 million (2019: approximately RMB68
million).

The net current assets of the Group as at 31 March 2020 were
approximately 636 million (2019: approximately RMB08 million).
The current ratio was approximately 1.22 (2019: approximately
1.33).

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had borrowings of approximately
RMB1,241 million which are due within one year and approximately
RMB37 million which are repayable after one year, and guaranteed
notes of approximately RMB281 million. The gearing ratio, which is
debt-to-equity ratio, of the Group was approximately 1.1 as at 31
March 2020 compared to approximately 0.9 as at 31 March 2019.

Subsequent to the approval for issuance of the consolidated
financial statements, on 22 July 2020, the Group has reached
an agreement with the lender for the retrospective extension of
a borrowing with a carrying amount of RMB36,602,000 as at 31
March 2020. In this regard, both parties agreed and acknowledged
that no event of default has been resulted or deemed to have been
resulted.

Capital Expenditure on Property, Plant and
Equipment

Capital expenditure for purchase of property, plant and equipment
amounted to approximately RMB10 million (2019: approximately
RMB20 million) for the year ended 31 March 2020.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had pledged assets in an
aggregate amount of approximately RMB952 million (2019:
approximately RMB798 million) to banks for banking facilities.
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Capital Commitments
As at 31 March 2020, the Group had no material capital
commitments.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 March 2020, the Group issued financial guarantee to the
banks in respect of bank loans obtained by associates of RMB115
million (2019: RMB135 million), representing the amount that could
be required to be paid if the guarantee was called upon in entirety

by the bank.

Treasury Policy

The Group mainly operates in China with most of the transactions
denominated and settled in RMB and US Dollar. The exposure
of exchange fluctuation in respect of HKD, RMB and US Dollar
could affect the Group's performance and asset value. However,
there are no significant differences of the carrying amount of the
monetary assets and liabilities which are denominated in US Dollar
so the Group has not experienced any material difficulties and
liquidity problems resulting from currency exchange fluctuations.
The Group still monitors the overall currency exposures.

Employee Information

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had about 420 employees (2019:
about 420). The remuneration packages are generally structured
with reference to market conditions and individual qualifications.
Salaries and wages of the Group's employees are normally
reviewed on an annual basis based on performance appraisals and
other relevant factors.
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Corporate Governance Report
TtERERHRSE

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) is committed
to maintain good corporate governance standard and procedures
to ensure the integrity, transparency and quality of disclosure in
order to enhance the shareholders’ value.

The Company has applied the principles and complied with
all the applicable code provisions of the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (“Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) for the year ended 31
March 2020, save for the deviations discussed below. The Board
will continuously review and improve the corporate governance
practices and standards of the Company to ensure that business
activities and decision making processes are regulated in a proper
and prudent manner.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTION

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions (the “Model Code"). Having made
specific enquiry of all directors of the Company, the directors of
the Company have confirmed that they have fully complied with
the required standard as set out in the Model Code throughout
the year ended 31 March 2020.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of this report, the Board is made up of Six Directors,
including three executive Directors, and three independent non-
executive Directors (the "INEDs"”). The Directors are, collective
and individually, aware of their responsibilities to the shareholders.
One of the INEDs possesses appropriate professional accounting
qualifications and financial management expertise. The Directors’
biographical details are set out in the section of “Biographical
Details of Directors” on pages 28 to 31.
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Corporate Governance Report
TtEERRSE

The Board members during the year ended 31 March 2020 and as
at the date up to this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Jianging (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Bao Jun

Mr. Zhou Jian

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. Leung Hoi Ming

Mr. Wong Chi Keung

Mr. Tom Xie

Pursuant to A.1.1 of the Code, the Board should meet regularly
and the Board meeting should be held at least four times a year
at approximately quarterly intervals. During the year ended 31
March 2020, except for the meeting held between the Chairman
and independent non-executive directors, a total of three Board
meetings (including two regular Board meetings) were held due to
the social unrest in Hong Kong and the outbreak of coronavirus
disease 2019. During this period, written resolutions of the
Directors were circulated and passed for approving significant
matters. The Directors were provided with all relevant information
in advance to enable them to make informed decisions. The
Company will consider holding more regular Board meetings in the
coming year if the situation allows to meet code provision A.1.1
of the Code. Moreover, appropriate and sufficient information is
provided to the Board members in a timely manner to keep them
abreast of the Group's latest development and thus assist them in
discharging their duties.

During the year, the Board held four meetings, one of the meetings
was only held between the Chairman and independent non-
executive directors, and the attendance of the directors at the
Board Meetings for the year ended 31 March 2020 is set out as
below:

Name of Directors
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Number of attendance/
Number of Meetings

EEns BRYEHARY
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Wang Jianging TRERE

(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) (EEFITIHAEE) 4/4
Mr. Bao Jun RELE 3/3
Mr. Zhou Jian B k& 3/3
Independent Non-executive Directors BIUFPITES
Dr. Leung Hoi Ming RGAEL 4/4
Mr. Wong Chi Keung "mZBELE 4/4
Mr. Tom Xie M A LA 4/4
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TtEERRSE

Board minutes are recorded in appropriate details and draft
minutes are circulated to all directors and committee members
for comments before being approved by the Board at the next
immediate meeting. All minutes are kept by the Company
Secretary and are open for inspection by the directors.

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Group and oversees the Group's business, strategic decisions and
financial performance. The Board directly, and indirectly through
its committees, leads and provides direction to management
by laying down strategies and overseeing their implementation,
monitors the Group's operational and financial performance, and
ensures that sound internal control and risk management systems
are in place. The Board delegates to the management team the
day-to-day management of the Company’s business including the
preparation of annual and interim reports, and for implementation
of internal control, risk management system, business strategies
and plans developed by the Board.

The Company has received from each of its independent non-
executive directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the
independent non-executive directors to be independent.

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship with each other except those
disclosed in the director biographical details.

RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

According to the Company’s Bye-laws, all directors (including
independent non-executive Directors) are subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at annual general meeting of the
Company, notwithstanding that every Director shall be retired at
least once every three years.

Dr. Leung Hoi Ming was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company for more than nine years
since January 2010. Dr. Leung has not been involved in the
daily management of the Company nor in any relationships or
circumstances which would impair his independent judgment. Dr.
Leung has made an annual confirmation of independence to the
Company pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
has assessed the independence of Dr. Leung and considered he
meets the independence guideline set out in the Listing Rules.
The Company is satisfied that, taking into account, inter alia, the
valuable independent judgement, advice and objective views
contributed by Dr. Leung over his tenure, he is of such character,
integrity and experience commensurate with office of independent
non-executive director and remain independent notwithstanding
his length of service.
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Mr. Wong Chi Keung was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company for more than nine years
since January 2010. Mr. Wong has not been involved in the
daily management of the Company nor in any relationships or
circumstances which would impair his independent judgment. Mr.
Wong has made an annual confirmation of independence to the
Company pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
has assessed the independence of Mr. Wong and considered he
meets the independence guideline set out in the Listing Rules.
The Company is satisfied that, taking into account, inter alia, the
valuable independent judgement, advice and objective views
contributed by Mr. Wong over his tenure, he is of such character,
integrity and experience commensurate with office of independent
non-executive director and remain independent notwithstanding
his length of service.

Mr. Tom Xie was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company for more than nine years since January
2010. Mr. Xie has not been involved in the daily management
of the Company nor in any relationships or circumstances which
would impair his independent judgment. Mr. Xie has made an
annual confirmation of independence to the Company pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company has assessed
the independence of Mr. Xie and considered he meets the
independence guideline set out in the Listing Rules. The Company
is satisfied that, taking into account, inter alia, the valuable
independent judgement, advice and objective views contributed
by Mr. Xie over his tenure, he is of such character, integrity
and experience commensurate with office of independent non-
executive director and remain independent notwithstanding his
length of service.

According to the code provision A.4.3 of the Corporate
Governance Code under Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, if an
independent non-executive director has served more than 9 years,
his further appointment should be subject to a separate resolution
to be approved by the shareholders.

Code Provision A.4.2 of the Code stipulates that all directors
appointed to fill causal vacancy should be subject to election by
shareholders at the first general meeting after their appointment.
On the other hand, paragraph 4(2) of Appendix 3 of the Listing
Rules provides that such directors are to hold office until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company and shall then
be eligible for re-election at that meeting. As mentioned in the
annual report for FY2006, the Board decided to leave the existing
Bye-laws unchanged given the inconsistencies in the Listing Rules.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Wang is the chairman of the Company since 27 January 2011
and was appointed the chief executive officer ("CEQ") of the
Company on 15 September 2011. He is responsible for managing
the Board and the business of the Group.

Under the Code, the roles of chairman and CEO should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual.
The division of responsibilities between the chairman and chief
executive officer should be clearly established and set out in
writing.

The Board considers that Mr. Wang possesses the essential
leadership skills to manage the Board and extensive knowledge in
the business of the Group. The present structure is more suitable
to the Company because it can promote the efficient formulation
and implementation of the Company's strategies. Through the
supervision of the Board and the audit committee, balance of
power and authority can be ensured and there is no imminent need
to change the arrangement.

CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development
of the Group. Every director is fully aware of his responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory
requirements. Directors should participate in appropriate
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant.

During the year under review and up to the date of this Annual
Report, relevant materials including regulatory updates have been
provided to the directors for their reference and study.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees with clearly-
defined written terms of reference. The independent view and
recommendations of the three committees ensure proper control
of the Group and the continual achievement of the high standard
corporate governance practices.

Remuneration Committee

As at the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee (the
"RC") comprises three Independent non-executive directors,
namely, Dr. Leung Hoi Ming, Mr. Wong Chi Keung and Mr. Tom
Xie.
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The duties of the RC as per the terms of reference were as follows:

1.

to formulate remuneration policy for approval by the Board,
which shall take into consideration factors such as salaries
paid by comparable companies, employment conditions, and
responsibilities, and individual performance of the directors
and senior management. Performance shall be measured
against corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board
from time to time; and implement the remuneration policy
laid down by the Board, if any;

to consult the chairman and/or chief executive about their
remuneration proposals for other executive directors. The
remuneration committee should have access to independent
professional advice if necessary;

without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing:

(@)  make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all directors’ and senior
management remuneration and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
policy on such remuneration;

(b)  review and approve the management’s remuneration
with reference to the Board's corporate goals and
objectives;

(c) determine with delegated responsibility the
remuneration packages of individual executive
directors and senior management of the Group,
including benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment;

(d) make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive directors;

(e)  consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment
conditions elsewhere in the Group;

(f)  review and approve compensation payable to executive
directors and senior management for any loss or
termination of office or appointment to ensure that it
is determined in accordance with relevant contractual
terms and otherwise fair and not excessive;
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to review and approve compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of directors for
misconduct to ensure that they are consistent with
contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and
appropriate;

determine the criteria for assessing employee's
performance, which should reflect the Company's
business goals, objectives and targets;

to ensure that no director or any of his associate is
involved in deciding his own remuneration;

engage external professional advisors to assist and/or
advise the Committee on issues if necessary;

do any such things to enable the Committee to
discharge its powers and functions conferred on it by
the Board;

conform to any requirement, direction, and regulation
that may from time to time be prescribed by the Board
or contained in the constitution of the Company or
imposed by legislation;

exercise such other powers, authorities and discretion,
and perform such other duties, of the directors
in relation to the remuneration as the Board may
from time to time delegate to it, have regard to the
Corporate Governance Code of the Listing Rules; and

advise shareholders on how to vote with respect to any
service contracts of directors that require shareholders’
approval under the Listing Rules as amended from time
to time.

The RC has every right to access to professional advice relating to
remuneration proposal if considered necessary. The RC has begun
to review the remuneration policy for the Directors and senior
management.
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The RC has held one meeting during the year ended 31 March
2020 to discuss and approve the Directors’ and management'’s
remuneration for the year. The attendance of the members is as
follows:

Name of Members

HE_Z-_ZF=A=+—BILFE  FM
ZEECRTT—XRed AwhktEES
REBBRAFEZHM KELFERBR
LU

Number of attendance/
Number of Meetings

RElA HERE EEARE
Dr. Leung Hoi Ming RGAEL 1/1
Mr. Wong Chi Keung (Chairman) BB E(EE) 1/
Mr. Tom Xie HEE L E 1/1

Audit Committee

As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee (the "AC")
comprises three Independent non-executive directors, namely, Dr.
Leung Hoi Ming, Mr. Wong Chi Keung and Mr. Tom Xie.

The principal duties of the AC include:

(a)

to be responsible for making recommendations to the board
on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the
external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and terms
of engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of
resignation or dismissal of that auditor;

to review with the group’s management and external auditor,
the adequacy of the group's policies and procedures
regarding internal controls (including financial, operational
and compliance controls), risk management system and any
statement by the directors to be included in the annual
accounts prior to endorsement by the board,;

to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standard. The Committee should
understand the factors considered by the external auditors
in determining their audit scope, and should discuss with
the external auditor the nature and scope of the audit and
reporting obligations before the audit commencement. The
external auditors’ fees is to be negotiated by management,
and presented to the Committee for review and approval
annually;
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to develop and implement policy on engaging an external
auditor to supply non-audit services. For this purpose,
“external auditor” includes any entity that is under common
control, ownership or management with the audit firm
or any entity that a reasonable and informed third party
knowing all relevant information would reasonably conclude
to be part of the audit firm nationally or internationally.
The Committee should report to the Board, identifying and
making recommendations on any matters where action or
improvement is needed;

to review the Company’s financial information and to
monitor the integrity of the Company'’s financial statements
and annual report and accounts, half-year report and, if
prepared for publication, quarterly reports, and to review
significant financial reporting judgements contained in them.
In reviewing these reports before submission to the Board,
the Committee should focus particularly on:

(i) any changes in accounting policies and practices;
(i) major judgmental areas;
(i) significant adjustments resulting from the audit;

(iv) the going concern assumptions and any qualifications;

(v}  compliance with accounting and auditing standards;
and

(vi)  compliance with the Listing Rules and other legal
requirements in relation to financial reporting;

with regard to (e) above:

(i) members of the Committee should liaise with the Board
and senior management, and the Committee must
meet, at least twice a year, with the external auditor;
and

(i)  the Committee should consider any significant or
unusual items that are, or may need to be, reflected
in the reports and accounts, it should give due
consideration to any matters that have been raised by
the Company's staff responsible for the accounting
and financial reporting function, compliance officer or
auditor;
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to review the Company's financial controls, and unless
expressly addressed by a separate board risk committee,
or by the Board itself, to review the Company's risk
management and internal control systems;

to discuss the risk management and internal control systems
with the management to ensure that management has
performed its duty to have effective systems, including the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company's
accounting and financial reporting function;

to consider major investigation findings on risk management
and internal control matters as delegated by the Board or
on its own initiative and management’s response to these
findings;

where an internal audit function exists, to ensure co-
ordination between the internal and external auditors, and
to ensure that the internal audit function is adequately
resourced and has appropriate standing within the Company,
and to review and monitor its effectiveness;

to review the Group's financial and accounting policies and
practices;

to review the external auditor’s management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management about
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control
and management's response;

to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor’s management letter;

to review arrangements by which employees of the
Company may, in confidence, raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or
other matters. The Committee should ensure that proper
arrangements are in place for the fair and independent
investigation of such matters and for appropriate follow-up
action;
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to act as the key representative body for overseeing
the Company’s relation with the external auditor, and to
evaluate the cooperation received by the external auditors,
including their access to all requested records, data and
information; obtain the comments of management regarding
the responsiveness of the external auditors to the Group's
needs; inquire of the external auditors as to whether there
have been any disagreements with management which if not
satisfactorily resolved would result in the issue of a qualified
report on the group’s financial statements;

to obtain from the external auditors annually information
about policies and processes for maintaining independence
and monitoring compliance with relevant requirements,
including provision of non-audit services and requirements
regarding rotation of audit partners and staff;

to discuss with the external auditors any recommendations
arising from the audit (if necessary in the absence of
management);

to meet with the auditor, at least once a year, in the absence
of management to discuss matters relating to its audit fees,
any issue arising from the audit and any other matters the
auditor may wish to raise;

to the engagement of the external auditors to perform non-
audit services is in general prohibited except for tax-related
services. If a compelling reason exists to engage the external
auditors due to their unique expertise in a particular area,
the prior approval of the Committee is required,;

to review and consider the findings of internal investigations
and management’s response into any suspected frauds or
irregularities or failures of internal controls or infringements
of laws, rules and regulations;

to agree with the Board the Company’s policy relating to
the hiring of employees or former employees of the external
auditors and monitor the applications of such policy. The
Committee shall consider whether as a result of such hiring
there has been any impairment of the auditor’'s judgment or
independence in respect of an audit;

to report to the Board on the above matters; and

to consider other topics, as defined by the Board.
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The AC is authorized by the Board to investigate any activity and
seek any information it requires within its term of reference. It
is also authorized to obtain outside legal or other independent
professional advice and to invite the attendance of outsiders with
relevant experience and expertise if it considers this necessary.

Reporting to the Board of Directors of the Company, the AC is
dedicated to review and supervise the Group's financial reporting
process and internal controls. The financial results for the year
ended 31 March 2020 has been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

The AC conducts at least two regular meetings a year in addition
to other meetings that are required for significant and important

issues, and for statutory purposes.

The AC has held two meetings during the year ended 31 March
2020 and the attendance of the members is as follows:

Name of Members

}

ERLZEQREZEREREREREN
HEEMEDLSKEFTEZEMER -
ERZEE N ERERIIRGAERLEAM
BUBXRER RREGRUAZBRLT
BEAEGBAEHERLEEZNFHZIAA
j:tlj}_\_awﬁé °
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Number of attendance/
Number of Meetings

BElE BRYEHRARY
Dr. Leung Hoi Ming RGAEL 2/2
Mr. Wong Chi Keung (Chairman) BB E(EE) 2/2
Mr. Tom Xie ML 2/2
During the year ended 31 March 2020, the AC had reviewed RBZE_T_TF=HA=+— ElJJ:ir =
the Company’s annual report for the year ended 31 March 2020 RZEGREHNARRBE-ZS-_TF=A
and the interim report for the six months ended 30 September =+—HIFEZFREBE_ZT—LFAN

2019. The AC had also reviewed the risk management report on
monitoring of the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group.

Nomination Committee

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee (the “NC")
comprises Mr. Wang Jianging, the chairman and the executive
director of the Company and two Independent non-executive
directors, namely, Dr. Leung Hoi Ming, Mr. Wong Chi Keung.

The duties of the NC as per the terms of reference were as follows:

(@) to review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, qualifications, knowledge and experience) of the
Board at least annually and make recommendations on
any proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company's corporate strategy;
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to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships.
Sufficient biographical details of nominated candidates shall
be provided to the Board and/or shareholders to enable
them to make an informed decision;

to make recommendations to the Board the appointment or
re-appointment of directors of the Company and succession
planning for directors of the Company in particular the
chairman and the chief executive of the Company;

to identify and nominate candidates to fill casual vacancies
of directors for the Board's approval;

to assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors of the Company;

to do any such things to enable the Committee to discharge
its powers and functions conferred on it by the Board; and

to conform to any requirement, direction, and regulation
that may from time to time be prescribed by the Board or
contained in the constitution of the Company or imposed by
legislation.

Nomination Policy
The Board has established a nomination policy, a summary of which
is as follows:

1.

Stipulate the duties of the Nomination Committee, including
nominating suitable director candidates for the Board,;

Determine the selection criteria and procedures for the
appointment and re-appointment of directors;

Accomplishment, experience and reputation in the industry,
independence, the ability to assist and support management
and reputation for integrity are the factors that need to be
considered when appointing directors;

Commit to achieve a diversified composition of the Board in
respect of gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and experience,
and length of service and assess the diversity status of the
Board every year;

Make recommendations on succession planning for directors;
and

From time to time review this nomination policy, as
appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of this policy.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance. The
Company has established a board diversity policy, a summary of
which is as follows:

1. Set out the approach to achieve diversity of the Board of the
Company; and

2. In determining the composition of the Board, the Company
considers the diversity of the Board from a number of
aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments are
based on meritocracy.

Final decisions of appointing directors to be made by the Board
will be based on each candidate’s attributes and contributions to
be made to the Board. The Nomination Committee monitors the
implementation of the Board Diversity Policy, reviews the Board
Diversity Policy as and when appropriate and recommends any
revisions for the Board's approval.
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The NC has held one meeting during the year ended 31 March BHE_T_F ﬁjﬂiJr EHJ:EE* iR
2020 to discuss and review the structure, size and composition of ZEGEHRT—REFZ IR ABRIES
the Board. The attendance of the members is as follows: EHRE ABKKE - }i” o fE 1B R A
N
Number of attendance/
Name of Members Number of Meetings
BE%A HEXRY EERE
Mr. Wang Jianging TRERE 1/1
Dr. Leung Hoi Ming 2GS+ 1/1
Mr. Wong Chi Keung (Chairman) mZBEE(FE) A

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Group and ensure
that the financial statements are in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standard. The Directors
also ensure the timely publication of the financial statements of
the Group.

The Statement of external auditors of the Company, Messrs.
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, about their reporting responsibilities
on the financial statement of the Group is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 45 to 53.
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The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries, they
are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
For the year ended 31 March 2020, fees payable to the auditor of
the Group for audit services was approximately RMB1,700,000.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The main features of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group are to provide a clear governance structure,
policies and procedures, as well as a reporting mechanism to
facilitate the Group to manage it risks across business operations.

The Group has established the risk management organizational
framework, which comprises of the Board, the audit committee
and the risk management group. The Board will assess and
determine the nature and extent of risks acceptable for the Group
in fulfilling its strategic goals, and will ensure the establishment
and maintenance of appropriate and effective risk management
and internal control systems by the Group. The Board will also
supervise the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems by the management.

The Group has also formulated and adopted the enterprise risk
management system, which provides effective policy procedures
to identify, evaluate and manage significant risks. The risk
management group will, at least once in a year, identify risk
exposures that may affect the realization of the Group's business
target, assess and rank the risks through a standard mechanism,
formulate a risk mitigation plan and identify staff held accountable
for the risks, enabling the Group to make rational allocation of
resources to cope with the major risks.

Furthermore, the Group has established internal audit function, so
as to help the Board and the audit committee to constantly monitor
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group,
identify defects in the design and operation of the internal control
and put forward proper remedies. Serious defects identified in the
internal control will be reported to the audit committee and the
Board promptly, and efforts will be made to formulate the remedial
plan and identify the staff to be held accountable. In addition,
timely follow-up will be carried out to ensure improvement of the
situation.
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Risk management report and internal audit report will, at least on
a yearly basis, be submitted to the audit committee for review
before submission to the Board for final approval. The Board
has conducted annual review on the effectiveness of our risk
management and internal control systems, including changes in the
nature and extent of significant risks since the last annual review,
the ability of the Group to respond to changes in its business and
the external environment, the scope and quality of management's
ongoing monitoring of risks and the internal control system,
the work of internal audit function, the extent and frequency of
communication of monitoring results to the Board, significant
control failings or weaknesses that have been identified during
the period and the relevant impacts, as well as the effectiveness
of the Group's processes for financial reporting and Listing Rules
compliance, and determined the effectiveness of the existing risk
management and internal control systems.

The above-mentioned risk management and internal control
systems are designed to manage but not to eliminate the risk of
failing to fulfill the business target. Therefore, these systems can
only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance that there will
not be material misstatement or loss.

PROCEDURES AND INTERNAL CONTROLS FOR
THE HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF
INSIDE INFORMATION

In accordance with the requirements of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance and the Listing Rules, the inside information
should be announced as soon as reasonably practicable after
such information comes to our attention, unless it falls within the
Securities and Futures Ordinance safe harbours. The Group will
ensure the confidentiality of such information before full disclosure
of such information to the public. Where the Group considers
it impossible to maintain confidentiality as required, or the
information may have been divulged, the Group will disclose such
information to the public in no time. However, the Group will make
sure that the information contained in the announcement is not
false or misleading as to a material fact, or is false or misleading
due to the omission of a material fact, enabling the public to obtain
inside information in an equal, timely and effective manner.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Pursuant to F.1.2 of the Code, the appointment of the company
secretary should be dealt with by a physical board meeting rather
than a written resolution. The appointment of the current company
secretary was dealt with by a written resolution in September 2013.
The Board considers that, prior to the execution of the written
resolution to appoint the current company secretary, all Directors
were individually consulted on the matter without any dissenting
opinion and there was no need to approve the matter by a physical
board meeting instead of a written resolution.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

To enhance transparency and effectively communicate with
shareholders and investors, the board and the Company maintain
an on-going dialogue with shareholders mainly through the
Company's financial reports, annual general meeting and other
general meetings.

The Company also maintains a website at http://www.yuanhenggas.com
as one of communication channel for the shareholders and
investors. For any enquiries, the shareholders, the investors, media
or the public may contact the Company directly, contact details
of which are posted on the Company’s website.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Company held an

annual general meeting. The attendance of the directors at the
meeting was as follows:

Name of Directors
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Number of attendance/
Number of Meetings

EEnE HERE S@KRY
Mr. Wang Jianging FREEE 1/1
Mr. Bao Jun RELAE 0/1
Mr. Zhou Jian Skt 11
Independent Non-executive Directors BIAKBITES

Dr. Leung Hoi Ming RGAE L 1/1
Mr. Wong Chi Keung | E 171
Mr. Tom Xie ML 11
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Group has developed a dividend policy in the interest of
shareholders. The Company does not have any pre-determined
dividend payout ratio. In considering the dividend payout,
the Board will make decisions with reference to the Group's
performance and financial position, results of operation and level
of cash; statutory and regulatory restrictions; future prospects
and any other factors that the Board may consider relevant. The
Board has the discretion to declare and distribute dividends to the
shareholders of the Company to the extent that the Company shall
maintain adequate cash reserve for meeting its working capital
requirements and future growth.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
During the year ended 31 March 2020, there had been no
significant change in the Company’s constitutional documents.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Procedures for convening a special general meeting
by shareholders

Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at
all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
Secretary of the Company, to require a special general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition, and such meeting shall be held within
two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition. If within
twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting the requisitionists themselves may do so
in accordance with the provisions of Section 74(3) of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981.
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Putting forward proposals at general meetings

Pursuant to Sections 79 and 80 of the Bermuda Companies Act
1981, either any number of shareholders representing not less than
one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all the shareholders
having at the date of the requisition a right to vote at the meeting
to which the requisition relates; or not less than one hundred (100)
shareholders may make requisition in writing to the Company:

(a) to give to shareholders of the company entitled to receive
notice of the next annual general meeting notice of any
resolution which may properly be moved and is intended to
be moved at that meeting;

(b)  to circulate to members entitled to have notice of any general
meeting sent to them any statement of not more than one
thousand (1,000) words with respect to the matter referred to
in any proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with
at that meeting.

Putting forward enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquires to the board of the Company,
shareholders may send written enquires to the Company by post or
delivery to the principal place of business of the Company in Hong
Kong at Room 4102, 41/F., Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt
Road, Hong Kong.
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EXZEEER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wang Jianqing

Mr. Wang, aged 51, has extensive experience and business
network in the energy and trading industry. Mr. Wang obtained
his Bachelor's degree in Industrial Management Engineering
from Zhenjiang Shipbuilding College (now known as the Jiangsu
University of Science and Technology).

Mr. Wang was the chairman and executive director of FU JI Food
and Catering Services Holdings Limited (now known as Fresh
Express Delivery Holdings Group Co., Ltd.) (stock Code: 1175)
(retired on 24 September 2014). He is also the general manager of
Guangzhou Circle Energy Company Ltd.

Mr. Wang is a cousin of Mr. Bao Jun, an executive director of the
Company.

Mr. Bao Jun

Mr. Bao, aged 52, has over 20 years of experience in project
investment, construction and operation management. He obtained
his bachelor degree in Engineering from Jiangnan University
(formerly known as Wuxi Polytechnic University) in 1989. Mr. Bao
joined Guangdong Light Industry Design Institute as an engineer
from 1989 to 2000 and was responsible for the research and
development of the manufacturing technique of various biological-
engineering and chemical engineering projects such as the design
and management of amino acids production plant and brewery.

Mr. Bao is a cousin of Mr. Wang Jianging, the Chairman and an
executive director of the Company.

Mr. Zhou Jian

Mr. Zhou, age 47, holds a Master’s degree in Economics from the
Central University of Finance and Economics, the People’s Republic
of China.

Mr. Zhou was responsible for the global fuel oil trading during his
service in China National United Qil Corporation as well as the fuel
oil spot and future markets managing of its branches in Asia and
America. He was also a senior manager of Titan Petrochemicals
Group Limited (stock code: 1192), a company listed on the Stock
Exchange, in the oil storage and distribution divisions. Mr. Zhou
has over 10 years of extensive working experience in energy field
with broad business network, and is familiar with global energy
environment and market.

He was also an independent non-executive director for Tack Fiori
International Group Limited (now known as Life Healthcare Group
Limited) (Stock Code: 928) (resigned on 5 June 2019), the company
is listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Dr. Leung Hoi Ming

Dr. Leung Hoi Ming, aged 52, has extensive knowledge and
experience in risk management of financial instruments, treasury
business and financial derivative products. He has served DBS
Bank for eight years and was Senior Vice President in the Treasury
and Markets Division upon his departure from the bank on 22 May
2009. Dr. Leung started his career in the finance industry in 1996
with Citibank as quantitative analyst in the Equity Derivatives Asia
Department. He had served a few other financial institutes before
joining DBS Bank Ltd as a financial product specialist as well and
had held various roles in business development, trading and risk
management.

Dr. Leung, a native Hong Kong citizen with Chinese nationality,
holds a Bachelor (First Class Honours) degree of Science (1990)
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong, a Master degree of
Science in Mathematics (1993) and a Doctor degree of Philosophy
in Mathematics (1996) from the California Institute of Technology,
and a Master degree of Science in Investment Management (1999)
from the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology.

He also has been in the position of independent non-executive
director for FU JI Food and Catering Services Holdings Limited
(now known as Fresh Express Delivery Holdings Group Co., Ltd)
(stock code: 1175) since 8 July 2013.

Mr. Wong Chi Keung

Mr. Wong, aged 65, holds a Master's degree in Business
Administration from the University of Adelaide in Australia. He
is a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and CPA Australia; an associate member of The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and The Chartered
Institute of Management Accountants. Mr. Wong is also a
Responsible Officer for asset management and advising on
securities for CASDAQ International Capital Market (HK) Company
Limited, under the Securities and Futures Ordinance of Hong
Kong.
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Mr. Wong was as an executive director, the deputy general
manager, group financial controller and company secretary of
Yuexiu Property Company Limited (formerly known as Guangzhou
Investment Company Limited) (stock code: 123), a company
listed on the Stock Exchange, for over ten years. He is currently
an independent non-executive director of Asia Orient Holdings
Limited (stock code: 214), Asia Standard International Group
Limited (stock code: 129), Century City International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 355), China Ting Group Holdings Limited
(stock code: 3398), Changyou Alliance Group Limited (formerly
known as Fortunet e-Commerce Group Limited) (stock code: 1039),
Golden Eagle Retail Group Limited (stock code: 3308), Paliburg
Holdings Limited (stock code: 617), Regal Hotels International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 78) and Zhuguang Holdings Group
Company Limited (Stock Code: 1176), all of these companies are
listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Wong is also an independent non-executive director of TPV
Technology Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange with stock code: 903 and subsequently withdrawn
from listing from 4:00 p.m. on 14 November 2019).

Mr. Wong has over 40 years of experience in finance, accounting
and management. Mr. Wong was an independent non-executive
director of Heng Xin China Holdings Limited (stock code:
8046), and subsequently delisted on 2 July 2019 (resigned on
19 September 2017) and China Shanshui Cement Group Limited
(stock code: 691) from 2 February 2016 to 23 May 2018, all of these
companies are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Wong was also an independent non-executive director
of Nickel Resources International Holdings Company Limited
(formerly known as China Nickel Resources Holdings Company
Limited) (a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange with stock code: 2889 and subsequently withdrawn from
listing from 9:00 a.m. on 14 February 2020) from 2 May 2005 to 21
February 2020.

Mr. Wong was also a Responsible Officer for Greater China
Capital Limited (resigned on 16 April 2016), responsible for asset
management, advising on securities and advising on corporate
finance, under the Securities and Futures Ordinance of Hong Kong.
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Mr. Tom Xie

Mr. Xie, aged 69, has years of management experience with a Hong
Kong listed company.

Mr. Xie obtained a Master of Science degree and a Master's
Graduation Certificate in Gemology, both from China University of

Geosciences (Beijing) in 2012.

Mr. Xie is currently a non-executive director of China Investment
Development Limited (stock code: 204) from 20 September 2019,
the company is listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

Mr. Xie was appointed as independent non-executive director
of U-Right International Holdings Limited (now known as Fullsun
International Holdings Group Co., Limited) (stock code: 627) from
29 August 2013 to 1 December 2017, the company is listed on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Mr. Xie is also the Permanent Honorary Chairman of the
Confederacy of Hong Kong Shanwei Clansmen Limited.
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The directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries and associate are set out
in note 53 and note 21 respectively to the consolidated financial
statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year, a discussion
on the Group's future business development and an analysis
of the Group's performance during the year using key financial
performance indicators are provided in the “Chairman Statement”
on pages 2 to 3 and the “Management Discussion and Analysis
of the Group Financial Review” on pages 4 to 8 of this Annual
Report.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The capital risk management and financial risk management
objectives and policies of the Group are shown in notes 46 and
47 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 170 to 187
of this Annual Report.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations
During the year ended 31 March 2020, as far as the Company is
aware, there was no material breach of or non-compliance with
applicable laws and regulations by the Group that has a significant
impact on the business and operations of the Group.

Environmental protection

The Group understands that its business has an impact on
the environment and recognises the importance of sound
environmental management practices and sustainable business
operations. It is committed to comply with the relevant
environmental standards and policies related to its business
operations as set by the government in People's Republic of China
("PRC") and Hong Kong.

For more details regarding the Company’s environmental policies
and practices, please refer to the "Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” which will be published within three months
after the publication of this Annual report on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Relationships with employees, customers and
suppliers

The Group recognises that employees, customers and suppliers
and business associates are key stakeholders to the Group's
It strives to achieve corporate sustainability through
engaging its employees, providing quality products and services

success.

to its customers, collaborating with business partners (including
suppliers and contractors) to deliver quality products and services
and supporting our community.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Company
prepared in accordance with Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules
will be published within three months after the publication of this
Annual report on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2020 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 54 to 55.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company’s authorised, issued and fully paid
share capital are set out in note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE OF THE COMPANY

There is no reserve available for distribution to shareholders as at
31 March 2020.

EQUITY LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Company
during the year or subsisted at end of the year.
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DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date

of this report were:

Executive directors:
Mr. Wang Jianging

Mr. Bao Jun

Mr. Zhou Jian

Independent non-executive directors:
Dr. Leung Hoi Ming

Mr. Wong Chi Keung

Mr. Tom Xie

In accordance with Article (87) of the Company’s Bye-laws, one
third of directors for the time being shall retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

None of the directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The Company has received from each of its independent non-
executive directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
securities (the “Listing Rules”) and considers all the independent
non-executive directors to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2020, the directors and chief executive of the
Company had the following interests and short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQO")) (a) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO; or (b)
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers).

EERTETBRAENRKRMG - H
AR REEEZEZR XS

RZZBEZZEF=-A=+—H FRAITES
M EZTEABRARR R B EE
(EEBALBEKRN(TESRBEERG D
EXVEFTIE T2 RE) 2 IRM - BERMD R
BEREETR HEHQABALHENRIEESL
Ef@wu%352{%2%%@5@52&51%2
BmEAE H(b)ARE LT Ai%
L‘ﬁ{é%/x%zﬂﬁ SFRISITAE AR
MRz Em RRBIAT o

Number of Shares held

Fi ¥ i 4 8B
Capacity/ Long Short Percentage of
Name of Directors Nature of interest position position total holding
FHRAY
Esgs B4 EmtE Be KB Bt
(Note 2)
(F$5E2)
Wang Jianging Interest in controlled 3,765,123,824 — 57.52%
corporation (Note 1)
FRE REEEERE (D
Bao Jun Beneficial interest 45,000,000 — 0.69%
RE EnEn
Zhou Jian Beneficial interest 10,000,000 — 0.15%
B 2 EnEn
Notes: fft 2% -
1. Mr. Wang Jianging was deemed interested in, and duplicated, the 1. TRBEAERBE RN BEERAFTNEE R 2

3,128,619,473 shares which Champion Ever Limited was interested, the
586,486,402 shares which Galaxy King Limited was interested, and the
50,017,949 shares which Champion Golden Limited was interested. Champion
Golden Limited is held as to 50% by Mr. Wang Jianging. Both Champion Ever
Limited and Galaxy King Limited are wholly owned by Mr. Wang Jianging.

2. The percentage holding is calculated on the issued share capital of the
Company as at 31 March 2020, i.e. 6,545,621,131 shares of the Company.

3,128,619,473 % f& {5 * Galaxy King Limited # &
T 5 2. 586,486,402f% & 1 & Champion Golden
Limited % & # &5 2 50,017.9490% & {7 h # B &
# iz o Champion Golden LimiteddH £ & /&%
EFFBES0% e o WIEAR R A AF KGalaxy King
Limited 9R TR BELEELEEAR ©

2. BREDHIRBEAARNR_ZE_EF=A=1+
—BZ B ETRA(BIARRA6,545,621,131% &
MTEBH -
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, none of the
directors and chief executives of the Company had any interests
and short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) (a) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO; or (b)
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

As at 31 March 2020, none of the directors of the Company had
any interests in respect of options to subscribe for the shares of
the Company under the Company’s share option scheme approved
and adopted on 23 August 2002.

ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than as disclosed under the heading "Directors’ rights to
acquire shares”, none of the directors, their spouses or children
under the age of 18 had any right to subscribe for shares of
the Company, or had exercised any such right during the vyear,
and at no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the directors
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Other than as set out in note 49 to the consolidated financial
statements and as disclosed under the heading “Related party
transactions and other disclosures”, no transactions, arrangement
or contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Significant related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year are disclosed in note 49 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
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During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries had conducted RAFE  RRAFIREAMBRRGETAT
the following transactions which constituted continuing connected e WERXHIRE TR BE4AEEK
transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing RAR 2 BEBERS -

Rules.

1. On 22 August 2017, BMT=MRBBRAF (Guangzhou 1. ZE—+tFNAZF+=ZH BMNrt=F
Yuanheng Gas Co., Limited*) (“Yuanheng Gas”), a wholly- MBEBRAF(TFME] - —ERE
owned foreign enterprise established under the laws of MEDERRY 2 EBERE IR
the PRC and an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of AAFlsHEZEMBARMRMAE
the Company, entered into a renewed supply agreement MAR(EE)EREERAATE MK
("Renewed GG Supply Agreement”) with Guizhou Gas ) HIWB AT R EBE AL (5
(Group) Co., Ltd* (E MR (£ E) R & ERF]) ("Guizhou (BN R SR MR RAR A
Gas") for supply of LNG to Guizhou Gas, its subsidiaries EMRRTI—HHEBEHERBRE(E
and its associates (collectively "GG Group”) for a term of 3 BEMMRAEEGZE]  RB=F
years up to 31 March 2020. Guizhou Gas holds 50% interests BERE_Z_TF=F=+—HI &
in EMZEZgRIEBRZAT (Guizhou Huaheng Energy MRRFBEEMEZTRREEFRD
Investments Co., Ltd*) (“Huaheng Energy”), a company Al ([EZFgR] —BERBHBEER
established under the laws of the PRC and indirectly non- KR 2 AR /RARAT 2HEFEEE
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company where the Company MEAR  MARAHEREERT
indirectly holds the remaining 50% interests in it. Therefore, 50% 2 # 5 ) 50% o Eitk - J IR
Guizhou Gas is a connected person of the Company. REART Z@BEANLT -

On 25 January 2019, the Directors by resolution revised the RZE-NF-—HA-_+hB FF=Z
annual cap in respect of the transactions contemplated under AREBRASKBGRECETER
the Renewed GG Supply Agreement by increasing some of R BERBEESINMRAERER
the annual caps for the then forthcoming periods. Certain EBETRGIFELR - EHENM
annual caps for the then forthcoming periods under the MARBERETERERBEE & T
Renewed GG Supply Agreement had to be revised owing FEERAEER  BERBIERAR
to the increase in the market unit prices for LNG since the MMSEEBFEEE NN AMHIE
signing of the Renewed GG Supply Agreement. For details of WEREAM LA - BRAFE LR 2E
revision of the annual caps, please refer to the announcement AAHE Bm2HARRRMR T —
of the Company dated 25 January 2019. NE—AZ+HRBZASE -
The table below sets out the aggregate of the annual cap or THREBINEBEES MM AR ERZE 2F
the revised annual cap (as the case may be) for the Renewed B ERIKLEITFELRARBRM
GG Supply Agreement: TE) MR
Annual cap
EELR
RMB
AR%
From 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018 R-ZE—+FWHA—-HBZE
—E-\F=ZA=+—H 160,000,000
From 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019 RZZE-N\FHA—BZE
—E-NhEF=A=+—H 280,000,000
From 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020 RZE-NFNA-—HBZE
—E-EF=ZA=+—H 300,000,000
The total sale of natural gas products to members of BE_Z-NAFOA-BE_ZT_FF
the GG Group from 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020 was ZA=+—8 mEMRREEHK
RMB264,298,000. BRAIHERAREMMNBIHERER
A R #264,298,0007T °
*  For identification purpose only * EHET
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2. On 22 August 2017, Yuanheng Gas entered into a renewed 2. RZIZE—+tFENRAZ+ZH T=R

purchase agreement (“Renewed GG Purchase Agreement”) RAMAEBEKERAEEMNRDEER
with Guizhou Gas for purchase of natural gas products KRERREE RARER(BIERILX
(including both LNG and natural gas) by members of the ARRRAR)BEMRRETZ— 0
Group from members of the GG Group for a term of 3 years EREBEGR(EEENRIBER
up to 31 March 2020. #) > RH=F EE-T-TF=A
=t—HLk-
On 25 January 2019, the Directors by resolution revised the RZZE-hF—-—R-+HB EFZ
annual cap in respect of the transactions contemplated under AEBARAERBEDECFE L
the Renewed GG Purchase Agreement by increasing the R EIRBEEEEMNMRABEE HE
annual caps for the then forthcoming periods. Certain annual RETRGZFERE LR - EEE MM
caps for the then forthcoming periods under the Renewed REERETERBRBAMCETE
GG Purchase Agreement had to be revised owing to the EERAEIER BRAARE D
increase in the market unit prices for natural gas products MiZEEEHTEEEMNRABER
since the signing of the Renewed GG Purchase Agreement. BEEFLEHA - BEFE LR 28F]
For details of revision of the annual caps, please refer to the FIE B2HEARRBEHARE TN
announcement of the Company dated 25 January 2019. F-—AZ+HRHZAE -
The table below sets out the aggregate of the annual cap or TEREINEBEENRABEHZR 2F
the revised annual cap (as the case may be) for the Renewed ELERMEIETFE LRGEIB AT
GG Purchase Agreement: TE)RRRR
Annual cap
EELER
RMB
AR
From 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018 RZE-—tFMONA—BZE
—E-N\F=ZA=+—H 170,000,000
From 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019 RZE-N\FOA—-—BZE
“E-hF=ZA=+—H 280,000,000
From 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020 RZE-NFNA-—HBZE
—E-ETF=A=+—H 364,000,000
The total purchase of natural gas products from members RZE-NFOA-—BEZZT=ZTF
of the GG Group from 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020 was ZA=+—HREMNRREEKER
RMB318,537,000. ABBEZRAARAREMBERARE
318,537,0007T °
The independent non-executive directors have reviewed and BYFHTEFCEHNLRARLEH
confirmed that the above continued connected transactions FeElsiz i BHAERS

have been entered into by the Group:

() in the ordinary and usual course of its business; (i) TR—REBEBEXEBBIET:
(i)  on normal commercial terms or better; and (i) DE—REEEREIEEERK
RIS R
(i) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing (i) DRBHEEXZWHHEET MR
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the SERBRATRE  UHEAR
interests of the Company and the shareholders of the AINRERR BB -

Company as a whole.

38 Yuan Heng Gas Holdings Limited 2020 Annual Report



Directors’ Report
EEEHRESE

The Company's auditor was engaged to report on the
Group's continuing connected transactions set out above
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor's Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified
letter containing the following findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed
by the Group in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules:

(i)  the transactions have received the approval of the
Board of Directors of the Company;

(i) the transactions were in all material respects in
accordance with the pricing policies of the Group if the
transactions involve provision of good or services by
the Group;

(i)  the transactions have been entered into in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing the
transactions; and

(iv) the transactions have not exceeded the cap disclosed
in the announcement of the Company dated 25
January 2019.

There are no other connected transactions which are
required to be disclosed in this report in accordance with
the requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
Company confirms that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements prescribed in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
with respect to continuing connected transactions entered
into by the Company and the Group during the year ended
31 March 2020.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
AND OTHER PERSONS

FERREREMALTZRHGRHE
B i HE 2R T ik B 4 5B

As at 31 March 2020, so far as is known to the Directors, the
following shareholders (other than the Directors or chief executives
of the Company whose interests and short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company are disclosed
in the section headed "Directors’ and chief executives’ interests
and short positions in shares, underlying shares and debentures”
above) had interests in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register to be kept by the Company

under section 336 of the SFO:

R-Z-ZF=ZA=1+—H8 BEEHH
BARBREBEZE S LR ERIIEIGFE
ZERMARE  TIBRRMNEXES
REZBITBABREND  HEKRDIKER
2 m R R AR BERARRK
- HERODEEEETEAEED XA
MEFRARATETRABRINRAR
AR D R A BE R D h B et

Number of Shares held

FRisi% i 8B
Capacity/ Long Short Percentage of
Name of Shareholders Nature of interest position position total holding
FIRABE
BREEHE S kg BE 7 B
(Note 7)
(B 5£7)
Champion Ever Limited Beneficial interest (Note 1) 3,128,619,473 — 47.80%
wBEAERAF EmEm(aED
Galaxy King Limited Beneficial interest (Note 2) 586,486,402 — 8.96%
Galaxy King Limited B i w (M EE2)
Cheng Xu Family interest (Note 3) 3,765,123,824 — 57.52%
[EXCS R & = (Y 3%3)
China Construction Security interest (Note 4) 1,500,000,000 — 22.92%
Bank Corporation
FEZEFZBITROERAR HEER (T4
Central Huijin Investment Ltd Security interest (Note 4) 1,500,000,000 — 2292%
FRIESIKEEREMT AR HIPEE (M4
Fundfleet Investment Limited Beneficial interest (Note 5) 503,703,704 — 7.70%
Partnership
Fundfleet Investment Limited & %5 # 7 (M 5£5)
Partnership
New Sunshine Global Limited Interest in controlled 503,703,704 — 7.70%

(as Limited Partner)
New Sunshine Global Limited
(ERBREZAN)

corporation (Note 5)
2% F B R s (B 5ES)
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Name of Shareholders

BREERE EE

Capacity/
Nature of interest

Sty HRME

Number of Shares held
Fis iR 9 B H
Long Short
position position

¥e wRE

Percentage of
total holding
iR B
BSH

(Note 7)

(B &E7)

Zhou Guofeng
Zhou Guofeng

Wealth Bloom Investment

Limited (as General Partner)

FAERERRRA
(ER—REBAN)

SFUND International
Investment Fund
Management Limited

ENMESEBERERE
EEEEBRAA

FEMEIRKXE KRR E
A EEARAQA
FEIMNERKERERE
A BEARAQT

BEME R ERAIFRE
ERBRAF

EMRREREFHRE
ZRERAE

EMEXREESERE
B R AT

EMNEXREESER
BERRA

EMTHRTRERRESRHE
BRAA

EMNmHTERRESE
BRAA

Dazhong Capital (Hong Kong)

Limited
AREREB)BRAA

Yang Yiqging

B—5

Interest in controlled
corporation (Note 5)
A A E R (M EES)

Interest in controlled
corporation (Note 5)
¥k 5 B R a (MY FES)

Interest in controlled
corporation (Note 5)

¥R A B a5 (Y 5ES)

Interest in controlled
corporation (Note 5)
SVE A B R (M FES)

Interest in controlled
corporation (Note 5)
¥k 5 B R a (MY FES)

Interest in controlled
corporation (Note 5)
X A B R 2 (BT 5E5)

Interest in controlled
corporation (Note 5)
7 E B R s (B 5ES)

Security interest (Note 6)
I 19 4 2= (FfT 526)

Interest in controlled
corporation (Note 6)
VA E R (M EEe)

503,703,704 —

503,703,704 —

503,703,704 —

503,703,704 —

503,703,704 —

503,703,704 —

503,703,704 —

375,000,000 —

375,000,000 —

7.70%

7.70%

7.70%

7.70%

7.70%

7.70%

7.70%

5.73%

5.73%
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Notes:

Save

Champion Ever Limited is wholly owned by Mr. Wang Jianging.
Galaxy King Limited is wholly owned by Mr. Wang Jianging.

Ms. Cheng is the spouse of Mr. Wang Jianging and is deemed interested in,
and duplicated, the interests Mr. Wang is interested in.

Based on the disclosure of interests forms filed, CCB International Overseas
Limited is wholly owned by CCB International (Holdings) Limited, which in turn
is wholly owned by CCB Financial Holdings Limited, which in turn is wholly
owned by CCB International Group Holdings Limited, which in turn is wholly
owned by China Construction Bank Corporation, which in turn is held as to
57.11% by Central Huijin Investment Ltd. All above interests duplicate each
other.

Based on the disclosure of interests forms filed, Fundfleet Investment Limited
Partnership is held as to 55% by New Sunshine Global Limited (as Limited
Partner) and 0% by Wealth Bloom Investment Limited (as General Partner).
New Sunshine Global Limited (as Limited Partner) is wholly owned by Zhou
Guofeng. Wealth Bloom Investment Limited (as General Partner) is wholly
owned by SFUND International Investment Fund Management Limited, which
in turn is wholly owned by E/MNERRERKREKRERSERBR AT, which in
turn is wholly owned by BN € @ AI ¥R 2R B R R A, which in turn
is wholly owned by E/NE ¥k EHE £ BB R A A, which in turn is wholly
owned by BN MM T 2RI EEEFRAQF. All above interests duplicate
each other.

Based on the disclosure of interest forms filed, Dazhong Capital (Hong Kong)
Limited is wholly owned by Yang Yiging. All above interests duplicate each
other.

The percentage holding is calculated on the issued share capital of the
Company as at 31 March 2020, i.e. 6,545,621,131 shares of the Company.

as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, no person had

registered an interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company that was required to be recorded pursuant
to Section 336 of the SFO.
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1. BEERAFBIZBELAELEHES -
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4. RECRENEAEWRER  ZREBBIER
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5. RIEEIE 20 ZEFER © Fundfleet Investment
Limited Partnership 1 New Sunshine Global
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Under Bye-law 166(1) of the Company’s bye-laws, the directors
shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and
profits of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them shall or
may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred
in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or supposed
duty, in their respective offices, provided that this indemnity shall
not extend to any matter in respect of any willful negligence, willful
default, fraud or dishonesty which may attached to any of them.
Such permitted indemnity provision is currently in force and was
in force throughout the financial year.

The Company has purchased the directors’ liability insurance to
provide protection against claims arising from the lawful discharge
of duties by the Directors.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of sales and purchases for the year attributable

FRE - HENBEOEXAT LHE
35

F 0 ARRRACAMBARLEBE -
R BB AR A A LT

Ft &F B 18 1% 3

RIBEARRR ZRARI4HAE166(1) & » EER]
WMARF ZEE R MNESHREE  gLHEK
HEMALEKATERSKBREENTES
ZRBRIELEMNT A BEX 2B
EEFTHERB BB EMUEELFR
BFH KA BR - BXK - BEERHAEX
AEBRERLEZEMEE  HIHBET
BRRE &= EAT ] A £ AT BE 4 78 LA 2 AT Al 8K
BERA - HEEY HFFITHEERE - B
B8 70 B BE (B G SR B A A 0 A B E B R AR
E—EBM -

ARFCKRBEEEERR  RESKEE
BoARTARELANBEETRHRE

TERFRRMER
AEETEEF R F RS

to the Group’s major customers and suppliers are as follows: MEREE BT :
Sales SHE#H %
— The largest customer —BAREFP 17
— Five largest customers aggregated — hREP&F 50
Purchases R %
— The largest suppliers — R AHER 20
— Five largest suppliers aggregated — ERHEREAE 63

None of the directors, their associate or any shareholders (which
to the knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of the
Company's share capital) had an interest in the Group's five largest
suppliers or customers during the year.

BEFE REZBEAINESHAAES
ARBBEAS% A £ Z E IR - REAR
BEASEOIAHERAXREFTHEAEM

e

2% o
& fm
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

COMPLIANCE WITH CODE FOR SECURITIES

TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of
conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions (the "Code”).
Having made specific enquiry of all directors of the Company,
the directors of the Company have complied with the required
standard as set out in the Code throughout the year ended 31
March 2020.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the
Company's issued shares as required under the Listing Rules
throughout the year ended 31 March 2020.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to
re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board
WANG JIANQING
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 30 June 2020
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BABRBAHRES

Deloitte.

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF YUAN HENG GAS HOLDINGS
LIMITED

T RRERBER QA

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Yuan
Heng Gas Holdings Limited (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the "Group”) set out on pages 54 to 194,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 March 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 March 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

=2
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T RREBRERRDE
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RITDEZEHNESAE EFH1948 2 w2 MR
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Key audit matter
FAREZEIR

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

FTHERNAEEMAREXER

Impairment of goodwill

2 i E

We identified the impairment of goodwill as a key audit
matter due to significant judgement and estimation
involved in the preparation of the discounted cash flows
used in the impairment assessment.
AIREBREZRNS—EHEREZETE  RAZRE
WMEEMARRAESRER P RE XA REF -

The Group has goodwill arising from acquisition of
subsidiaries in previous years with carrying amount of
approximately RMB34,070,000 as at 31 March 2020.
The management is required to test for impairment of
goodwill at least annually by comparing the recoverable
amount and the carrying amount of the cash-generating
unit to which such goodwill has been allocated as set out
in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.
R-ZZ_ZEF=ZA=+—H BEABEFEREBHBLIFM
EEN BERBERENHRARME3L070,0007T - HAERE
MEHmRNTONE ERERELBFETHERE
AR FERBENEEHRBEZREELAEMMAI M
TRERBEEETHLR -
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Our procedures in relation to the impairment of
goodwill included:

ATERBEREZEFBRRE:

U Understanding the relevant key controls over the
assessment of impairment of goodwill;

THRARBERENGENHEEERIES .

U Obtaining the discounted cash flow analysis of
the relevant cash-generating unit prepared by
the management and checking its mathematical
accuracy;
ERERERUNERECELBUMNBERSE
MEBDT W R E H BB EREM

. Engaging our internal valuation experts to assess
the appropriateness of the discount rate used;

ZEAFAEEERFHEAAMRINEE K

o Evaluating the reasonableness of the key
assumptions adopted in the discounted cash
flow analysis, including growth rates, estimated
average purchase price of natural gas and
average selling price of liquefied natural gas with
reference to the historical sales volume, revenue,
cost of sales, operating expenses and future
strategic plans of the Group;
HEMRBESREINMTARAARBRERNSIE
1t BEL2E SEEAAEHE  WH HE
PR BRI MR RREE S SRS HAIEREK
AARGATFHBEBRBRERARFIERE:
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Key audit matter
FAREZEIR

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

FTHERNAEEMAREXER

Impairment of goodwill

2 i E

In determining the recoverable amount, the Group's
management assessed the value in use of the cash-
generating unit by discounting the estimated future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit to
the present value. Significant judgment and assumptions
were required in the process such as the use of discount

rates, growth rates, estimated average purchase price of e

natural gas and average selling price of liquefied natural
gas during the forecast period as set out in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RETIREHEEK X BEEENEEENGRSEL
BUNEREE HTZEABRSELBEVRRELNM
AARBEREBUBREHRE - HWES M RKRM T4

B OZBEFTEERERHE LEBER  EBEANHR
ZHERE CHEEER . RARGHEHBEEERRERAR

T -

Based on management’s assessment, no impairment loss

on goodwill is necessary during the year ended 31 March

2020.

@fmﬁﬁm%ﬁ BE_ZTZ_ZTF=-—A=+—HILFE
BARBEELRERSE -

Testing data inputs in the discounted cash

flow analysis, on a sample basis, against source

documents;

%%ﬁﬁ%m%ﬁﬁ@ﬁ%%ﬁk@%ﬁﬁi#
HELTHIRER L T

Evaluating the historical accuracy of the
discounted cash flow analysis made by
management by comparing the historical analysis
made against the actual performance of the
Group; and

BRALEAEBEDNE SEERRKA -
13%@i@ﬁﬁﬁf’ﬁﬂﬁiﬁfﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁE’\Ji@gﬁﬁﬁ2
4

Assessing whether the disclosures of impairment
testing in the consolidated financial statements
are sufficient and appropriate.

HEGEEMBREABENRENARS TR ME

Al

=' o

==
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Key audit matter
FAREZEIR

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

FTHERNAEEMAREXER

Impairment of trade receivables

B 5 & W AR =R {E

We identified the impairment of trade receivables as
a key audit matter due to the significance of the trade
receivables to the consolidated financial statements
and significant judgment and estimates involved by the
management in the impairment assessment process.
AITHESRWEFTRERNS - RHEREREE R
ARE7RUERESEVBRERNERZE  MAEAEM
BfEBREPTRAEEEHEHERHE R -

As disclosed in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group estimates the loss allowance for
trade receivables using expected credit loss (“ECL")
model in accordance with HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments.
Under the model, the Group recognises lifetime ECL
individually for debtors with significant balances or that
are credit impaired and/or collectively for the remaining
debtors based on their past due status. The management
takes into consideration, inter alia, the historical default
rates, past due status, general economic conditions and
an assessment of both the current conditions at the
report date as well as the forward-looking information
specific to the debtors.

WG E B mEAMAINE BEBERERSBEUE
HEENFRIEHITAIGRAEHEEBBR(ERE
EEBEDEXNGFESERNEFNEERE BEZRE
X BEEREBERERIEERENEBAES
BREHBEHEEEBR U EKREBARE RS
MAKEERAZMBHNEEEE - BEEZE(EREE)
BEEROE  BHBRL BRELERAREREBEN
ERMANMEBEEAFENREEERBNTME -

The Group had trade receivables with carrying amount
of approximately RMB2,375,275,000 (net of the allowance
for credit losses of approximately RMB23,568,000 as at
31 March 2020.

RZEBEZZTF=HA=+—H ' EBEEHNZEFHEREZE
EE X R ARY2375275000T (BEMKREEBERELD
A R ¥23,568,0007T) °
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Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment
of trade receivables included:

ATEREZRUEFRBENGZEFERE:

U Understanding the key controls on how the loss
allowance for trade receivables is estimated by
the management;
TREEBNEFESERERRNEERENH
o8 BT

o Understanding how the aging analysis of trade
receivables is prepared by the management;

THREEENWREHEESEERRKE DT

o Testing the accuracy of the aging analysis of the
trade receivables to the sale invoices, on a sample
basis;
REHEZEZMEANAESEERRAOKRE DT
B YE R

o Evaluating the management’s basis and

judgement in determining credit loss allowance
on trade receivables as at 31 March 2020,
including their identification of trade receivables
with significant balances or that are credit
impaired, the reasonableness of management’s
grouping of the remaining trade debtors into
different categories in the provision matrix;
TEEREETN-_ZT=-ZF=-A=1+—HESH
RUREREEERBEBRNELERHE - BEE
MERBEAICEERENESERKER 81
BRI REERR D BEEEREDHTREER D
B
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

FAREZEIR FTHERNAEEMAREXER

Impairment of trade receivables

B 5 FE W AR =R E

o Evaluating the basis of estimated loss rates

applied in each debtor with significant balances
or that are credit impaired (with reference to the
external credit rating, historical default rates, past
due status, current conditions at the report date
and forward-looking information);
FTE AR E K5 B R E /) & 18 FE W AR FR P JE
AR EEENEERZBINTEETR B
FEHNE @RI RWEAHNERIRR R
ATEMEE R

o Evaluating the reasonableness and
appropriateness of historical default rates, past
due status, current conditions at the report
date as well as the forward-looking information
specific to the debtors used in determining
estimated loss rates applied in each category
in the provision matrix in calculation of the loss
allowance; and
TEEEBEREAERBEERDZENMKA
HABEXAEANBEROX BAHBER ©
BEBHMNERNMARMEBATEANREEER
MeaBEREERE: &

o Assessing whether the disclosures regarding
the impairment assessment of trade receivables
in the consolidated financial statements are
sufficient and appropriate.

AR A M HRER A E F WK ERFORE R b &
REEHESRRRERE -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

J Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYBHENBRES

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Stephen C. L. Yuen.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

30 June 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

FERmREMEZEBARR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE_Z_ZF=A=+—HILEFE

2020 2019
i k- 33 —ET-NEF
NOTES RMB’'000 RMB’'000
B 3 AREBTR AR T T
Gross amounts from operations KEHEBHRE 5 6,447,235 8,552,947
Gross amounts of oil and gas sales AMRRAR
contracts HE AR 4,750,093 6,975,615
Gross amounts of oil and gas purchase AHEERAR
contracts BEANRE (4,710,395) (6,958,307)
Other revenue H i Y 21 5 1,697,142 1,577,332
Cost of sales and services SHE X R A (1,602,305) (1,368,711)
Gross profit £ F 134,535 225,929
Other income H iy e A 6 14,942 47,865
Other gains and losses H b Uz & S 18 7 44,571 (255)
Impairment losses under expected credit FEBEIEEEBEEEX TH
loss model, net of reversal REEIE - Nk EE 8 (20,172) (3,430)
Distribution and selling expenses DiHREERX (9,288) (9,538)
Administrative expenses TR S (76,538) (90,874)
Share of results of associates JEIHEEE AR XA (20,595) (10,753)
Finance costs B & K AR 9 (100,294) (87,667)
(Loss) profit before tax B B AT (B548) )% A (32,839) 71,277
Income tax expense B8 X 10 (11,584) (25,176)
(Loss) profit for the year FR(EE) R 1 (44,423) 46,101
Other comprehensive (expense) income Hm2m(FE) KA
Items that will not be reclassified HiE#HTeEHHLE
subsequently to profit or loss: BEmAER -
Fair value loss on investment in equity R A FEFAHM
instrument at fair value through other 2EWAHBRATA
comprehensive income RENRFEER — (26,880)
Deferred tax related to item that will not be HA A2 &#H HHEIER
reclassified BRI — 6,721
— (20,165)
Items that may be reclassified subsequently H &2t & & #7177 48
to profit or loss: EEmAER -
Exchange differences arising on translation E & & N5
of foreign operations MEE ZIE X =5 320 (43)
Other comprehensive income (expense) for & A E fth 2w U A
the year (AX) 320 (20,208)
Total comprehensive (expense) income for FRZ2m (FX)
the year WA 4% (44,103) 25,893
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
GelEERHEMEEEARSR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE_Z_ZF=A=+—HILEFE

2020 2019
—g-%F "T-N&
NOTE RMB’000 RMB’000

B AR®TR AR®ET T

(Loss) profit for the year attributable to: IATALEEFR

(BB &M :
Owners of the Company ZA/NEIE? F SN (53,681) 28,357
Non-controlling interests FEE R 9,258 17,744
(44,423) 46,101
Total comprehensive (expense) income IKTATEEZE
attributable to: (R W A 4% :
Owners of the Company ZA/NEIE? Z SN (53,361) 8,149
Non-controlling interests FEE R 9,258 17,744
(44,103) 25,893
(Loss) earnings per share (RMB cents) BR(EE) AT
(AR#E ) 15
— Basic — AR (0.82) 0.43
— Diluted — ¥ (0.82) 0.43
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B AR RR

At 31 March 2020
RZE-_ZEF=A=+—H

2020 2019
ol =Jl- < 3 —E-NF
NOTES RMB’'000 RMB’000
B 5 ARBFT AREETF T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M- WERRB 16 662,038 713,854
Right-of-use assets EREEE 17 39,666 —
Prepaid lease payments BT & 18 — 37,253
Gooduwill EES 19 34,070 34,070
Intangible asset ELEE 20 6,987 7,380
Interests in associates REEE N R 2 RS 21 112,324 132,919
Derivative financial instrument PTEemMIT A 21 2,500 3,150
Long-term receivable K HpE W s 22 —_ 5,088
Deposit paid for acquisition B — M EE = QR
of an associate YT ZRE 23 — —
Deferred tax assets RIETIEE E 24 664 1,124
Equity instrument at fair value through BRAFEFAEM
other comprehensive income PEHBAZERATA 25 — —
858,249 934,838
CURRENT ASSETS mENEE
Inventories FE 26 19,606 18,422
Trade and other receivables H 5 & Hth FE U BR X 27 2,970,610 3,195,279
Contract assets BHMEE 28 3,446 3,970
Prepaid lease payments Fa {78 & 5% 18 = 1,479
Amounts due from associates JFE L Bk 2 N &) BRI 29 380 983
Amount due from a non-controlling equity [EW—HEBAR—H&IE
owner of a subsidiary P2 A% ME S A A TR 30 1,204 1,204
Amount due from a related party EWR—BBEEAL
A 31 — 1,866
Financial assets at fair value through profit & A F{EFTAB =AY
or loss TRMEE 32 7,744 7,500
Pledged bank deposits EEARITFER 33 557,000 368,189
Bank balances and cash SR AT 45 o M 3R < 33 29,381 67,654
3,589,371 3,666,546
CURRENT LIABILITIES BB R
Trade payables and other liabilities B REMER R
HihgE 34 1,207,593 1,566,101
Contract liabilities BHEE 35 105,867 36,947
Amount due to an associate FE A — FE Bt & A /) BOIE 36 28,947 37,057
Tax payable JE 15 B IR 86,535 80,598
Bank and other borrowings due R —F AR B RITR
within one year HihEE 37 1,241,004 1,037,611
Lease liabilities HEAE 38 1,750 —
Guaranteed notes EREER 39 281,302 —
2,952,998 2,758,314
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFH 636,373 908,232
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BEERRBER
CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,494,622 1,843,070
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

xS B85 K R 3 R

At 31 March 2020
RZE_ZTEF=A=+—H

2020 2019
—E-EHF — &
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
BT 5 ARETT ARETT
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BAERGEE
Share capital g A< 40 551,378 551,378
Reserves &t 1 747,378 800,739
Equity attributable to owners RABIER ARG ER
of the Company 1,298,756 1,352,117
Non-controlling interests JEFE AR HE = 143,799 134,541
TOTAL EQUITY ESEE 1,442,555 1,486,658
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ';'Eiﬁibﬁ%
Deferred tax liabilities L%RIEETE 24 14,274 13,737
Bank and other borrowings due —FRIANEITR
after one year ﬁ%ﬁf&“% 37 37,000 77,678
Lease liabilities HEAE 38 793 —
Guaranteed notes ERERE 39 — 264,997
52,067 356,412
1,494,622 1,843,070

The consolidated financial statements on pages 54 to 194 were FSAEZFIMNEZHRAMBBRERENE
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on —EFRNA=THEESS I A RKET
30 June 2020 and are signed on its behalf by: Z -ATIESERRES:

Wang Jianqing Bao Jun
FEF RE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EF EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
RO SEHEE

For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE_Z_ZF=A=+—HILEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

LV PN
Retained
Statutory Investment profits Non-
Share Share Other surplus  Designated revaluation Translation (accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve  safety fund reserve reserve losses)  Sub-total interests Total
RE@EH

B+ RGEE  AbEE eRRHEE ZER2ES RAERHE  REEE  (RHER) Mt HERER @it

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AREFTT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETT AREFR AR%ET:R
(note a) (note b) (note ¢

(Hi3ta) (i) (Hf3Ec)

At 1 April 2018 RZT-N\&
mA-A 549,014 4452014 (3,775,606) 31,967 34,545 14,014 (7,890) 28,652 1,326,710 116,797 1,443,507
Profit for the year FREH = = = = = = - 28,357 28,357 17,744 46,101
Other comprehensive EREMZERR
expense for the year - — - — — (20,165) (43) — (20,208) — (20,208)
Total comprehensive FR2E(RX)
(expense) income LON
for the year — — — — — (20,165) 43) 28,357 8,149 17,744 25,893
Transfer upon disposal HE-RHHBAR
of a subsidiary rEE = = = = = 6,151 - (6,151) - - -
Ordinary shares issued BREILER 2,364 14,894 — — — — — — 17,258 — 17,258
Transfer to statutory BRZERE
surplus reserve RHHE = = = 11951 = = = (11,951) = = =
Transfer to designated BRZER
safety fund Z2HES = = = = 7,547 = — (7,547) - — -
At 31 March 2019 RZZ-NEF
=A=t-AH 551,378 4,466,908  (3,775,606) 43,918 42,092 = (7,933) 31,360 1,352,117 134,541 1,486,658
(Loss) profit for the year FR(ER)EN - = = = = = = (53,681) (53,681) 9,258 (44,423)
Other comprehensive EREBZERA
income for the year - - - - - - 320 - 320 - 320
Total comprehensive income  ER2EMA
(expense) for the year (Ax) 2% = = - - - - 320 (53,681) (53,361) 9,258 (44,103)
Transfer to statutory BREEE
surplus reserve RBEE - - - 4,967 - - - (4,967) - - -
Utilisation of designated RRER
safety fund Z2EE = = = = (870) - - 870 - - -
At 31 March 2020 W-E-ZF
=A=t-A 551,378 4,466,908  (3,775,6006) 48,885 41,222 = (7,613) (26,418) 1,298,756 143,799 1,442,555
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
BAESSHERE

For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE_Z_ZF=A=+—HILEFE

Notes:

Other reserve of the Group mainly represents (i) the financial impact of
adopting merger accounting for the acquisition of Union Honor Limited
("UHL") and its subsidiaries; and (i) a debit arising from the deemed
distribution to shareholder which represents the cash consideration of the
acquisition of UHL of Hong Kong dollars (“HKD") 70,000,000 (equivalent to
Renminbi ("RMB") 55,595,000) paid to the vendor during the year ended 31
March 2014.

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations of the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC") and the Articles of Association of certain subsidiaries of
the Company, they are required to provide for PRC statutory reserves, by way
of appropriations from their respective statutory net profit (based on their
PRC statutory financial statements) but before dividend distributions. They
are required to transfer 10% of the profit after tax to the statutory reserves.
The appropriation to the statutory surplus reserve may cease if the balance
of the statutory surplus reserve has reached 50% of the registered capital of
the relevant companies. The statutory surplus reserve can be used to make
up prior year losses, if any, and can be applied in conversion into capital
by means of a capitalisation issue. However, when converting the statutory
surplus reserve into capital, the remaining balance of such reserve must not
be less than 25% of the registered capital of the relevant companies.

Pursuant to the relevant PRC regulation, certain subsidiaries are required
to transfer a certain percentage based on a progressive rate on revenue
generated from manufacturing and transportation of gas or other dangerous
chemicals into a designated fund. The fund will be used for installation and
repair and maintenance of safety facilities. The movement during the year
represents the difference between the amounts provided based on the
relevant PRC regulation and the amount utilised during the year.

M5

AEBEBZHBHEEZZHEORKEBEAERA
AI(HEDREMNBARMEMNEHEEZ
MBEEE RNBEREARRZDIREL 2E
BEREBEE-_ZT-NF=ZA=+—ALEFEK
BERFE SN TEF 2R &K E70,000,000/%
T THHERARE ([ ARE]) 55,595,000
TT) °

RIBFREARKAME (HE ] BEEREOER A
RAARETHEBRARIZ BHERRMAE - B
ABRBBREREZEAMNEEFEN (REREMN
REDAE B8R AT H) B S 2K AT 2 BDA
ERBEREE - REABBRBE R N10%
BEZATRHE EEATERFRHHRECEM
B 1 B i B AN #950% B 7] {2 1E 1) 0% TE & A
1 BN o A TE BB R A TR 50 TR A DA BT A R U
BAE)  UAARBEAMEBTZ O AEARES
Wi o AT BEREAERBBEEEIR/ES
RARFEHETFONEERRZMERZ25% °

REBEATEER BETHEARNAKRER
BRARARIEMERECERELENRE RS
BE-FEAHLBREEEES - ZEEHAR
RERBZLREREENEE - FREHIER
BHEBTEAARBECCVREAFACHAESE
ZERE .
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
. 3= E3
GEHERE
For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE_ZT_TF=HA=+—HILFE
2020 2019
—g-%8% —hiF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBFT
Operating activities HEXR
(Loss) profit before tax B AT (B 1) /& A (32,839) 71,277
Adjustments for: MTINEEMELRE:
Depreciation of property, plant ME BEREKEZ
and equipment e 61,039 60,081
Amortisation of intangible asset BVEEH#H 393 393
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEERE 3,770 —
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments A E R 2 #iE — 1,479
Gain on settlement of consideration A RE 2 WS
payable — (437)
Exchange difference M 5 =58 (45,683) 21,404
Loss (gain) on fair value change of PTEemIAERYE
derivative financial instrument )z EE ) 650 (3,150)
Finance costs Bh & K AR 100,294 87,667
Interest income B8 W A (12,825) (46,868)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HeE—FBHEATZ
& — (8,049)
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, W g e ]*)%);z
plant and equipment T (R EBE (22) 1
Gain on fair value changes of N ] n—|—)\}5 s>
financial assets at fair value through SHBEATE
profit or loss gE) v s (244) —
Share of results of associates FEHE S NR vz X6 20,595 10,753
Impairment losses recognised, Eﬁgwﬂﬁgﬂg ,
net of reversal 0 8 @
— property, plant and equipment — ¥ HERRE 739 —
— trade and other receivables — BN EihE R 15,084 3,430
— long-term receivable — EHiEIBE = 5,088 —
Operating cash flows before movements ﬁg/\“@]mjz
in working capital ,Zg%géiﬁ S 116,039 197,981
(Increase) decrease in inventories 5 GEm R (1,184) 3,384
Decrease (increase) in contract assets EHEBER D EM 524 (3,970)
Decrease (increase) in trade and other Z 2% H it pE Uk BE 2R
receivables (3% 4n) 50,476 (1,194,607)
Decrease in amounts due from associates  JiE L B 4% ) 7] 2k 18 5 4 603 —
Decrease in amount due from W — 2 AR E A+
a related party KRIE D 1,866 —
(Decrease) increase in trade payables ZoENZER
and other liabilities H At & & Ol ) 3 hn (473,616) 226,113
Increase in contract liabilities S BERN 68,920 11,665
Decrease in amount due to an associate J‘Eﬁ—ﬁ'ﬁ RN
B Q= (8,110) (1,448)
Cash used in operations KT FEIR S (244,482) (760,882)
Income tax paid BT E (4,650) (6,427)
Net cash used in operating activities 4RAs 2R BT L I & H KR (249,132) (767,309)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FERERE

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BHE_ T TF=-A=1+—HILFE

2020 2019
—BC¥E —NEF
NOTES RMB’'000 RMB’000
k=3 ARBTR ARBFT
Investing activities BREEE
Interest received B Uk B 7,072 4,027
Dividend received 2R E 97,213 —
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEWE - BMELEZEZ
and equipment Ffr 13 5K 18 465 63
Advance payment from a counterparty in  RE¥FHBEEHED
relation to a forward contract 28 5RIE 21 2,500 —
Net cash inflow on disposal of a subsidiary & — W};’ AEZ
BEMAFR Zy = 168,823
Settlement of consideration receivable HEREBARE 252,800 =
Advance to an associate e Al E RN — (380)
Settlement of consideration payable for AN E - E AR 2
acquisition of an associate ERRE — (3395)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEE¥ % - B E KL E (10,536) (20,014)
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BEERATEFAERZ
through profit or loss TEEE — (7,500)
Repayment of long term receivable 188 K& B e W 5K IR — 62,965
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits RENEHE R T 7(_/#\ 900,093 1,097,691
Placement of pledged bank deposits GEABEETFRITHER (1,088,904) (1,169,964)
Net cash from investing activities RETYHMEREL FE 160,703 135,376
Financing activities MEEH
Interest paid EXRPURS) (99,749) (77,063)
Repayments of bank and other borrowings EE 1T R EhEE (1,259,628) (843,627)
New bank and other borrowings raised EERHERTR
HipE & 1,414,360 1,324,295
Issue of guaranteed notes BITERRRE — 245,902
Redemption of guaranteed notes EBOEREE (2,655) —
Repayments of lease liabilities BEEEARE (2,161) —
Net cash from financing activities MEEBFAGECREFE 50,167 649,507
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash & RRWELLHEIERZ
equivalents (iR ) 8% 8 (38,262) 17,574
Cash and cash equivalents RENZHRER
at the beginning of the year H&%EIEH 67,654 50,073
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EZRE &) > 52 (11) 7
Cash and cash equivalents at the end WERXRZHER
of the year IR&%EIER 29,381 67,654
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B B 8% 3R SR B 5
For the year ended 31 March 2020
RE-_T-TFE=A=1—ALFE

= =

GENERAL

Yuan Heng Gas Holdings Limited (the "Company”, together
with its subsidiaries, collectively referred to as the "Group”)
is a public limited company incorporated in Bermuda and
its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. The addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
corporate information section in the annual report.

The immediate holding company and ultimate holding
company of the Company was Champion Ever Limited
("Champion Ever”), which is a limited liability company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and wholly-owned
by Mr. Wang Jianging (“Mr. Wang”), the chairman and a
director of the company.

The Group is principally engaged in trading of oil and gas
contracts, production and sale of liquefied natural gas
("LNG"), sales of vehicle gas at refuelling station, sales of
piped gas, LNG transportation and construction of gas
pipeline infrastructure.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in RMB
which is also the presentation and functional currency of the
Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR GE

o =1

For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE_T-_TE-A=1-—AILEE

+= = —=

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

("HKFRSs")

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments
to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants ("HKICPA") for the first time in the current
year.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income
Tax Treatments

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with

Negative Compensation

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment
or Settlement

Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint
Ventures

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRSs

Except as described below, the application of the new
and amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

FER ] RAEETEEME
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B ISR R M EE

W A

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-T-TFEZA=t+ - ALEE

= =

64 Yuan

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

("HKFRSs"”) (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 for the first time in the
current year. HKFRS 16 superseded HKAS 17 Leases (“HKAS
17"), and the related interpretations.

Definition of a lease

The Group has elected the practical expedient to apply
HKFRS 16 to contracts that were previously identified as
leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease and not apply this
standard to contracts that were not previously identified as
containing a lease. Therefore, the Group has not reassessed
contracts which already existed prior to the date of initial
application.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after 1
April 2019, the Group applies the definition of a lease in
accordance with the requirements set out in HKFRS 16 in
assessing whether a contract contains a lease.

As a lessee
The Group has applied HKFRS 16 retrospectively with the
cumulative effect recognised at the date of initial application,
1 April 2019.

As at 1 April 2019, the Group recognised additional lease
liabilities and right-of-use assets at amounts equal to the
related lease liabilities adjusted by prepaid lease payments
by applying HKFRS 16.C8(b)(ii) transition. Any difference at
the date of initial application is recognised in the opening
retained profits and comparative information has not been
restated.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE_Z_ZF=A=+—HILEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

("HKFRSs") (Continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

When applying the modified retrospective approach under
HKFRS 16 at transition, the Group applied the following
practical expedients to leases previously classified as
operating leases under HKAS 17, on lease-by-lease basis, to
the extent relevant to the respective lease contracts:

i. relied on the assessment of whether leases are onerous
by applying HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets as an alternative of impairment
review;

ii.  elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for leases with lease term ends within 12
months of the date of initial application;

iii.  excluded initial direct costs from measuring the right-
of-use assets at the date of initial application; and

iv.  applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases
with a similar remaining terms for similar class of
underlying assets in similar economic environment.
Specifically, discount rate for certain leases of
properties in the PRC and Hong Kong was determined
on a portfolio basis.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE_Z_ZF=A=+—HILEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

("HKFRSs") (Continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

When recognising the lease liabilities for leases previously
classified as operating leases, the Group has applied
incremental borrowing rates of the relevant group entities
at the date of initial application. The weighted average
incremental borrowing rates applied by the relevant group
entities is 4.75%.

FER ] RAEETEEME
BEEN(EEMBREE
8 (&)

BEEMBRERAE165RHEE
(48)

E R & A ()
RENDBACERENAERAA
BREN AEEERERERAH
FEFIAARASE B T 48 0 B AE RRRU K o
AEEEEEMERZ NETHEE
& SRR % R4.75% -

66 Yuan

At 1 April
2019
R-ZF—h%F
mA—H
RMB’000
ARETT
Operating lease commitments disclosed RZE-—NWF=ZR=+—HHEHD
as at 31 March 2019 e E AR 5,156
Lease liabilities discounted at relevant REAEEERNEXMENHEHERE
incremental borrowing rates 4,879
Less: Recognition exemption W FER R
— short-term leases — e (108)
Practical expedient A{THEH A
— leases with lease term ending within — BB ERERBH
12 months from the date of initial R R2EARGERNEE
application (282)
Lease liabilities relating to operating leases P FE & B I 1% s R 1657 1%
recognised upon application of HKFRS 16 BREKLLHEFHENEERRE 4,489
Lease liabilities as at 1 April 2019 RZZE-—hFNA—HBNHEEERE 4,489
Analysed as: DHTLT
Current i 2,156
Non-current SE & 2,333
4,489
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR GE

For the year ended 31 March 2020

BHE

2.

“E-FEZA=t-ALEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2.
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

("HKFRSs") (Continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)
The carrying amount of right-of-use assets for own use as at
1 April 2019 comprises the following:

FER ] RAEETEEME
BEEN(EEMBREE
8 (&)

EEMBRERE16SRHEE

(48)

EREEAE)
RIEBRAZERBREER-_T—NF
MA—RZEHEERRETII&HA:

Right-of-use

assets
EREEE
Note RMB’000
Bt 5 AR T T
Right-of-use assets relating to operating 1A & B & 8 B 7% 3k &5 % A
leases recognised upon application of Bl EERNELEHE
HKFRS 16 RRANERERE 4,489
Reclassified from prepaid lease payments BENHEREH » 18 (a) 38,732
43,221
By class: BER
Leasehold lands HE L 38,732
Leased properties HEWMZE 4,489
43,221
Notes: B
(@) Upfront payments for leasehold lands in the PRC for own used (@) —NE=A=1+—8 " BEERAY
properties were classified as prepaid lease payments as at 31 March ¥IHEBEETHOENREBER SRR
2019. Upon application of HKFRS 16, the current and non-current SERNREN - Y R 3 s
portion of prepaid lease payments amounting to RMB1,479,000 and %16%& FEREERNTERIETE
RMB37,253,000 respectively were reclassified to right-of-use assets. £ 5 Bl & A R ¥1,479,0007T & A R
37,253,0007555%& YHEEGRRAEEE -
(b) Before the application of HKFRS 16, the Group considered refundable (b) RIEREBPBRELNE 165 - K&
rental deposits paid as rights and obligations under leases to which ERENATREAERSESNEME
HKAS 17 applied under other receivables. Based on the definition WERRIE T JE A & 8 & &t R E1755 &9
of lease payments under HKFRS 16, such deposits are not payments HEBRTHRENREMLE - REFEUH
relating to the right to use of the underlying assets and were adjusted WMEEAFIGRE THERENESR * &
to reflect the discounting effect at transition. The discounting effect %Tﬁﬁiﬁ#éﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁ HEERMNBREN
has no material impact on the consolidated statement of the financial jﬁéf‘ﬁﬁﬁ%&%&ﬁ%i@ifﬁﬂ%mﬂﬁ
position at 1 April 2019. EEE/ cBHRTEBH_T-NFMNA—
HOGEHBRABRRIBEALE -
TFRREZEBRABRAF 2020 F5#
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
BHE_ T TF=-A=1+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

("HKFRSs") (Continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

The following adjustments were made to the amounts
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at 1 April 2019. Line items that were not affected by

the changes have not been included.

FER ] RAEETEEME
BEEN(EEMBREE

8 (&)

EEMBRERE16SRHEE

(48)
EREEAE)

R-B—NEMA—BYEAHBR
REENERNEBIELATHE -
TREREEDYENES -

Carrying
Carrying amounts amounts
previously under
reported at HKFRS 16 at
Note 31 March 2019  Adjustments 1 April 2019
R-ZB—h %
BER=-F—NME WA—BRBES
=A=+-—H MBHEER
M 5E ERMREE HE $E165 IR E (B
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000
ARBT T AR T T AR T T
Non-current Assets ERENEE
Right-of-use assets FREEE = 43,221 43,221
Prepaid lease payments ERNEER (a) 37,253 (37,253) —
Current Assets REBEE
Prepaid lease payments B HER (@) 1,479 (1,479) =
Current Liabilities RENEE
Lease liabilities HEAE = 2,156 2,156
Non-current Liabilities EREBERE
Lease liabilities HEAR — 2,333 2,333
Note: For the purpose of reporting cash flows from operating activities Me: MEBEE_Z_TF=ZA=+—HILFE

under indirect method for the year ended 31 March 2020, movements

in working capital have been computed based on opening
consolidated statement of financial position as at 1 April 2019 as

disclosed above.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE_Z_ZF=A=+—HILEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2.
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

("HKFRSs") (Continued)
New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but

not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet effective:

HKFRS 17

Amendment to HKFRS 16
Amendments to HKFRS 3
Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 16
Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRSs

Insurance Contracts'

Covid-19-Related Rent Concession®

Definition of a Business?

Reference to the Conceptual Framework®

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint

Venture?
Definition of Material*

Property, Plant and Equipment —
Proceeds before Intended Use®

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling
a Contract®
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform*

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020°

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

2 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for which

the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual
period beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

determined.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

("HKFRSs"”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

In addition to the above new and amendments to HKFRSs,
a revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
was issued in 2018. lts consequential amendments, the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework
in HKFRS Standards, will be effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

Expect as mentioned below, the directors of the Company
anticipate the application of all other new and amendments
to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the Group's
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8
Definition of Material

The amendments provide refinements to the definition of
material by including additional guidance and explanations in
making materiality judgments. In particular, the amendments:

o include the concept of “obscuring” material information
in which the effect is similar to omitting or misstating
the information;

o replace threshold for materiality influencing users from
“could influence” to “could reasonably be expected to
influence”; and

o include the use of the phrase “primary users” rather
than simply referring to “users” which was considered
too broad when deciding what information to disclose
in the financial statements.

The amendments also align the definition across all HKFRSs
and will be mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual
period beginning on 1 April 2020. The application of the
amendments is not expected to have significant impact on
the financial position and performance of the Group but may
affect the presentation and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

("HKFRSs"”) (Continued)

Amendments to References to the Conceptual
Framework in HKFRS Standards

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018
(the “New Framework"):

o reintroduces the terms stewardship and prudence;

o introduces a new asset definition that focuses on rights
and a new liability definition that is likely to be broader
than the definition it replaces, but does not change the
distinction between a liability and an equity instrument;

o discusses historical cost and current value measures,
and provides additional guidance on how to select a
measurement basis for a particular asset or liability;

o states that the primary measure of financial
performance is profit or loss, and that only in
exceptional circumstances other comprehensive
income will be used and only for income or expenses
that arise from a change in the current value of an asset
or liability; and

o discusses uncertainty, derecognition, unit of
account, the reporting entity and combined financial
statements.

Consequential amendments have been made so that
references in certain HKFRSs have been updated to the
New Framework, whilst some HKFRSs are still referred to
the previous versions of the framework. These amendments
are effective for the Group's annual period beginning on 1
April 2020. Other than specific standards which still refer to
the previous versions of the framework, the Group will rely
on the New Framework on its effective date in determining
the accounting policies especially for transactions, events
or conditions that are not otherwise dealt with under the
accounting standards.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end
of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing
transactions that are accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 16 (since 1 April 2019) or HKAS 17 (before application
of HKFRS 16), and measurements that have some similarities
to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value
in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment
of Assets.

Heng Gas Holdings Limited 2020 Annual Report

33

EEETHR
RAMBRROBREFTBRAMA
RN ZE BRI REENRES o bt
I GARBBRREEEERARS
FERARE S EBRA (T EHRA)
REBAAGOREZ EAREE
ko

BATRI B REMEE2ET
SHTARRSREBKRATETE
5 BABBRESREELRAR
LT

JE sb kAN — AR IR S E am B AR 75 B P
NHEREHAFENE -

AFERRAEEHTSEL2EERE
BEXZPHEEEAKRRKRERE
EAXNMER M AwmZERES
B A BRAE A E A G ER G
ite EMBE2EENFTERRHEE
SEETEFEEEEEXRENR
#HoAAXAKERGEHEEXAGRNA
FEREERZSHHM UFHEREHM
BHRETEAER AREREHD
FEDRZUEEET  HEBREFEH
5 3 & 22 RI S8 25% AR £ S 5 #8 [ A9 BA
B RN S  REBBEH B RS
ERF16R (B ZE—NFEOA—BE)
ZEESA LB R(RNEREE
M| ELERNFE 1658 ABRNEER
5 WERERFERBOBAELSE
WIAFENGE BENFESTE
AIF2RFEANA BB FELEE
S EAIEIGREERENEAEE
RSN o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B ISR R M EE

W A

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-T-TFEZA=t+ ALEE

= =

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

For financial instruments which are transacted at fair value
and a valuation technique that unobservable inputs is to
be used to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the
valuation technique is calibrated so that at initial recognition
the results of the valuation technique equals the transaction
price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are
described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
where the Company:

. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights
of an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting
rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether or not the Group's voting rights in an investee are
sufficient to give it power, including:

J the size of the Group's holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

o rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

o any additional facts and circumstances that indicate
that the Group has, or does not have, the current
ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that
decisions need to be made, including voting patterns
at previous shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities,
and cash flows

equity, income,
expenses relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group's equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group's cash-generating units (or groups
of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination, which represent the
lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an operating
segment.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently when there is indication that the
unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit (or group of
cash-generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment before the end of that reporting
period. If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying
amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill and then to the other assets
on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit (or group of cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or any of
the cash-generating unit within the group of cash-generating
units, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.
When the Group disposes of an operation within the cash-
generating unit (or a cash-generating unit within a group of
cash-generating units), the amount of goodwill disposed of is
measured on the basis of the relative values of the operation
(or the cash-generating unit) disposed of and the portion of
the cash-generating unit (or the group of cash-generating
units) retained.

The Group's policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of
an associate is described below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements of
associates used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group
for like transactions and events in similar circumstances.
Under the equity method, an investment in an associate is
initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate. When the Group's share of losses
of an associate exceeds the Group's interest in that associate
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group's net investment in the associate), the
Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate. On acquisition of the investment in an
associate, any excess of the cost of the investment over the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately
in profit or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Investments in associates (Continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate may be impaired. When any
objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised is not allocated to any asset,
including goodwill, which forms part of the carrying amount
of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that
the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

When a group entity transacts with its associate, profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the associate are
recognised in the Group's consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of interests in the associate that are not
related to the Group.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

J the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group's performance as
the Group performs;
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

o the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset

that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group's performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance
with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group's unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only
the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement

of progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation in relation to the LNG transportation service is
measured based on output method, which is to recognise
revenue on the basis of direct measurements of the value of
the goods or services transferred to the customer to date
relative to the remaining goods or services promised under
the contract, that best depict the Group's performance in
transferring control of goods or services.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Over time revenue recognition: measurement

of progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation (Continued)

Input method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation in relation to the construction of gas pipeline
infrastructure is measured based on input method, which
is to recognise revenue on the basis of the Group's efforts
or inputs to the satisfaction of a performance obligation
relative to the total expected inputs to the satisfaction of
that performance obligation, that best depict the Group's
performance in transferring control of goods or services.

Leasing

Definition of a lease (upon application of HKFRS 16
in accordance with transitions in note 2)

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from
business combinations on or after the date of initial
application, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS
16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless
the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16
in accordance with transitions in note 2)

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract
For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price
of the non-lease components.

Non-lease components are separated from lease component

and are accounted for by applying other applicable
standards.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16
in accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option. Lease payments on short-term leases are
recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or another

systematic basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

J the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group

in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease.
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease
term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16
in accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS
9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair
value at initial recognition are considered as additional lease
payments and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of
lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The lease payments include:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted
by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group as a lessee (prior to 1 April 2019)

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring
land held under operating leases, are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Lease incentives relating to operating leases are considered
as integral part of lease payments, the aggregate benefit of
incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on
a straight-line basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of
the Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in
an associate that includes a foreign operation of which
the retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of the
exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost
of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Effective from 1 April 2019, any specific borrowing that
remains outstanding after the related assets is ready for its
intended use or sale is included in the general borrowing
pool for calculation of capitalisation rate on general
borrowings.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowing pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the state-managed retirement schemes and
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as
expense when employees have rendered service entitling
them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the
benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees

(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after
deducting any amount already paid.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from loss/profit before tax
because of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax
rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 Income Taxes requirements to the leasing transaction as a
whole. Temporary differences relating to right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities are assessed on a net basis. Excess of
depreciation on right-of-use assets over the lease payments
for the principal portion of lease liabilities resulting in net
deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purpose (other than construction in
progress as described below). Property, plant and equipment
are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Plant and machinery in the course of construction for
production, supply or administrative purposes are carried
at cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Costs include
any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to
the location and condition necessary for it to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by management
and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in
accordance with the Group's accounting policy. Depreciation
of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Ownership interests in leasehold land and building
When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values at initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Ownership interests in leasehold land and building
(Continued)

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for
as an operating lease is presented as “right-of-use assets”
(upon application of HKFRS 16) or “prepaid lease payments”
(before application of HKFRS 16) in the consolidated
statement of financial position. When the consideration
cannot be allocated reliably between non-lease building
element and undivided interest in the underlying leasehold
land, the entire properties are classified as property, plant
and equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets other than construction in progress less their residual
value over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible asset

Intangible asset acquired separately

Intangible asset with finite useful lives that is acquired
separately is carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible asset with finite useful life is recognised on a
straight-line basis over its estimated useful life. The estimated
useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Intangible asset (Continued)

Intangible asset acquired in a business combination
Intangible asset acquired in a business combination
is recognised separately from goodwill and is initially
recognised at its fair value at the acquisition date (which is
regarded as its cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible asset acquired
in a business combination with finite useful life is reported
at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets
that is acquired separately.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
are recognised in profit or loss in the period when the asset
is derecognised.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, and intangible assets other
than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets, intangible assets with finite useful lives to
determine whether there is any indication that these assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, and intangible assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, and intangible assets other
than goodwill (Continued)

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate
assets are also allocated to relevant cash-generating units,
when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
established, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be established. The
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit or group of cash-generating units to which the corporate
asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount
of the relevant cash-generating unit or group of cash-
generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, and intangible assets other
than goodwill (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated
on a reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating
unit, the Group compares the carrying amount of a group
of cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts of
the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated
to that group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable
amount of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the group
of cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an asset
is not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs
of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable)
and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated
pro rata to the other assets of the unit or the group of
cash-generating units. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit or a
group of cash-generating units) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group
of cash-generating units) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs
of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers which are initially measured in
accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL")) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to

cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL except that at the date of initial application of
HKFRS 9/initial recognition of a financial asset the Group
may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in
fair value of an equity investment in other comprehensive
income if that equity investment is neither held for trading
nor contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer
in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

J on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised
cost or fair value through other comprehensive income
("FVTOCI") as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EEEEREA)

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued) SRITHR(E)

Financial assets (Continued) ERMEE(HE)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial THEESERAEETE(E)

assets (Continued)

(i)  Amortised cost and interest income (i) B8R B R B U A
Interest income is recognised using the effective HERBERAFEZERE
interest method for financial assets measured EZMBWATERAERFR X
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is ETIARER « M BWA T ¥ —
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the HeREERBAERAER
gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for MEFUHE  HEHRHREE
financial assets that have subsequently become credit- BEZEREERIINETX) -
impaired (see below). For financial assets that have REELREEREZERE
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income EfMs BT —HEHR - FE
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate WA R EEBHKNAE
to the amortised cost of the financial asset from the RERMETLAER - HMiEE
next reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit- ﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬂIﬂZEﬁH&ﬂ@
impaired financial instrument improves so that the FEREETHEREERE -
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest RETEETBLEBREERE
income is recognised by applying the effective interest & BREHFABENSWAT
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset HeRmEERDNLAERAER
from the beginning of the reporting period following MEFAMER -
the determination that the asset is no longer credit-
impaired.

(i) Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI (il HERBRATEFAEMZE

WAZRATA

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are BATFEFAEGEZEKAZ
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and BRATAKREHZBERAFE
losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in S BAVFEESHHEA 2K
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the mRERERNEM 2 E K AER -
investment revaluation reserve; and are not subject to WHRIREBME#HER  BBA
impairment assessment. The cumulative gain or loss will ETRERN G -  BERT R R
not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the FERTEREEREAKRER
equity investments, and will be transferred to retained E%ﬁ MBMEEF BfEREZE
profits/accumulated losses. RE®F,REEE -
Dividends from these investments in equity instruments EAEEREZWERRKR S ZER
are recognised in profit or loss when the Group's right B BRIFEEBEMBRRERA
to receive the dividends is established, unless the EER—HBOREKAR - BRI
dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of the REZERANT AP ERNK
cost of the investment. Dividends are included in the BEgRBERTER - REFTAR
other income line item in profit or loss. HEREMKAEERA -
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets (Continued)

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value
at the end of the reporting period, with any fair value
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any
dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and
is included in the “other gains and losses” line item.

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL") model on financial assets (including trade
and other receivables, long-term receivable, amounts due
from associates, amount due from a non-controlling equity
owner of a subsidiary, amount due from a related party,
pledged bank deposits and bank balances), and other items
(contract assets and financial guarantee contracts) which are
subject to impairment under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit
risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-months ECL (“12m ECL")
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. Assessments are made based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at the
reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables arising from contracts with customers and
contract assets. The ECL on these assets are assessed
individually for debtors with significant balances or that are
credit impaired and/or collectively using a provision matrix
based on the past due status of the remaining debtors.
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S ERME

e~

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BHE_ T TF=-A=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
(Continued)

For all other instruments,

the Group measures the loss

allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless there has been a

significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is
based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a

default occurring since initial recognition.

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument at the
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market

indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase

in the credit spread, the credit default swap

prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

financial or
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
BHE_ T TF=-A=1+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
(Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)
o an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that the
Group becomes a party to the irrevocable commitment
is considered to be the date of initial recognition for the
purposes of assessing impairment. In assessing whether
there has been a significant increase in the credit risk
since initial recognition of financial guarantee contracts,
the Group considers the changes in the risk that the
specified debtor will default on the contract.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
BHE_ T TF=-A=1+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
(Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from external sources
indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into account
any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above assessment, the Group
considers that default has occurred when a financial
asset is more than 90 days past due unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the following events:

(@)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

(c)  the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B ISR R M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BHE_ T TF=-A=1+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
(Continued)

(iv)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, for example, when the counterparty has
been placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written off
may still be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group's recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes
a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are
recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted
by forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL
reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount
that is determined with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.

For a financial guarantee contract, the Group is
required to make payments only in the event of a
default by the debtor in accordance with the terms
of the instrument that is guaranteed. Accordingly, the
expected losses is the present value of the expected
payments to reimburse the holder for a credit loss that
it incurs less any amounts that the Group expects to
receive from the holder, the debtor or any other party.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
BHE_ T TF=-A=1+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
(Continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

For ECL on financial guarantee contracts for which
the effective interest rate cannot be determined, the
Group will apply a discount rate that reflects the current
market assessment of the time value of money and the
risks that are specific to the cash flows but only if, and
to the extent that, the risks are taken into account by
adjusting the discount rate instead of adjusting the
cash shortfalls being discounted.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater
for cases where evidence at the individual instrument
level may not yet be available, the financial instruments
are grouped on the following basis:

° Nature of financial instruments;
o Past due status and ageing status; and
. Nature, size and industry of debtors.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case interest
income is calculated based on the amortised cost of
the financial asset.

For financial guarantee contracts, the loss allowances
are recognised at the higher of the amount of the loss
allowance determined in accordance with HKFRS 9; and
the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amount of income recognised over the
guarantee period.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
BHE_ T TF=-A=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets

(Continued)

(v}  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)
Except for financial guarantee contracts, the Group
recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss
for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying

with the exception of trade receivables,

contract assets and dividend receivable, where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss
allowance account.

amounts,

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises
a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset's carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument
which the Group has elected on initial recognition to
measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve is not
reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to retained
profits/accumulated losses.

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including bank and other borrowings,
guaranteed notes, amount due to an associate, trade
payables and other liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails
to make payments when due in accordance with the terms
of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contract liabilities
are measured initially at their fair values. It is subsequently
measured at the higher of:

° the amount of the loss allowance determined in
accordance with HKFRS 9; and

J the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised over the guarantee
period.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives, including contracts to buy or sell non-financial
items that can be settled net in cash or another financial
instrument unless such contracts were entered into and
continue to be held for the purpose of the receipt or delivery
of the relevant non-financial items in accordance with the
Group’s expected purchase or sale requirements, are initially
recognised at fair value at the date when derivative contracts
are entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their
fair value at the end of the reporting period. The resulting

gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on past experience,
expectation and other information that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current

and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities within the next financial year.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Impairment of goodwill

The carrying value of goodwill at 31 March 2020 amounted
to RMB34,070,000 (2019: RMB34,070,000). The Group is
required to carry out an impairment assessment of goodwill
at least annually or when there is indication that the cash-
generating unit to which the goodwill has been allocated
may be impaired. In determining the recoverable amount, the
Group assesses the value in use of the cash-generating unit
to which the goodwill has been allocated by discounting their
estimated future cash flows to the present value. Significant
judgment and assumptions were required in the process such
as the use of discount rates, growth rates, estimated average
purchase price of natural gas and average selling price of
LNG during the forecast period. Where the actual future
cash flows are less than expected or change in facts and
circumstances which results in downward revision of future
cash flows, a material impairment loss may arise.

Impairment of trade receivables

Trade receivables with significant balances or that are credit
impaired are assessed for ECL individually. The estimated
loss rates applied in each debtor with significant balances or
that is credit impaired are estimated with reference to the
external credit rating, historical default rates, past due status,
current conditions at the report date and are adjusted for
forward-looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort.

In addition, the Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL
for the trade receivables which are individually insignificant
based on the past due status of various debtors that have
similar loss patterns. The estimated loss rates applied in each
category of debtors in the provision matrix are estimated
based on historical default rates, past due status, current
conditions at the report date and are adjusted for forward-
looking information that is available without undue costs or
effort.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The
information about the ECL and the Group's trade receivables
are disclosed in notes 47 and 27, respectively.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE_Z_ZF=A=+—HILEFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE 5. ##&# R
Information reported to the Group's executive directors, MASERTESF(ANETELEERSE
being the chief operating decision maker (“CODM"), for the E(X2L2ERKED)ZHMUEER
purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment DERXBFAGZENTERELE
focuses on the nature of operations. MEEL -
Specifically, the Group's reportable segments are as follows: BEmME AEENKERARE D
o
Production and sales of ~ Wholesale of LNG SEREERIE HBERIEXRAR
LNG RAR
Oil and gas transactions  Trading of oil and gas contracts BHERAR AHRERRAR
R 5 BEEH
Piped gas Sales of piped gas and BEBRAR HEBBARAARR
construction of gas pipeline BERARE B
infrastructure iR
In addition, the operations of sales of vehicle gas at refuelling gboh - SHE MR E AR EB KRR
stations and LNG transportation operation are aggregated RAREBREBEHERRIEME
and reported as “other operations”. %1
Segment revenue and results SR ES
Production Total
and sales  Oil and gas reportable Other
of LNG transactions Piped gas segments operations Total
EERBE BBk Bl R & Hit
BILXRAR XABREXD XAR SHEEH £ @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTFT ARBTT ARETIT ARETT ARETT AR%TR
Year ended BE-T-%%
31 March 2020 SA=t-HLEEE
Segment revenue from external ~ RENFEFZ
customers ol s 1,264,729 4,750,093 404,163 6,418,985 28,250 6,447,235
Segment results DEEE 10,253 48,413 53,709 112,375 (867) 111,508
Interest income FEKA 12,825
Other gains and losses HEilasRkEE (26,367)
Share of results of associates EEBERR 2 EE (20,595)
Finance costs BEKA (100,294)
Unallocated corporate expenses  AA B EERE (9.916)
Loss before tax BREAEE (32,839)
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—E-TESAS-HILERE

BH=E

— = —=

SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE 5.

(Continued)

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

5T EB & R Wy 22 (48)
SEHlERES(E)

Production Total
and sales  Oil and gas reportable Other
of LING  transactions Piped gas  segments operations Total
AERHEE VNN EE A& Hit
BIERARAR  RAERSH ARR  HHBEE %% @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTR ARETR ARKTR ARBTT ARETR
Year ended BE-F-1%
31 March 2019 ZA=t+-HLEEE
Segment revenue from external  RENBEFZ
customers LR L 1,239,718 6,975,615 306,390 8,521,723 31,224 8,552,947
Segment results NEMEE 85,923 26,507 17,066 129,496 (3,074) 126,422
Interest income FaWA 46,868
Other gains and losses HEl sk ER 3,105
Share of results of associates i NG A (10,753)
Finance costs BEKAK (87,667)
Unallocated corporate expenses  AAEEERE (6,698)
Profit before tax IR Bt A A 7,277

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are
the same as the Group's accounting policies except for the
gross proceeds from oil and gas contracts are included in
segment revenue, whilst revenue from oil and gas contracts
is recognised on the net amount of sales and purchase
contracts of goods sold. Segment profit/loss represents the
profit earned by/loss from each segment without allocation
of central administration costs, share of results of associates,
interest income, gain on disposal of a subsidiary, loss/
gain on fair value change of derivative financial instrument,
certain exchange differences and finance costs. This is the
measure reported to the CODM for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.

AREDMZEARREALAEE 5
BEMAR - ORI RAREHZA
BRBRBETAD B - T AHR
ARREBHNZBAEDNIEEEERZE
BEAKFRHEBER - 28RN BiEE
B RETERECR T R AR D A
RITERARA - BB ERREE 7
BRA-HE-—RMBLRZUWE -
TESMIAZATEEDER K
m O BTEREERBENK - 1A
AEBELERRERSEFERDER
REFBZANGE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
BHE_ T TF=-A=1+—HILFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE 5. #H#3&E#H KW (&)
(Continued)
Segment assets and liabilities STHEEREBR
Information of the operating segments of the Group reported ERHFIELERAREEERIER
to the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and RENBCANAERKLE D HER
performance assessment does not include any assets and WEFAEMEERBE - Bt - #
liabilities. Accordingly, no segment assets and liabilities B2 NHEERBEEHR -
information are presented.
Other segment information Hit 5B EH
Production
and sales  Oil and gas Other
of LNG transactions Piped gas operations Total
EERHE RilR EiE Hit
RILXAR RAERXS AR 5% @t
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTRE ARBTR ARBTE ARETR ARETR
Year ended BE-E-FE
31 March 2020 ZA=t+-HLEE
Amounts included in the measure of FESFRmFIAL
segment profit or loss: 28
Depreciation of property, plant and mE BERZERE
equipment 47,384 620 11,309 1,726 61,039
Amortisation of intangible asset EREEEH = - 393 — 393
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREBENE 609 2,228 76 857 3,770
Impairment loss on property, plant and RERERZNE  BE
equipment recognised in profit or loss REFHHEESSR - - = 739 739
Impairment loss on long-term receivables 78 2 38 2 & 1 FE I
recognised in profit or loss RHAERER 5,088 = = = 5,088
Impairment losses on trade receivables ~ RIEZBERAZEHENR
recognised in profit or loss, net BRREERFE 1,781 15,028 (32) — 16,777
Impairment loss on dividend receivable #1828
reversed in profit or loss HESE (1,693) = = = (1,693)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HENE BERREZ
equipment oz (22) — - - (22)
Amounts regularly provided to the CODM &+ ZEE R FE
but not included in the measure of RHERTESDHE
segment assets: ERUEIAZ &8
Additions to non-current assets REEFRBEE
— property, plant and equipment — % BERSRE 767 100 9,538 — 10,405
— right-of-use assets —ERREEE = 215 = = 215
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BHE_ T TF=-A=1+—HILFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE 5. DEHEEFUWE(E)

(Continued)
Other segment information (Continued) HthnEEE ()
Production
and sales  Qil and gas Other
of LNG transactions  Piped gas  operations Total
HEREE vapiiibd EE Hith
BRIERAR RAERS RAR %7 @t
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBETT AR®ETn ARBTT AREFT AR®Tn
Year ended 31 March 2019 BE-Z-1¥
ZA=+—-HLEE
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #% - BEREZETE 47973 362 10,932 814 60,081
Amortisation of intangible asset EREEEH = = 393 = 393
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments BRNHEEREEH 1,341 138 — — 1,479
Impairment losses on trade receivables RERHERZEHEK
recognised in profit or loss, net RRREESE  F8 85 1,847 (195) — 1,737
Impairment loss on dividend receivable RERER 2 YRR S
recognised in profit or loss REE B 1,693 — — — 1,693
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HENE BERSEZ
equipment BB 1 = = — 1

Amounts regularly provided to the CODM but not EHjji+ Z&E k%2
included in the measure of segment assets: RRIERGTESFEE

BUEAFAZ LR
Additions to non-current assets REZHERDEE
— property, plant and equipment — 0% BRERRE 3,826 = 16,265 62 20,153
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE_Z_ZF=A=+—HILEFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE 5. S E3&# R (E)
(Continued)
Revenue from major products and services FEERRRBEZEE

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue from
continuing operations from its major products and services:

ATREAREEREEEEmMRS
ZREREXRBRBE 20

2020 2019
—®-¥F  -ThF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFR AR T T
Wholesale of LNG B BERRR 1,264,729 1,239,718
Trading of oil and gas contracts OHRRAREESGN 39,698 17,308
Sales of piped gas HEEBAAR 390,018 296,068
Construction of gas pipeline infrastructure F 3 XA RE 18 E R 1E 14,145 10,322
Sales of vehicle gas at refuelling stations $5§%& IR L= A R 19,343 16,006
LNG transportation BAL KR R E & 8,907 15,218
1,736,840 1,594,640

Geographical information 38 &

The Group's operations are located in Hong Kong and the
PRC.

The following table provides an analysis of the Group's
revenue by geographical location or place of incorporation
of customers and the Group’s non-current assets by
geographical location of the assets:

AEBEEVREBRTHE -

TRIEHEZPIBA B MK
WwEHAEERSE 2 O MRIZEEM
BUENAKEFERDEE 2NN :

2020 2019

—E-EH —E-NF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREBTR ARETTT

The PRC, other than Hong Kong FE(REEES) 1,733,230 1,586,928
Hong Kong BB 991 —
Singapore 303 2,619 7,712
1,736,840 1,594,640
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE_Z_ZF=A=+—HILEFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE 5.

(Continued)
Geographical information (Continued)

SEHEA RS (E)

3 & ¥ (&)

Non-current assets*

ERBEE
2020 2019
i el =3 —T-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBFT
The PRC, other than Hong Kong RE(TEESRE) 853,879 925,476
Hong Kong B 1,206 —
855,085 925,476

Non-current assets exclude financial instruments and deferred tax
assets.

Information about major customers
Revenue arose from customers contributing more than 10%

* FRBEETREERTARELERRA

AAEEERZEH
EBEBAEBR S0 L2 EFE

of the Group's revenue is as follows: EZREAT:

2020 2019

—EFCEE —E-hEF

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AREBTR ARET T
Customer A BEEA 458,689* 329,776*
Customer B (note) ZFEB (&) N/AZi#E F 176,884*
Customer C (note) BEC (M) 288,439* N/A 3# F
Customer D (note) ZFED (M &) 268,244* N/A 3# F
Customer E =FE 182,468 166,379*
1,197,870 673,039

Note: The customer did not contribute more than 10% of the revenue during
the relevant reporting period.

* Revenue from production and sales of LNG.
Revenue from sales of piped gas.

ME: REEBREDHEA  ZEFPLETBK

= HI10% LA F o

* RERALERBERCRASR -

WERBHEEERAR
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
BHE_ T TF=-A=1+—HILFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE 5. S ZBEF XU (E)
(Continued)
Revenue W #5
The Group's total revenue amounted to RMB1,736,840,000 ARE B WZBEERARE
(2019: RMB1,594,640,000) comprising (i) revenue from oil and 1,736,840,000C (ZZE— N F AR
gas sales contracts of RMB39,698,000 (2019: RMB17,308,000) 1,594,640,0007T) © B & (i) A B & K
and (i) other revenue from contracts with customers of ARIEE B L W= A R 39,698,000
RMB1,697,142,000 (2019: RMB1,577,332,000). For the year T(ZZE — h F: A K 17,308,000
ended 31 March 2020, additional line items are presented TTRMNBEFEHEME ARE
in consolidated statements of profit or loss and other 1,697,142,0007C (ZF — N, i : /\ R
comprehensive income to separately show the gross amounts 1,577,332,0007T) - BE-_ZT_TF=
of oil and gas sales and purchase contracts. A=1T—BIFE BIEERZESE
BakEt2ERAREIADHET
TABERAREESNMBE -
(a) Disaggregation of other revenue from contracts () BEFEFAHzHMW A
with customers
For the year ended 31 March 2020
E-_S-FE=A=t+-HL%E
Production
and sales Other
of LNG Piped gas operations Total
EERBE EE Hip
Segments i RILXAR XRR ES ] @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
Sales of goods HEER
LNG BILRAR 1,264,729 — = 1,264,729
Piped gas EERARA - 390,018 — 390,018
Vehicle gas at refuelling stations MEWERAR - — 19,343 19,343
Sub-total g 1,264,729 390,018 19,343 1,674,090
Provision of services RERB
Construction of gas pipeline infrastructure HRRARREBERR® - 14,145 - 14,145
LNG transportation BILRARES = — 8,907 8,907
Sub-total INEE - 14,145 8,907 23,052
Total a5t 1,264,729 404,163 28,250 1,697,142
Geographical markets 1 h 37
The PRC, other than Hong Kong HE(TBEEE) 1,264,729 404,163 28,250 1,697,142
Timing of revenue recognition W 25 1 37 B
A point in time R B 1,264,729 390,018 19,343 1,674,090
Over time R—BEH = 14,145 8,907 23,052
Total Fob 1,264,729 404,163 28,250 1,697,142
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE_Z_ZF=A=+—HILEFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE

(Continued)

Revenue (Continued)

(@) Disaggregation of other revenue from contracts
with customers (Continued)

5. SMEE R (E)

W 2 (48)
(a) (@JE)Q%ZH%&L&%HH%E
&

For the year ended 31 March 2019

HE-_Z-NE=A=+-ALEE

Production
and sales Other
of LNG Piped gas  operations Total
EERBE B Hith
Segments B BIERAR RAR % @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBETT AREFTT ARETRT ARETn
Sales of goods HEER
LNG BILRAR 1,239,718 = — 1239718
Piped gas EBERAR — 296,068 — 296,068
Vehicle gas at refuelling stations MRUBERR — — 16,006 16,006
Sub-total INE 1,239,718 296,068 16,006 1,551,792
Provision of services = H MR
Construction of gas pipeline infrastructure HEARREEEWRE — 10,322 — 10,322
LNG transportation BIL A ARES = - 15,218 15,218
Sub-total NE = 10,322 15,218 25,540
Total Fobay 1,239,718 306,390 31,224 1,577,332
Geographical markets i H B
The PRC, other than Hong Kong HE (A BEEE) 1,239,718 306,390 31,224 1,577,332
Timing of revenue recognition e 35 B 2 05
A point in time i1 1239718 296,068 16006 1551792
Over time B RER = 10,322 15,218 25,540
Total B 1,239,718 306,390 31,224 1,577,332
TEREBERER AR 2020 FH 113



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B ISR R M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE_Z_ZF=A=+—HILEFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE

(Continued)
Revenue (Continued)

(b)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers

For sales of LNG, piped gas and vehicle gas at
refuelling stations, performance obligation is satisfied
when the relevant goods have been delivered to the
customer’s specified location, premises or vehicles,
being the point at which the control of the goods
has been transferred to customers and revenue is
recognised. The Group generally requires customers
to make full payment in advance in respect of sales of
LNG and piped gas except for certain customers to
which the Group allows an average credit period of 30
days to 180 days. When the Group receives payment in
advance before delivery of goods, this will give rise to
contract liabilities until the goods have been delivered
to the customers.

For provision of LNG transportation service, revenue is
recognised over time using output method when the
customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group delivers the goods by the Group's vehicles. The
Group requires customers to pay in advance in respect
of provision of LNG transportation service. When the
Group receives payment in advance before delivery of
goods, this will give rise to contract liabilities until the
LNG transportation service has been provided to the
customers.

For construction of gas pipeline infrastructure, revenue
is recognised over time using input method when the
Group's performance creates the pipeline infrastructure
that the customer controls as the pipeline infrastructure
is created. The revenue is recognised over time based
on the stage of completion of the contract using
input method. The service period is typically less
than one year. The customers usually pay 50% of the
consideration in advance before the commencement
of the project, which give rise the contract liabilities,
and remaining consideration will be settled upon the
completion of the project.

All" contracts with customers for sales of goods or
provision of services are for period of one year or
less. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction
price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not
disclosed.
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5B R My 2= (48)
W 25 (48)

(b)

EFENNBENER
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& %) P 2 44 1) ) 25 5 (£ 7 8 1
FHERREERRS AEEE
KB PR R R R IE & RTE
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE_Z_ZF=A=+—HILEFE

6. OTHER INCOME 6. HilrA
2020 2019
> e o3 3 —E-NF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBFT
Interest income from RENATERZHMBEBA
— banks — R1T 12,825 4,027
— deposit paid for acquisition of — BUEE — B AR
an associate (note 23) X2 & & (P 5E23) = 42,841
12,825 46,868
Others HAb 2,117 997
14,942 47,865
7. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 7. HftWrs R B8
2020 2019
—BC¥E —T-NEF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETR AREBTT
Gain (loss) on disposal of property, plant HEWZE  BKE K& E 2
and equipment Wz (B518) 22 M
Net foreign exchange gains (losses) HMEE W 25 (548 ) )% 58 45,694 (11,890
Gain on settlement of consideration RN E 2 WS
payable (note 40) (Bt 5240) — 437
(Loss) gain on fair value change of MESRMTAEAFEE
derivative financial instrument (B 1R) W= (650) 3,150
Gain on fair value change of financial EZAFEFFAEZ 2SR
assets at fair value through profit or BEATEZES WS
loss 244 —
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE— B AR W=
(note 41) (Bt &E41) — 8,049
Impairment loss recognised on property, BE¥1% - BEM X ERER
plant and equipment VERIEN (739) —
44,571 (255)
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8. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES UNDER EXPECTED 8. TRHIEEHREEXTZRE

CREDIT LOSS MODEL, NET OF REVERSAL B8 O EE
2020 2019
—ECEE —T—NHF
RMB’'000 RMB’'000

ARBFR ARBTT

Impairment losses reversed on: AT HIEREE 2
REBAE:
Trade receivables E 5 e W ER K (4,4006) (3,043)
Dividend receivable e U i B (1,693) —
(6,099) (3,043)
Impairment losses recognised on trade 3t & 5 Ji& Yt AR 0 B 32
receivables R E & B 21,183 4,780
Impairment losses recognised on long- Bt & Hi B R TEHIE R
term receivable R E & 1B 5,088 —
Impairment losses recognised on e AR B R
dividend receivable R E & 1B — 1,693
20,172 3,430
Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 47. B 7T 1 5 15 80 BT 5147 o
9. FINANCE COSTS 9. MERE
2020 2019
s e 33 —ZE-NF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETR AREFT
Interest on bank and other borrowings $RITR EMEE ZF| & 74,425 66,624
Interest on guaranteed notes EREBZAE 25,818 21,338
Interest on lease liabilities HEABZHME 167 —
Total borrowing costs 1A E AR 100,410 87,962
Less: Amount capitalised in the cost of & : & BB E EK A
qualifying assets (note) B & A& 58 (K ) (116) (295)
100,294 87,667
Note: The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a rate of 5.13% per Mea: HE_T_TF=ZA=+—HILFE "
annum for the year ended 31 March 2020 (2019: 5.08%). BERABREFS1B (T —NEF:

5.08%) Z Lt REARAE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-T-TFEZA=t+ ALEE

= =

10.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

10. FiE BB

2020 2019
i el =3 —E-NEF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBFT
The charge comprises: XHBE:
Hong Kong Profits Tax EBAMNEW
— Current year — RNFE — 11
PRC Enterprise Income Tax ("EIT") RERERTIEN
(IZEMBHD
— Current year — REE 10,587 20,055
Deferred taxation (note 24) i JE T 18 (KT 5E24)
— Current year — REE 997 5110
11,584 25176

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017
(the “Bill”) which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and
was gazetted on the following day. Under the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime, the first HKD2 million of profits of
the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits
above HKD2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of
group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax
rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

The directors of the Company considered the amount
involved upon implementation of the two-tiered profits tax
rates regime as insignificant to the consolidated financial
statements. Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of
the estimated assessable profit for both years.

PRC EIT has been provided at the applicable income tax rate
of 25% on the assessable profits of the PRC subsidiaries of
the Group except for SFRZHTTE £8LRER AR (“Xingxing
Energy”), EIMMEZEEIRAR AT (“Huixin Energy”) and
EMNEZTIRIEEBR AR ("Huaheng Energy”) which are
taxed at concessionary rate in certain years.

R=ZZB-—N\F=A=+—8 ' FBILX
BB QOT7ER B (B R (FE75) &
FIERNMEPIESR]D - 3| AFBH®
Al o ZIRPIERN2018F3H28H %
FERAER  ARNKRATE - REF
BHMEH  AEREEERE2EE
7 7T 8 B 128.25% M B R A - ™
183825 & 78 7T 8 A 5 1216.5% H) T
KGR - TRHEERERANEH MR
HAREERN LGN BEEIZE —0
T H16.5% BB

ARREFERR BN G MR
P EBEEEMBHRERM S M
RE-FRANEGHRIREMEFEZ
B ERBUEN L6 5% 2 KA E -

AEETREMBARNE TFER
BEEMERUITBLHMEERR
BERARITEEZRRD EMNTES
EERAERAR(EZEIRD R EME
FTHRRREERDB(FEF IR R
M) 2 FE SR s F B 1% 8 A AT S A R
K5% BB B EMEHIFLBEE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE_Z_ZF=A=+—HILEFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

As set out below, the applicable PRC EIT concessionary rate
for Xingxing Energy, Huixin Energy and Huaheng Energy is
15%, which is under the preferential tax treatment that given
to companies established in the western regions in the PRC
and derived at least 70% of their total income from their main
business in oil and gas industry which falling within the list
of encouraged industries specified by the PRC government.

Xingxing Energy was registered with the local tax authority
to be eligible for the reduced 15% enterprise income tax rate
from 2013 to 2020. Accordingly, Xingxing Energy is eligible

for the EIT of 15% (2019: 15%).

Huixin Energy was registered with the local tax authority to
be eligible for the reduced 15% enterprise income tax rate
from 2012 to 2020. Accordingly, Huixin Energy is eligible for

the EIT of 15% (2019: 15%).

Huaheng Energy was entitled to a 15% preferential rate since
its establishment on 24 June 2011 with no definite period
and subject to annual review and approval of local tax

authority.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
BHE_ T TF=-A=1+—HILFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the
(loss) profit before tax per consolidated statement of profit

10. PR BiF 3 (&)

REFABEREIEMEEKRARE -
FRZ PS5 S AT B A A (&5 18

or loss and other comprehensive income as follows: A ERRIAT
2020 2019
> a3 3 —E-NF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBFT
(Loss) profit before tax BrB AT (B 1) & 7 (32,839) 71,277
PRC EIT at domestic tax rate of 25% 12 25% 1) B 1A Bt 2 20 40
(2019: 25%) & ﬁ% PR 15 B¢
— L5 1 25%) (8,210) 17,820
Tax effect of results of associates ﬁﬁ%@\ RIRB BB 5,149 2,688
Tax effect of expenses not deductible TR HASZ 2K T E
for tax purpose 18,274 12,450
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax EFHRMWA 2R E
purpose (17,994) (2139
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERRBEE 2
MBERE 13,208 10,772
Tax effect of deductible temporary RERANBERZEZ
differences not recognised RS 6,761 —
Effect of concessionary tax rates granted #& T # Bl [f{ /8 A 7
to certain PRC subsidiaries at 15% BIShBERE 22 (5,433) (4,694)
Utilisation of tax losses previously not  i& F3 %t Al < 7 33
recognised 15 B 18 (171) (11,712)
Effect of different tax rates of REMADERREE 2
subsidiaries operating in other iy = N A NI
jurisdictions T8 — )
Income tax expense for the year RNEEMERAZ 11,584 25,176

TUF RRAE

AR AT 2020 £ 119



Notes to the Consolidated Financial

AR A B 35 R AR B 5E

o =1

For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE_Z_ZF=A=+—HILEFE

11. (LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Statements

1. FA(EBE)EF

2020 2019
i el 33 —ZET-NF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBFT
(Loss) profit for the year has been F R (EE) )& F B kR
arrived at after charging: AT & IHZE B
Auditors’ remuneration % SR % B 1,700 1,700
Amortisation of intangible asset mEE#E
(included in administrative (GFATTE A )
expenses) 393 393
Amortisation of prepaid lease TE A & kIR #E 8
payments — 1,479
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEERE 3,770 —
Cost of inventories recognised as an ERR AR Z2HFEE KA
expense 1,538,312 1,357,645
Depreciation of property, plant and 9% - BEIKXEITE
equipment 61,039 60,081
Operating lease payments in respect HREM AW E 2
of office premises KEMRERNK — 2,815
Directors’ emoluments (see note 12) EE=® 4 (R H:E12) 4,217 4,012
Salaries and other benefits e kEMEF 50,374 49,342
Contributions to retirement benefit R ARAE A 5T 84 3K
schemes 4,992 6,228
Total staff costs (excluding directors’ 8 T X A 42 58
emoluments) (TERE=H) 55,366 55,570
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE_Z_ZF=A=+—HILEFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' 12. EERFETBRAESZNE
EMOLUMENTS
Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments for the vyear, FRNESKRFETHRABEZHMESRE
disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and Hong HERAETRAREBRTE#E W
Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows: T e
Year ended 31 March 2020 BE—_F-FF=RA=+-—Hd
IE R
Mr. Wang Mr. Mr.
Jianqing Bao Jun  Zhou Jian Total
FEBRRAE REXE AREkE #st

RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB'000
ARETFRE ARBTRE ARETFRT ARETR

(note)
(P &E)
A) EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS A) BITES
Fees we 672 465 103 1,240
Other emoluments H i &
Basic salaries and allowance EXRE & KRR 705 495 953 2,153
Performance related bonuses FIBMAB L — — = —
Contributions to retirement RKAR T FT &) 5%
benefit schemes 101 85 121 307
Total emoluments R 1,478 1,045 1,177 3,700
The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were EXFTATES T ERHESE
mainly for their services in connection with the management BARRGRAEBEEHR M 2 RE M
of the affairs of the Company and the Group. Pt e
Dr. Leung Mr. Wong
Hoi Ming Chi Keung Mr. Tom Xie Total
ZBHET FZEE4E HEBRXAE st

RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB'000
ARETFRE ARBTRE ARETRT ARETR

B) INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE B) BIiHFHITES

DIRECTORS

Fees e 155 207 155 517

Other emoluments Ha <
Basic salaries and allowance EXE & KR — - - —
Performance related bonuses RIRBEEL — — — —
Contributions to retirement R UK AR A 5T &) it 5%

benefit schemes — — — —

Total emoluments Bean 155 207 155 517
The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments FXRTRBYLERTESIMEEE
shown above were mainly for their services as directors of REEARRAESREE ZRBME
the Company. it e
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
BHE_ T TF=-A=1+—HILFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' 12. EEREETHAEZE
EMOLUMENTS (Continued) (&)
Year ended 31 March 2019 BEZE-_F—-hEFE=HA=+—H
IEEE
Mr. Wang Mr. Mr.
Jianging Bao Jun Zhou Jian Total
TRELE RELE A2 % A& Bt

RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTIT ARBTT ARBTT

(note)
(B %)
A) EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS A) BITES
Fees we 639 443 98 1,180
Other emoluments Hi i<
Basic salaries and allowance EARFH & K2R 712 495 911 2,118
Performance related bonuses FIBMRB L — — — =
Contributions to retirement R UK AR A 5T &) it 5%
benefit schemes 72 57 92 221
Total emoluments & 1,423 995 1,101 3,519
The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were EXRATESCHEETEHREE
mainly for their services in connection with the management BARRRAEEEHRM Z RE M
of the affairs of the Company and the Group. XAt e

Dr. Leung Mr. Wong

Hoi Ming ~ Chi Keung Mr. Tom Xie Total
REHBL FzHRAE WHEHFEE Bt

RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBETT ARB®ETRT ARBTRT AR®TT

B) INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE B) BIFHTES

DIRECTORS

Fees e 148 197 148 493

Other emoluments H &
Basic salaries and allowance EXRE & KRR = — — —
Performance related bonuses KRBT — — — —
Contributions to retirement RKAE FIFT &I R

benefit schemes — — — _

Total emoluments [k 148 197 148 493
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-T-TFEZA=t+ ALEE

= =

12.

13.

14.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' 12. EERFETBRAEZHE

EMOLUMENTS (Continued) (%)

Year ended 31 March 2019 (Continued) 8FE_FT—-hhE=H=+—H

1 5 B (48)

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments FXRTRBYERTESIMEEE

shown above were mainly for their services as directors of MEEERRBESRME 2 RE X

the Company. it e

There was no arrangement under which a director or the RREFE  SIEEEHFEBTHRA

chief executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration BEMENREREEAHI L5 -

during both years.

Note: Mr. Wang Jianging is also the chief executive of the Company and his Mt : TRERERBARRZERITHAR -
emoluments disclosed above include those of services rendered by EXBBEAMEBEREEEETHA
him as the chief executive. BARHBREME -

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 13. EEMS N

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments working {EH&EKK%ZEE\%E%I%%TM‘/\:\EZ

for the Group, three were the directors and the chief ':E CHEFZBATRARARESRER

executive of the Company whose emoluments are included TT\B\U\E‘\ ’ ﬁf&§Z@H§E§W\£K
in the disclosures in note 12 above. The emoluments of P 5122 MEE A - Eﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬂ%%%ﬁ
remaining two highest paid individuals fall within the band @jﬂ/\iz\wﬁﬁ%xﬁa@lﬁoqooo;&
of not more than HKD1,000,000 (equivalent to RMB884,945) T URE R A RH884,9457) 2 B E -
with details as follows: ABEWT
2020 2019
ket 33 —E-NF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBFT
Basic salaries and allowance ER#F & MORR 1,232 1131
Contributions to retirement benefit ROKAR A G B
schemes 120 149
1,352 1,280

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group P 6 0 2N 55 B I A () {E fa] B

to any of the five individuals with the highest emoluments &= M AT ERBEERMA

as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as ZNE2 B 3 N A AN £5 (B 12 oY 52 R ok Bl B

compensation for loss of office. BEME -

DIVIDEND 14. 2

No dividend was paid, declared or proposed by the Company
during both years, nor has any dividend been proposed since
the end of the reporting period.

MEFEARRRGEIRMN - KK
BEIRARS - RS RE T E
K ERE
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HE_Z_ZF=A=+—HILEFE

15. (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE 15. B (E51E) BT
The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss) earnings per AEEERERREE (BB BN
share for the year is based on the following data: BRATHEEHE
2020 2019
“ETF —E-NF
RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARETT AR®ET T

(Loss) earnings for the purposes of basic AR T E SR E A K #8

and diluted earnings per share BN (EE) BT
(Loss) profit for the year attributable RARREBAEBEER
to owners of the Company (E18)&m (53,681) 28,357
Number of shares % 3 8B
2020 2019
i i 33 —ET-NEF
‘000 ‘000
T T &
Weighted average number of ordinary FRFTEGRERKEE
shares for the purpose of basic and (BHR)BNN T ERKR
diluted (loss) earnings per share n#E 15 & 6,545,621 6,536,891
There were no potential ordinary shares in issue for the year HE-_Z-_ZTF=A=1T—HILFE -
ended 31 March 2020. WRBEITEEE B -
The computation of diluted earnings per share for the year FEHE-Z-NAF=A=1+—8H1
ended 31 March 2019 does not assume the issue of the FEZBRESRBF R BERRET
consideration shares as detailed in note 40 since it would not M40 R ERD - BRETEE
result in a decrease in earnings per share. BERABNRD -
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. Y% - BERRE
Furniture,
Plant and Motor  fixture and Construction
hinery  Building Pipeli vehicl quipment  in progress Total
BE R KB
RigE kS & ] Rkt HEIR @zt

RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTR ARETT ARETR AREBTT ARETR

CosT BA
At 1 April 2018 RZZE-NEMA—A 875,628 168,875 127,841 61,364 5,706 13,333 1,252,747
Additions RE 51 12 — 103 88 19,899 20,153
Transfer & 3,791 — 24,403 — — (28,194) —
Disposals HE (22) - — (1,068) (50) = (1,140)
At 31 March 2019 R-Z-NE=A=t-8 879,448 168,887 152,244 60,399 5,744 5038 1,271,760
Additions RE 258 147 — 236 497 9,267 10,405
Transfer HBE — - 8,725 — — (8,725) —
Disposals HE @) — — (8,165) (127) — (8,295)
At 31 March 2020 R-ZZ-E£=-A=+-8 879,703 169,034 160,969 52,470 6,114 5580 1,273,870

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION/ E:HifE /ififE

IMPAIRMENT
At 1 April 2018 RZZ-\5MA—A 360,204 58,765 19,796 55,310 4,826 — 498,901
Depreciation provided for the year  FEHRITE 43,866 7985 7,249 579 402 — 60,081
Eliminated on disposals A s 21 8 (21) - — (1,008) (47) - (1,076)
At 31 March 2019 R-Z-NE=A=t—-8 404,049 66,750 27,045 54,881 5,181 — 557,906
Depreciation provided for the year  FE RN E 44,366 7,225 7,623 1,620 205 — 61,039
Impairment loss recognised R R EER - = = 733 6 = 739
Eliminated on disposals RS 2 = = (7,754) (96) = (7,852)
At 31 March 2020 RZZ-TF=A=+-H 448,413 73975 34,668 49,480 5,296 — 611,832
CARRYING AMOUNT fREE

At 31 March 2020 KW-Z-F5=A=t-8 431,290 95,059 126,301 2,990 818 5,580 662,038
At 31 March 2019 R=ZE-N5=A=t-8 475,399 102,137 125,199 5,518 563 5,038 713,854
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. Y% -« B &Rk (4])
(Continued)
The above items of property, plant and equipment, except Ptk BEREREER (EEZIR
for construction in progress, are depreciated on a straight- BN T st R R SR B ERAE B 5]
line basis, taking into account the residual values, over their ERAFHANEREERE:

estimated useful lives:

Plant and machinery 10-20 years B 55 Bt 25 102204
Buildings 20 years ’F 204
Pipeline 20 years BB 204
Motor vehicles 4-8 years g AZEBF
Furniture, fixture and equipment  3-5 years B KER 3E5F
B
The buildings are situated in the PRC. ZEBFHMNRRE -
Buildings with carrying value of RMB12,845,000 and RZBEFERZZE-NF=HA=1+—
RMB13,654,000 as at 31 March 2020 and 2019, respectively, H URPEZBFEREEESIAA
located in the PRC are in the process of obtaining the R #12,845,0007T & A R #13,654,000
building certificates. T RERTHNEFEELERRE
Ao
17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 17. ERERE
Leasehold Leased
land properties Total
HELH HEME @
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBETT AR®TRT AR®TR

As at 1 April 2019 R-F—-AEW@MA—H
Carrying Amount REE 38,732 4,489 43,221
As at 31 March 2020 R-FE-_¥&E=HA=+—H
Carrying Amount REE 37,254 2,412 39,666
For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE-_¥-F¥F=H=+-—H

LLEE
Depreciation charge MERX 1,478 2,292 3,770
Expense relating to short-term leases HEMEEEMNR 263

Expense relating to leases with lease terms HEHEIRBEREREBH B RS
ended within 12 months of the date of R 1655 B 1218 A N &

initial application of HKFRS 16 MEEER BN HX 295
Total cash outflow for leases HERS R L AR 2,886
Additions to right-of-use assets EEREEE 215
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17.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

The Group leases various office premises for its headquarter
and various operations. Lease contracts are entered into for
fixed term of 1 year to 2 years. Lease terms are negotiated
on an individual basis and contain of different terms and
conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing the
length of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the
definition of a contract and determines the period for which
the contract is enforceable.

In addition, the Group owns several industrial buildings
where its manufacturing facilities are primarily located. The
Group is the registered owner of these property interests,
including the underlying leasehold lands. Lump sum
payments were made upfront to acquire these property
interests. The leasehold land components of these owned
properties are presented separately only if the payments
made can be allocated reliably.

The Group has obtained the land use right certificates for
all leasehold lands except for leasehold lands with carrying
amount of RMB3,157,000 (2019: RMB3,233,000) in which the
Group is in the process of obtaining.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for leased
properties. As at 31 March 2020, the portfolio of short-term
leases is similar to the portfolio of short-term leases to which
the short-term lease expense disclosed in this note above.

Restrictions or covenants on leases

In addition, lease liabilities of RMB2,543,000 are recognised
with related right-of-use assets of RMB2,412,000 as at 31
March 2020. The lease agreements do not impose any
covenants other than the security interests in the leased
assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be
used as security for borrowing purposes.

17.

ERESEE)
AEEREBBMEREXBHESZA
WAmE - HEARZ-—FERFEDL
EWEEFRFTL - HEGKTER
FE 7 1 3E 0 BT A5 AR & AR #F & TR
[ o 18 E FH A K R Al S AT BEE 2
WRER AEERBARNERL
EEARATARNBAM -

AN AEBEREZRIEET (X E
MEELAERE) - AKBERHZEY
¥z (BEERAES ) OEMmE
BA-AEEHORBBZEME RS
AN —RMERT K - BEE N HIRA
EEAMAESEMNBRLT  ZEBEY
EMBAEL TSI EBLZ2S -

AREBERAEHEE & B+
MmERAEEE EEEAEAAR
#3,157,000c(ZE — N F AR K
3,233,000T) A & L R Ah - AR EE
BIFAEEREBEZEE e+ i A

B
AR A E Y 2 AT T R
& -W-FE-TF=A=t-A &
BT A A BLE ORISR B
2950 5 57 % T A8 4050 R 4R A4 4

4

E o

A E R R 2258

BN R-B-FE=F=t+—B B
REEABERARK2543,0007T © 48
A A A E R ARM2,412,0007T °
BREMEARENHEEELETMETE
@®IN HEBR TS EMTARE -
MEEETSREEERERR -
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
BHE_ T TF=-A=1+—HILFE

18. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

Prepaid lease payments represent land use rights in the PRC

18. EfTHER

BENHEERBEASEREPHBENE

obtained by the Group under medium-term lease and are SRRz L ERE  RREMS
analysed for reporting purposes as: DHTIT
2019
ZE-NF
RMB’000
ARBFT
Current assets BN E E 1,479
Non-current assets FRBEE 37,253
38,732
19. GOODWILL 19. HE
Amount
o]
RMB’000
ARET T
COST 5.
At 1 April 2018, 31 March 2019 R-_ZE—NFMWA—RB - —TE—AF=ZA=+—H
and 31 March 2020 E_F_FF=A=+—H 56,740
IMPAIRMENT |
At 1 April 2018, 31 March 2019 RZE—-N\FMHA—H- —NWE=HAH=+—8H
and 31 March 2020 —E-_FF=A= + EI 22,670
CARRYING AMOUNT AR B
At 31 March 2020 and 2019 R_B_BER-_F-NAF=A=+—H 34,070
For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill has been HREANFAMNS  BEEHI K

allocated to UHL and its subsidiaries which represent the
production and sales of LNG segment, together as one
group of cash-generating units (“CGUs"), which represents
the lowest level within the Group at which goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes and is not
larger than the operating segment of production and sales
of LNG, that are expected to benefit from the business
combination.
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BHE_ T TF=-A=1+—HILFE

19. GOODWILL (Continued)

The recoverable amount of the group of CGUs is determined
from value in use calculations. The key assumptions for the
value in use calculations are those regarding the discount
rates, growth rates and expected changes to selling price
and direct costs of LNG during the projection period. The
directors of the Company estimate discount rates using pre-
tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the group of CGUs.
The growth rates are based on industry growth forecasts.
Changes in selling prices and direct costs are based on past
practices and expectations of future changes in the market.

The calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a 5-year period,
and a discount rate of 14.02% (2019: 13.66%) for the year
ended 31 March 2020. The cash flows projections beyond
the 5-year period are extrapolated using a steady 2% (2019:
3%) growth rates. This growth rate is based on the relevant
industry growth forecasts and does not exceed the average
long-term growth rate for the relevant industry. Other key
assumptions for the value in use calculations relate to the
estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted
sales and gross margin, such estimation is based on the
unit's past performance and management’'s expectations
for the market development. The directors of the Company
believe that any reasonably possible change in any of these
assumptions would not cause the aggregate carrying amount
of the assets of the group of the CGUs to exceed the
aggregate recoverable amount of the assets of the group of
the CGUs.

The management determines that there is no further
impairment in respect of goodwill during the years ended 31
March 2020 and 2019.

19.

B2 (E)
fﬁ%%i%ﬁ%ﬁﬁuzﬁwzﬁﬁgﬁﬁﬁ
BEREBEFEREZEE - FHEE
Jéﬁﬁzsz“EEEW%mz
BIRR  BERURBIERARARZE
BEREENATEHREBNER - NQF)
EEHAGRBATL REFTERE - Z
BREATL RRMRIRSELEEMAR 2
EREEMTTERR 2R EMST
B MERDENITERREN - &
BEREERAZHHENBEEMNR
MEREBEFHEL -

FZEATEREFERRERBRANDERE
BEHENATFHUKEEREE

T-TFZfF=F— EiiFZ%ﬁ
L14.02% (—F — N F 1 13.66%) ° B
ﬁﬁggﬂzfﬁimu ] ﬁ'JE@EﬁHF*FH

RE2% (ZE—NF : 3%) HEE o %18
Ei)’b%ﬁéifﬁ BT R TE A BT
BEABTECFHRBERE - FH
BEMESIAZEMATERRIEH
REEBEEHEEREFNNZRERAS
AT - B ET AR EN
JBARBAREEBYMBSERTE
H - ARRIEERA  EWZFRRE
ZEREIEE “E$®§ﬁﬁ%?
EBEVAREEZAFRTHEBRBRR S
ELEBEMAREE 2 IREIESE -

EREBHEREBE_Z_ZFR_Z
—NFE=ZA=+—HILFENFHEYL
EE—SRE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE_Z_ZF=A=+—HILEFE

20. INTANGIBLE ASSET 20. ET.EE

The intangible asset of the Group represents a subsidiary’s
exclusive operating right of sales of piped gas to white
wine distillery factories located in Renhuai City of Guizhou
Province in the PRC under a supplementary agreement
entered into among the subsidiary, another subsidiary of
the Company andEMMRE (KE)BREE A A (Guizhou
Gas (Group) Co., Ltd) (“Guizhou Gas”). Guizhou Gas,
which obtained an exclusive operating licences from local
government for the operation of sales of piped gas in
designated areas in Renhuai City of Guizhou Province in the
PRC (“"Designated Area”) over a period from the year 2007 to
2037, granted an exclusive right to a subsidiary of the Group
to operate in the Designated Area. The intangible asset has
finite useful life, and is amortised on a straight-line basis over
the remaining operating period of 17 (2019: 18) years.

AEBEZEVEER —HMBEARIR
BARBZHMBRR - Z—HERF
REMNAR(EB)BEREEARATE
JNRR SR )) 28 5T 2 %68 78 1~k (A iz 70 AP B
BEMECET 2 REREREEEE
RARZBREZHE -BEMNRR(E
REMBFESETEEMECED
EEwR(EEHEDELEHEEE
ARRZBREERR FHR-F
EHHEE_T_LHF)ERTAKE—
BB AREREENRELEZHRE
SR -BRLEEARARAUERAFH
BESREINBTEEMIF(ZE-N
F18F) AHH o

Operating right

RMB’000
ARETT
COST 5%
At 1 April 2018, 31 March 2019 R=_ZE—\FNA—H - —ZE—AF=ZA=+—H
and 31 March 2020 rZZE-_ZEF=R=+—H 9,837
AMORTISATION B
At 1 April 2018 R=_ZT—\FWMWA—H 2,064
Provided for the year FEREEB 393
At 31 March 2019 R-ZE—NE=A=+—H 2,457
Provided for the year FEE® BOS
At 31 March 2020 RZZE-_ZEF=A=+—H 2,850
CARRYING AMOUNT BREE
At 31 March 2020 R-_ZE-_TF=A=+—H 6,987
At 31 March 2019 RZEBE—-NF=ZA=+—H 7,380
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BE-T-TFEZA=t+ ALEE

21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

21. REEATIZHELR

2020 2019
i et 33 —T-NEF
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARETR ARET T
Cost of unlisted investment in associates A& A& 2
LR E KA 161,235 161,235
Share of post-acquisition results G U1 248 (48,911) (28,316)
112,324 132,919
Details of the Group's associates at the end of the reporting RBERRCAEEBE NG EN

period are as follows:

Name of associate

Place and date
of incorporation/
establishment

Paid-in capital/
registered capital

T

Effective equity
interest attributable
to the Group

Principal activities

MR
HEASEE R 3L 2 % B # ERE EREX FEERGEERKRE TEER
2020 2019
—B-%E C—T-NF
EMRR(EBR)RASXREEFRAA PRC RMB450,000,000 20.0% 20.0%  Investment in LNG
("Guiran Pipeline Company”) 25 July 2013 A R #450,000,0007T pipeline infrastructure
E)Hﬁ*ﬁ(%g)iw‘ﬁﬁﬁrq BERAD i E and sales of piped gas
(TEMmEBERAD —T—= RERCKAREBER
+A=+HA BERBEEBERAR
SREHTNREIRYRERAF PRC RMB10,000,000 20.0% 20.0%  Provision of logistic
("Jiu An Xi Shun Logistic") 8 January 2007 A R #10,000,0007C service
BREETNREIEYRERRA H B REM TR
ThZEIBMR] —TTtF
—ANB
ENMRE(KB)BKEEBMRERAR PRC RMB40,000,000 49.7% 497%  Sales of piped gas
("Xishui Jingiao Company”) 12 July 2012 A K %40,000,0007T HETEBRAR
EMME(RB)BKGELBRR H B
BERAR(BKEBAR]D —E-—=F
+A+=H
BEKLEHBRRAA PRC RMB100,000,000 34.5% 34.5%  Provision of logistic
(“Lvdong Shuiyun Company”) 3 November 2014 A R #100,000,0007T service
ZEKEEHERAR H B RED T RSB
(M gKERA) —T-QmF
+—A=H

All the Group's associates are operated in the PRC and are
accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated

financial statements.

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's

associates is set out below.

AEBFRAEHERR AR FRELER
ﬁ%lﬁé%rmﬂﬁﬁiﬁ%@éﬁf @A A

©

A 1
;|HT o

TUF RRAE

BRAZHBEMEER
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21.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 21. REtE AT 2H % (88)
Guiran Pipeline Company EMREEAT
2020 2019
i i =3 —T—NF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AREBTR ARBFT
Current assets mEE E 142,665 146,004
Non-current assets FRBEE 911,614 973,807
Current liabilities mBAR (362,102) (272,781)
Non-current liabilities FRBEE (296,789) (408,090)
2020 2019
k- Jami 33 —T-NF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETR ARET T
Total revenue Pl 308,058 350,084
(Loss) profit and total comprehensive REE (E18) R AR
(expense) income for the year 2E(AX) WAL (43,552) 2,532
The Group's share of result of associate A& E E(REiE A F 2
E (8,710) 506
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information M BERB ZEES M RRA
to the carrying amount of the interest in Guiran Pipeline BRZREMEBRARI 2R 2EH
Company recognised in the consolidated financial statements: B ¥R
2020 2019
—BC®E —ZT-NEF
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT
Net assets of Guiran Pipeline Company BMEEB AR 2 /FEE 395,388 438,940
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEBRENREERNFHE
interest in Guiran Pipeline Company BrEERZ 20% 20%
Carrying amount of the Group's interest NEBREREEBE A A Z
in Guiran Pipeline Company w2 REE 79,078 87,788
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21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 21. RBEATZ2H#EE(E)
Jiu An Xi Shun Logistic AWREEH iR
2020 2019
bt e o3 —T-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000

Current assets MEE E 27,018 27,023
Non-current assets IERBEE 1,637 1,637
Current liabilities mEaE (51,838) (51,843)
Non-current liabilities IERBAE — —
2020 2019

—E-EH —E-NF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARMET T

R
=
S
BX
I
|

Total revenue )

Loss and total comprehensive expense AN [E & B K

for the year 2HRAZRE — (818)
The Group's share of result of associate 7~ £ B JE{G B & A 7] 2
E — _
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information FRFBENSERGSMBEREA
to the carrying amount of the interest in Jiu An Xi Shun BRZHRNELEIEY R 2w 2 BRE
Logistic recognised in the consolidated financial statements: BEHE:
2020 2019
i el 3 —ZE-AF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBTFT
Net liabilities of Jiu An Xi Shun Logistic NWZEIBY R 2 FAE (23,183) (23,183)
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REBRALEIRY R
interest in Jiu An Xi Shun Logistic A REER 2 LA 20% 20%

Carrying amount of the Group's interest NEBRNLLZEIEW K 2
in Jiu An Xi Shun Logistic w2 BREE = —
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21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 21. REtEAT 2R (8)
Jiu An Xi Shun Logistic (Continued) NWNE2EIEWHMRE (&)
The Group has discontinued recognition of the share of REBERIERABEBGENTEIEY R
losses of Jiu An Xi Shun Logistic as Jiu An Xi Shun Logistic’s ZJEETE ARNZEIRY R EaE
total liabilities exceeded its total assets. H@&E -

EENZEIBDRFEIAEREE

The amounts of unrecognised share of result of Jiu An Xi

Shun Logistic are as follows:

m -

2020 2019
—E-EHF —NF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARET T
Unrecognised share of loss of the RIEREGEE QA
associate for the year REEFEEE = (164)
Accumulated unrecognised share of Bt RBERELEE QT
losses of the associate B8 (7,067) (7,067)
Xishui Jingiao Company HKkE£EAT
2020 2019
—EEHE —E-NF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT
Current assets mEEE 27,636 19,008
Non-current assets IERBEE 65,952 59,867
Current liabilities nBEE (64,596) (55,111)
Non-current liabilities ERBAE — —
2020 2019
—EEE —E-AF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AREBTR ARETT
Total revenue Pl 89,587 59,458
Profit (loss) and total comprehensive REZE mA(EIE) &R
income (expense) for the year 2EA(BX) 4% 5,228 (3,292)
The Group's share of result of associate AN B E(RE:iE A G Z
E 2,598 (1,646)
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21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 21. REEAEZ2#E i (E)
Xishui Jingiao Company (Continued) E'7kﬁ1‘§’\_.|(“ﬁ
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information FRBBENSERESMBEREA
to the carrying amount of the interest in Xishui Jingiao BRZNEBRKEBARIZER 2 KE
Company recognised in the consolidated financial statements: Bk
2020 2019
i i =3 —E-NF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AREBTR ARBFT
Net assets of Xishui Jingiao Company B/K&B AR 2 FEE 28,992 23,764
Proportion of the Group's ownership REBRBKRKEBARIHE
interest in Xishui Jingiao Company B 2 LA 49.7% 49.7%
14,409 11,811
Goodwill kS 18,837 18,837
Carrying amount of the Group's interest AEBR B KEB AR Z
in Xishui Jingiao Company w2 REE 33,246 30,648
Lvdong Shuiyun Company BRENIKEAT
2020 2019
—BC®E —ZT-NEF
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETR AR T T
Current assets MENE B 56,524 64,370
Non-current assets FERBEE 80,940 134,957
Current liabilities RBEE (175,860) (108,280)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE (47,831) (65,776)
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21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 21. R B AT 2 (E)
Lvdong Shuiyun Company (Continued) BENKEAT (E)
2020 2019
—E-FF —T-hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000

Total revenue 48U 5 1,447 6,443

Loss and total comprehensive expense AN ¥ E 18 K
for the year >HMXZAE (111,498) (27,865)

The Group's share of result of associate A& B fELE & A7 2
XA (14,483)* (9.613)

* REFEEBERABIEARNEZ QA
ZHEZREER/R -

* The share of loss of associate for the year is limited to the carrying
amount of the interest in the associate.

PR BENBERGSMBERERA
RZNEEKEAT 2 Em ZRE

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information
to the carrying amount of the interest in Lvdong Shuiyun

Company recognised in the consolidated financial statements: B ¥R
2020 2019
i e =3 —T-hF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBFT
Net (liabilities) assets of RE)KELAR Z
Lvdong Shuiyun Company FBBEE (86,227) 25,271
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REERZEKERA
interest in Lvdong Shuiyun Company MAEREERS 2L 34.5% 34.5%
— 8,718
Goodwill [SES — 5,765
Carrying amount of the Group's interest AN&EE R & FKERF Z
in Lvdong Shuiyun Company #aZREE — 14,483

AEBERILEREBEZRBDIGERT
ZEE ARSREYKERRZARARE
BEEBREE -

The Group has discontinued recognition of the share of
losses of Lvdong Shuiyun Company as Lvdong Shuiyun
Company'’s total liabilities exceeded its total assets.
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21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 21. RBE AT 2R (E)
Lvdong Shuiyun Company (Continued) BENKEAT (E)
The amounts of unrecognised share of result of Lvdong EEZBKERRREZAERTHE
Shuiyun Company are as follows: ONE
2020 2019
i s o3 —E-NF
RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARMET T

Unrecognised share of loss of the RIEREGEE QA
associate for the year KEEEIE (23,984) —

Accumulated unrecognised share of Rt ARBERELEE AT

losses of the associate E1E (23,984) —
During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group acquired (E_E—t+F=A=+—HBILFE "
34.5% equity interests of Lvdong Shuiyun Company from AEEMBYE=F(EH]WKE%
independent third parties (“Sellers”) at a total consideration KERNT WIS HE - BRE A
of RMB34,500,001. Goodwill of RMB5,765,000 was recognised AR#34,500,0017C - NEEEREE
by the Group. After the acquisition, Lvdong Shuiyun ARH5,765,0007T - WHESIEE - 4
Company has failed to obtain certain vessels subsidies FKERFIARBEIRE BB ZBKE
and/or guarantee as provided under the sale and purchase ARMNEERZE (B KERHZD R
agreement of the acquisition of Lvdong Shuiyun Company EREETHMAE R, HRE - 1R
(“Lvdong Acquisition Agreement”). According to the terms BEsWEHENGR  AEEER
of the Lvdong Acquisition Agreement, the Group is entitled ZKE 7 LA A R %34,500,0007T 2 B
to request the Sellers to re-purchase from the Group the BRAAEEDEEMEEABKER
34.5% equity interest in Lvdong Shuiyun Company at the Al2345% &k - BN EBER
price of RMB34.5 million with interest at the rate of 15% per Hziﬂ$15%u‘|'§ ([RaHAED - # =
annum from the date of payment of the consideration (the —E-NEF=ZA=+—HLEFEE &K
“Put Option”). The Group made trials to exercise the Put SEEATERHEE - BEEH KRB
Option during the year ended 31 March 2019, but the Sellers X,/ SRR BT KB R RET D
has failed and/or neglected to comply with and act upon BEERKEBREBESETSE -
the repurchase obligations under the Lvdong Acquisition
Agreement.
The Group has applied to Shanghai Baoshan District People’s AEECHBEESERGBWE =
Court (EBMBILE AREBT) to commence the civil MESMELREARERIEERER
action against each of the Sellers for breach of the Lvdong BDIREFAD - RZE-—NEFETAN
Acquisition Agreement (“Civil Action”). On 8 October 2018, H REFLEERXEBERE -

the Civil Action was accepted to commence by the court.
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INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
Lvdong Shuiyun Company (Continued)

On 18 November 2019, the Group received a judgment
dated 26 October 2019 (the “Judgment”) in the Civil Action
in its favour. The Judgment ordered, amongst others, that (1)
the Sellers to repurchase from the Group the 34.5% equity
interest in the Lvdong Shuiyun Company at the price of
RMB34.5 million which is equal to the capital contribution
with interest at the rate of 15% per annum from the date of
payment of the capital contribution to the Lvdong Shuiyun
Company by the Group; (2) each of the guarantors is
jointly and severally liable for the repurchase and payment
obligations of the Sellers in favour of the Group; and (3) the
Sellers shall pay costs of the Civil Action incurred by the
Group.

Up to 31 March 2020, the Group has received an amount of
RMB2,500,000 from one of the Sellers.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the Judgment
from the Civil Action during the year ended 31 March 2020
effectively requires execution of the repurchase arrangement
by the Sellers in relation to the Group’s 34.5% equity interest
in Lvdong Shuiyun Company and hence, accounted for as
a forward contract (“Forward Contract”). The receipt of
consideration upon the redemption of the 34.5% equity
interest in Lvdong Shuiyun Company from the Sellers is
considered as the forward price. The Forward Contract is
measured at fair value initially and subsequently remeasured
to the fair value at the end of the period. In determining
the fair value of the Forward Contract, the directors of
the Company evaluate the forward price with reference to
inputs including the settlement risk from the Sellers and the
underlying fair value of the 34.5% equity interest in Lvdong
Shuiyun Company.

The Put Option and Forward Contract are presented as
derivative financial instrument in the consolidated statement
of financial position and are measured at fair value
subsequent to initial recognition with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.
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21. R B ABIZHEZRE(E)

HENIKEAT(E)
RZZE—h&+—A+/\B £&H
BEEESHAE-_ZT—NFE+A=-+B
MHERTHRD  ZREBFDBEF
ZHRES  HEBBRENEIUAR
#34,500,0007T 2 (B 1§ M) 2~ & B B fE
HA# A5 E)KERR Z234.5% % & -
MZEXRHEERLE  BXEBE R
&) KIE QA & B H R I F R R15%
AR QS ERALEBRERNGRES
NAEE AT ANBERENRET
BE RQEFAEAINEAEERELE
REFNEA -

HEZZ-_ZTF=A=+—H K&
BB E e — 2 E 5 AR%2,500,000
7T|: o

ARAREERR BE_T_TF=
A=T—BLFENREFDHARE
BREBREAAKETHORE) K
BRABASHIERNITERLZH A
It ARIIEEBEH (EBEH)) -
R FE [0 4% B 7K 2 B)34.5% Y B #E 1R
BESTREHKEERRPER -
BEHANVIBPEATENE  HER
HREFFEELAFE REEE
BN A FER AAREEFL2E
BREINGERR LB NKERT]
345% I ERHEBATFEEANE A
BEFFEEPER -

RHHEREHAOREE MBI
REIRITESBIE - WA HE
REBRATENE R FEEZHNE
mARER -
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21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
Lvdong Shuiyun Company (Continued)
The movement of the derivative financial instrument for the
years is set out as below:

It

21. R B ABIZHEZRE(E)
) IKELAT ()

(
FAMEESMTRAZHEHINMT

\Y

Forward
Put option contract Total
a0k HAHE EHEH st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000
ARETT ARET T ARETIT
Fair value at 1 April 2018 RZZE—/\FHWHA—HZzA¥EAE — — —
Gain on fair value change A {EZ &)Uz 3,150 — 3,150
At 31 March 2019 RZE—-—hF=RA=+—A1H 3,150 — 3,150
Loss on fair value change A F{E & 8)EE (650) — (650)
Transfer i (2,500) 2,500 —
At 31 March 2020 RZE-_FTF=A=+—H = 2,500 2,500

22. LONG-TERM RECEIVABLE 22. REIFEW R IE
2020 2019
—®-%F  -—T-h%
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETR ARET T

Unsecured long-term receivable AR & HA R R E
— interest bearing at 9.6% per annum — BEMEIEAE

(note) (Bt =%) — 5,088

Note:

The amount represents amount due from a former equity owner of subsidiaries
which is unsecured and interest bearing at a fixed rate of 9.6% per annum with
no fixed repayment term. For the year ended 31 March 2020, due to the severe
financial difficulty of the counterparty is observed, the Group considered
the prospect of recovery of such receivable is remote and determined that a
full impairment should be made. During the year ended 31 March 2020, an
impairment loss of RMB5,088,000 (2019: nil) is recognised in profit or loss.

M 5

HESHEENEKMBAR —RATEEHEAAZ
HOR) Ty AR - 4R B TE FFER9.6% B - WK
EEEEGRR BE_T_TF=A=+—Hit
FE - HRERAXSGHFBABREVHERE - &~
SERAABEEFROKE R SEH - Bt
REEBELEZERE BE_T-_TF=A=+
—ALFER REGRERREBRARE
5,088,000 (ZF—NF: F) -
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23. DEPOSIT PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF AN

ASSOCIATE

An amount of RMB190,748,000 represented the deposit
paid by the Group's subsidiary BB TR EZFEBERA
A] (Guangzhou Juyuan Investment Development Company
Limited) (“Ju Yuan”) acquired during the year ended 31
March 2017 for acquisition of 11.5% equity interest of & /I
kKK A1EFEBR AR (Quanzhou Zhenrong Petrochemical
Storage Company Limited) (“Zhenrong Storage”) which
is secured by certain property, plant and equipment of

Zhenrong Storage and its subsidiary.

In June 2017, the Group had agreed with the other three
investors (the “Three Investors”) to the cooperation
agreement of Zhenrong Storage not to proceed with the
proposed acquisition of 11.5% equity interest in Zhenrong
Storage, and the Three Investors shall jointly and severally
repay to the Group the deposit already paid in the sum of
approximately RMB190,748,000 together with interest. Since
the Three Investors have not repaid the deposit together with
the interest thereon or any part thereof to the Group, the
Group filed a request for arbitration to the China Guangzhou
Arbitration Commission (FBEMMHEHZE L) (“CGAC")
against the Three Investors for the claim of return of the
deposit together with interest thereon, damages and costs
related to the arbitration (the "Arbitration”) in August 2017.

In August 2017, the Group also submitted an application
to the Intermediate People’s Court of Guangzhou City,
Guangdong Province (EREZE MM H & AR ZE )
(the “Intermediate Court”) for a preservation order (the
"Application for Preservation Order”) in respect of the assets
of the Three Investors to the extent of approximately RMB375
million. The Group received a civil ruling dated 11 August
2017 from the Intermediate Court (the “Preservation Ruling”)
in relation to the Application for Preservation Order with the

following ruling:

Effective upon the serving of the Preservation Ruling, the
bank deposits and/or other assets of the Three Investors
shall be seized, confiscated or frozen to the extent of

approximately RMB375 million (“Seized Assets”).
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®RE

£ 5 ARI190,748,000 T H E_Z
—tEZ A=+ —BHLEEMKE
MEBAREBMB TR EERERAA
(BT ESRMNEXALLEHFES
RAR([RAAE D 11.5%K#E 2B
e ETHAERREMEENB AR
METYE BERBEEER -

RZE—tFRA AEERIRKE
EM=FREE(=RKEED]
NEEmZE - HERIEWEIRKE
NES%BHEZRS  B=2KEEE
BRI MAKEEREDSLCHETH
#4975 A R #190,748,000 7T 8915 & K F|
B -HRZE-RBEEHARMAE
BEETMNZEReRENBSHET
D AEBE_ZE—LtFN\AR
FEEMPEZE S ([ EEMNHE
FTES)BRBREZE-RTEENF
HoEkHEREZRSMANESLASA
FEESURMPE(HZEDER -

RZZE—+tFNA XKETFE=F
" EEBEENARE375,000,0007T
ZEEREREEMTHRRARER
(FEERDREZREZEL BB (R
EELHBD AEEEERHFER
ABA-_ZT—+tFNA+—BZR=E
HEE(REZHTED BRERE2ESH
BIEEATE R

RIELHRERTEER  —RREEEH
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23. DEPOSIT PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF AN
ASSOCIATE (Continued)

The Preservation Ruling (and the corresponding enforcement
notices) was served and became effective on 28 August 2017
and 5 September 2017 in relation to (i) the equity investment,
and (i) the land use rights, machinery and equipment
respectively of Zhenrong Storage and its subsidiary.

On 9 November 2017, the Group received an arbitral award
dated 7 November 2017 (the “Arbitral Award”) from the
CGAC which ordered the Three Investors to jointly and
severally pay to the Group:

the deposit paid of approximately RMB190.75 million;

financing costs for the deposit paid as calculated at a
rate of 0.05% per day on:

(a) RMB100 million from 28 December 2015 to the
date of full payment; and

(b) approximately RMB90.75 million from 30
December 2015 to the date of full payment;

interest on the deposit paid as calculated at a rate of
15% per annum on:
(@ RMB100 million from 28 December 2015 to the

date of full payment; and

(b) approximately RMB90.75 million from 30
December 2015 to the date of full payment;

damages for breach of the relevant agreements of
approximately RMB19.07 million; and

costs and expenses of the Arbitration.

23. BUGHE— BB AT M2

(&)

BUR AR R A B AR 2 ()RIER
B R)EIEAE  BBRRAEKE
B2 R 2 80 (R AR B 38 ) 9117 38 40
B)ENRRN-_TE—tFNAZTNH
RoF—tFAARABHRENR

R-ZF—tH+—-ANLB XEEE
EHBEEMTHEESEHA T —
tHE+ AR ZHEF R (HPEE
R HBES=2KREEXRLE 5
QRN SIS

i, BT 4 A R%190,750,000
JG

i. EHRTIEEZREH0.05%M=K
AEMXAREEZBMERSE
B :

@ BZE—RAFt+=—A=1+AN
BRREFBHMAZBEH - A
E #100,000,0007T : &

by BZZ—RFE+-A=+H
RERHNRBEE  HA
R #90,750,0007T :

i. BRTIEEETFI5%ZFIE
TEmEfReZFE B

@ BZZ—AFE+-A=+N
BREZREMNRAH A
R 100,000,000 : &

by BZZE—RAF+=-_A=1+H
EEREMNKBEH A
R #90,750,0007T

v. HEBBZEOSOARRE
19,070,0007T : }

v. HEZERAREMR-

TEMBIERA R AR 2020 F 3K

141



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B ISR R M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BHE_ T TF=-A=1+—HILFE

23.

24.

DEPOSIT PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF AN
ASSOCIATE (Continued)

As the Group had already obtained the Preservation Ruling
against Zhenrong Storage and its subsidiary, it was entitled
to enforce and realise the assets preserved under the
Preservation Ruling and to use the proceeds therefrom to
satisfy the amounts due by the Three Investors under the
Arbitral Award. The Group had engaged an independent
external valuer to assist in determining the realisable value of
the pledged securities held at 31 March 2018 and concluded
that the realisable value of the Seized Assets is sufficient
to repay the deposit paid, the related interest and the
damages.

The Group considered that the realisation of the Seized
Assets may take a considerable time and accordingly the
deposit paid and the interest and damages claim receivables
were classified as non-current assets. The interest receivable
and the damages claim receivable as at 31 March 2018 were
included under “Long-term receivable”.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group had
disposed of the deposit paid for acquisition of an associate
and the related interest receivable and damages claim
receivable included under “Long-term receivable” through
the disposal of Ju Yuan as detailed in note 41. An interest
income of approximately RMB42,841,000 up to the date of
disposal was recognised in profit or loss during the year
ended 31 March 2019.

DEFERRED TAXATION

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of financial position, certain deferred tax assets
and liabilities have been offset. The following is the analysis
of the deferred tax balances for financial reporting purposes:

23.

24. &

REE—EBHEATNZF
?#ﬁ(n‘ﬁ

HRAEED MG HIRK A R H
MBARZRERTE  WHEAEARS
HITRERREREMREZEEN
R ERMERE  NEFE=2K
BERBHRBEORENZHIE - A%
BRI — 2B SN (L ERD 7 B &
EFEERESFR_T—/\F=A=
+— EIZTMEE{ETE WRABHRE
EZAEZREERNENENES
H Eﬁﬂ%&?ﬁ%ﬁﬂaﬁ% =

AEERS ERAMWEETERE
RERH RS XMEE K EKF
ELEEREFRDVBR/IERPEE -
RZZFB-N\F=ZA=1+—H BEFNE
K IR = B E B R AT A TR B 8 WK
BIET e

BE_T-NF=-A=1T—HLEHFE"
AEBEBRBHER THERWE —H
BeEARDNONRE &IK M EKR
RBITHEENRBRERNE RIEX
RERUKERRENGFL 8=
HERH EREBE_T-NF=A
=St BLEEESERMNEBBRALY
A R #42,841,0007T °

3E #i I8
?ﬁﬁ?é\ﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ’\]%ﬂﬁﬁé BT
EEHBEERABBEEN - L\ATi%
B B 81 75 B R i B IR FE B IR A AR
#r -

2020 2019

—EESE —E-NF

RMB’'000 RMB’000

AREFT ARETT

Deferred tax assets RIETIEE E 664 1,124
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEE (14,274) (13,737)
(13,610) (12,613)
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24. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

The followings are the major deferred tax assets (liabilities)
recognised by the Group and movements thereon during the

24, BEBIE(E)
UTAAEERSEERR Y TBE
ERHEEE BB URLE

years.
Fair value
adjustment
of properties Fair value
and intangible adjustment
Equity Accelerated  asset upon Temporary of derivative
instrument at tax business  difference Allowance for financial
FVTOCI depreciation  combination on accruals ~credit losses  Tax losses instrument Total
EBGHE
BATHEA WERER
Eh2ERA mEHIE BEZ EHERZ BEER BE fEeMIA
ZR%xI& fE AFEAE  EREE B BE  ATEREZ o
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBTT ARETT ARETR ARETRT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARET:R
At 1 April 2018 Z-N\fMA-A 4,672 (16,044) (2,670) 4462 839 5910 = (12,175)
(Charge) credit to profit or loss ETE 3 (IR ETA = (1,088) 128 950 381 (4,693) (788) (5,110)
Credit to other comprehensive ~ sTAEMZEKA
income 6,721 = = = = = = 6,721
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-RRERR (2,049) = = = = = = (2,049)
At 31 March 2019 RZE-hE=A=1+-H - (17.132) (2,542) 5412 1,220 1,217 (788) (12,613)
(Charge) credit to profit or loss BB (B FA - (1,088) 128 358 12 154 163 (997)
At 31 March 2020 RZZ-ZE=fA=1-H - (18,220) 2414 5710 508 1,31 (625) (13,610)

Under the EIT law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on BEPBEGEREHE AZZZTN

dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation
has not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of temporary differences attributable
to the profits earned by the PRC subsidiaries amounting
to RMB392,988,000 (2019: RMB420,838,000) as the Group is
able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

F-—HA—BE RTPEHRBIARRSE
ZEMAEIRZEE  ABXEN
B FAaMBHRREARTEMNER
AMBUENEEMNEREZEAR
#392,988,000L (ZE—NF: AR
420,838,0007T ) 1F i & 1E 75 18 B & -
PR < 2 B8] ] 42 o) 3 () T iy 2 BR O B ]
Arfet ERZH K A e R &R
[B] o
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HE_Z_ZF=A=+—HILEFE

24. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
unutilised tax losses of approximately RMB144,956,000 (2019:
RMB93,563,000) available for offset against the future profits.
A deferred tax asset has been recognised at an applicable
tax rate of 15% in respect of such tax losses of approximately
RMB9,140,000 as at 31 March 2020 (2019: RMB8,113,000). No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the
remaining RMB135,816,000 (2019: RMB85,450,000) due to
the unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in the
tax losses are losses of approximately RMB43,699,000 (2019:
RMB37,953,000) that will expire within five years from the
end of the reporting period. Other tax losses may be carried
forward indefinitely. During the year, unutilised tax losses of

RMB1,784,000 (2019: RMB1,259,000) was expired.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
deductible temporary differences of RMB68,900,000 (2019:
RMB41,743,000). Deferred tax assets have been recognised
at in respect of such temporary differences of approximately
RMB41,856,000 as at 31 March 2020 (2019: RMB41,743,000).
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to
remaining deductible temporary differences RMB27,044,000
(2019: nil) as it is not probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences

can be utilised.
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RBEHKR AEBEERDEHE
E 184 A R1£144,956,0007T (ZE—A,
& AR ¥93,563,0007T) ¢ ] 44t K §4
RERF - R-BE-TE=A=+—
B ELERHBEEEDREBREIS%
ZEHEEEHARE140,0007T
—T—hF: AR¥S,113,0007T) T A
R o BRI E A SR /] 188
B 1 43 4 3k 82 R A R #5135,816,0007T
—T—hF: AR¥ES5,450,0007T) #E
RELEHBEEE - HBBEBSEBER
HEMREAFARBRZIEBROAR
#43,699,000 L (Z T —NF: AR
37,953,0007T) + H fth & 18 &5 18 7] LA 1T
BRERBHMEE TR XPAHE
&8 A R#1,784,0007T (Z T — N4 :
A R #1,259,0007C) B J& i °

RBEHRR AEEEEANRY
2% A R 68,900,000 (= —Hh
& ANRME41,743,0007T) c RZB-F
FZA=Z+—HERZEREZBEHA
R #41,856,000c(ZF — N F: AR
#41,743,00070) EREEF B E E ©
WEBRBTAHREREERARE
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25.

26.

EQUITY INSTRUMENT AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

25.

BRAFEFARGZERA
ZIRETIR

RMB’000
ARETT
Unlisted equity investment, at fair value FEHRAKRE @ HAFEE
1 April 2018 T N\FWMA—H 220,886
Fair value loss recognised in other REMEERAFER 2 AFLEEE
comprehensive income (26,886)
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 41) & — [ B A7 (B 5E41) (194,000)
At 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2020 RZE—NAF=ZA=+—HBK
—E-THF=-R=+—H —
At 1 April 2018, the balance represented the 19.9998% R-ZE—NFWOA—H  Z&EHRER

interest in BEMERAXEREABREEHRE )
(Guangzhou Hui Yin Wo Feng Investment Partnership
(Limited Partnership)) (“Hui Yin Wo Feng”) acquired through
the acquisition of Ju Yuan during the year ended 31 March
2017. Hui Yin Wo Feng is principally engaged in equity
investment.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group had
disposed of the equity investment at FVTOCI through the
disposal of Ju Yuan as detailed in note 41.

BEMNERRXEREGBREXERS
#Z)([EIRKX L ) r199998% - A
M= REE_T—tF=A=+
—BLEEEBKRERTMES - &
RAGTERERERE -

HE-F-NAF=A=+—AILFE -
AREDBBLERTHERATE
AR MR EMA MRS RE (R K
EE4TFTEEL) ©

INVENTORIES 26. BE&
2020 2019
=+ =1 —T-nE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBFT ARBT T
Raw materials R A %4 5,956 6,922
Spare parts and consumable 1 14 KB #E 8,894 7,826
Finished goods & BK i 4,756 3,674
19,606 18,422
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27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Statements

27. BES R H it FEUBR =

2020 2019
—g-%F  -T-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARMET T

Trade receivables Z 5) & W BR 3K 2,398,843 2,253,871
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEEE R (23,568) (6,791)
2,375,275 2,247,080

Dividend receivable (note 41) & U R B (BT 3E41) — 97,213
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EE — (1,693)
—_ 95,520

Consideration receivable (note 41) JE WA (& (B 7E41) — 252,800
Other receivables E b JE U BR 3k 12,332 7944
Prepayments T8 TR 583,003 591,935
2,970,610 3,195,279

At 1 April 2018, trade receivables amounted to

RMB1,084,114,000.

The Group generally requires prepayments made by
customers before delivery of goods or provision of services,
except for certain customers arising from the sales of oll
and gas transactions to which the Group allows an average
credit period of 30 to 180 days. The Group also accepts bills
issued by reputable PRC banks from customers as settlement

of trade receivables.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits

by customer.
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27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables net of
allowance for credit losses presented based on the dates of
delivery of goods or rendering of services:

27. B 5 & H b FE W AR =R (48)

TRAEEBRXNARIEHRRBARNZ
JIMEZRKER(EHREERBRE
BB RO

2020 2019
—g-%E TR
RMB’'000 RMB’000

ARBFR AR®ETTT

Within 30 days 30H A 253,525 917,868
31-90 days 31%90H 620,358 105,968
91-180 days 912180H 277,695 1,143,490
Over 180 days 180H A = 1,223,697 79,754

2,375,275 2,247,080

As at 31 March 2020, total bills received amounting to
RMB175,000,000 (2019: RMB79,000,000) are held by the
Group for future settlement of trade receivables, which were
further discounted by the Group. The Group continues to
recognise their full carrying amount of RMB175,000,000 (2019:
RMB79,000,000) at the end of the reporting period and
details are set out below in this note. All bills received by
the Group are with a maturity period of less than one year.

As at 31 March 2020, included in the Group's trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of RMB370,017,000 (2019: RMB4,114,000) which
are past due as at the reporting date. Out of the past
due balances, RMB124,643,000 (2019: RMB1,043,000) has
been past due 90 days (2019: 90 days) or more and is not
considered as in default as the management considered that
there are no adverse changes to these debtors that affect
their ability to repay the debts. Other than bills received, the
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Dividend receivable and consideration receivable arose from
the disposal of Ju Yuan during the year ended 31 March 2019
were fully settled during the year. Other receivables mainly
represent value-added tax recoverable and advances to staff.

RZE-_ZTF=A=1+—H BUE
1% 42z AR #175,000,0007C (ZF— 11
£ AR #79,000,0007T) B A& &£ B
ERRENEZERWER A 9
ETEBCEHRASEE—FTHR - X
SEHEFZERNBEHRANERESR
%8 A R #175,000,000C (= F— 4 :
A R #79,000,0007T) RSN EK
BHRFBIHREMETX AEEE
WHmEEEI BRI R —F -

R-ZE-_ZTEFE=A=+—H &A&EH
BORWEREHBEERMEAES
A R #370,017,000t (ZZE — L F : A
R ¥4,114,0007T) ) & U2 Bk 30 7 3R
SHHERB - TEBESRTAR
#124,643,000C(Z T — L F: A R
#£1,043,0007T) E @ #90H (=& — v
F90E) KA ERTIREELY  EhA
EEERABZSES AL & LETF
BYmMeyEFRSEEEHENESD -
BREWERIN  AEBTERZELE
BRIF AT KT R o

REBE-FT-AF=A=+—AL
4 [ U115 R ) R AR B R PR
REREBEE - R ERHEEE
B ERRERA RN TBHR -

TTFARIERER AT 2020 F 3R
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Bz

27.

28.

—ECTF-_A=T—HLEE

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

Prepayments mainly represent advance payments to certain
suppliers for oil and gas purchase contracts and production
of LNG which require to have prepayments from the Group
to prepay before the supply of goods or materials.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other
receivables are set out in note 47.

Transfer of financial assets

The followings were the Group's trade receivables at the end
of each reporting period that were transferred to banks by
discounting the related bills received on a full recourse basis.
As the Group has not transferred the significant risks and
rewards, it continues to recognise the full carrying amount
of the receivables and the corresponding liabilities included
in secured borrowings.

27. B 5 & H b FE W AR =R (48)

BNRBETERRABERAREER

BHAREERLERAR(EERAE
B 7 (P S R S AR A (R R TR AN 3R [
ETHEBSMORR-

BRE S & H R R FORER G0

15 B I 5147 o

BRtMEE

ATBASEREREHREBRHK
ExHEREEEFRABCRERE
MEZTRTZEZEUIRRK - @R

AEEBTHEREEZSRNE
HE»A&E#& Eﬂﬁ%jﬁ@umﬁ”&

KIA 2B KR
I8 %

AABEREEZHBAR 2R

1A °

Bills receivable discounted
to bank with full recourse

MEEEEREN
RITEMIREKER
2020 2019
s el 33 —E—NE
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARKEF T
Carrying amount of transferred assets E#:EEENKREE 175,000 79,000
Carrying amount of associated liabilities 107 & &/ R EE (175,000) (79,000)
CONTRACT ASSETS BHEE
2020 2019
k- Jenl- 3 3 —E-NEF
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARETR ARKEF T
Construction contracts of gas pipeline RXAZEEEMELN
infrastructure BEAY 3,446 3,970

There was no contract asset as at 1 April 2018.
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28.

29.

30.

CONTRACT ASSETS (Continued)

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group's right to
consideration for work completed and not billed because the
rights are conditioned on the Group's future performance
in relation to the construction contracts of gas pipeline
infrastructure. The contract assets are transferred to trade
receivables when the rights become unconditional.

Details of the impairment assessment are set out in note 47.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES

28. EHEE (&)
BHEETZSRAKEMS TKE
AREHEZNTRKBRKENEN -
ARBERRANNAAEREEXRRE B
EMBREHNEEZANEHENRKED
RGME - BHNEEREBREN KR E
GHEEBEEEZRKRR -

BB BT (5 15 B R P RE47

29. FEUEEZ A BIRIE

2020 2019
—®B-¥F  -T-h%
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR AR®ET T

Amounts due from associates R RN E Q]

380 983

The amounts are non-trade related except the amount to
the extent of RMB603,000 represented receivables for sale
of LNG at 31 March 2019. The whole amounts are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

AMOUNT DUE FROM A NON-
CONTROLLING EQUITY OWNER OF A
SUBSIDIARY

CHBIEIUEE HR-_T-NF
ZA=+—He&#EPARK603,0007T
A EBRAL KRR A B WRIRBR A o
E2HMBELEEN RERAREX

fEE -

30. FEWPH B 2 B — B i Ax 1
mAERAMRIE

2020 2019
—g-®E  —T-AF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFR ARBTT

WERXBEEARRAF (Heze HEXBEREARA

Transportation Group Company Ltd.) (BT 3E)
(Note)

=

1,204 1,204

Note: The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

MiE: HESHEAEER REREARENRE

iR o
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31. AMOUNT DUE FROM A RELATED PARTY 31. El—Z2FFEANTRIE

2020 2019
—®-BF  -T-h%
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARMET T

E M= 8RB R A F (Guangzhou BT = 8RB R A F
Circle Energy Company Limited) (TT=F 8 IR 1) (B %)

("Circle Energy”) (note) — 1,866
The maximum amount outstanding during the year is as REABREBEZEZASBENT
follow:

2020 2019

—g=%% -T-n&

RMB’'000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBFT

Circle Energy JLF B R 1,866 1,866
Note: A company which Mr. Wang is a key management personnel. The Miek: TEEEEFTEEBRABZDG - R
amount at 31 March 2019 represented sales of LNG to the related —E-NEF=ZA=+—HBHEELRNEH
party which was settled during the year. BEATHERIERAR  RERLES °
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32. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

As at 31 March 2020, the Group's financial assets at FVTPL
represent financial products issued by banks in the PRC,
with an expected but not guaranteed return at 3.9% (2019:
3.8%) per annum. The financial products are measured at fair
value at the end of the reporting period. The directors of
the Company consider the fair value of the financial products
approximate to their principal amount as at the reporting
date. The financial assets at FVTPL has no fixed maturity date
and the directors of the Company are of the opinion that
the financial products are expected to be redeemed within
twelve months from end of the reporting period.

33. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK
BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash comprise cash and short-term bank
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.
Bank balances carry interest at a market rate of 0.35% (2019:
0.35%) per annum, as at 31 March 2020.

The pledged bank deposits carrying interest rates at 0.3%
(2019: 0.3%) per annum, amounting to RMB557,000,000 (2019:
RMB368,189,000) have been pledged to secure bills payables
repayable within six months and bank borrowings.

Detail of impairment assessment of pledge bank deposits
and bank balances are set out in note 47.

32.

33.

BRAFEFAEDRZEME
E

R-Z-TF=A=+—8 %M
BATEFANRSZSBMAEEET
BRTRTzEMER  HEHAEKE
BROBAEEFII%(CT—NE:
3.8%) © HESRERHIRBE MR
DB E - FARNEERBEBE
RHATERARBEARH AL E
BE - RBE-T-TEFER-T-—N
FZAZ+-ALFELEBERAF
BEY RAVEHABRRZSME
EXmETNEMERFATNEER
ALRERERBREERRE =
B AMED

ERBRITER RITER

B &
ROFEBHBRASLERS RRIH
RA=EASATZEMRITFH -
\—E-TE=A=+—HB R{T#
BRI T35 FI R0.35% (Z T —NLF -
0.35%) & 2. -

EEMRITHERRFNE03I% (ZF
—HhE:03%EE EFEBER/AR
#557,000,0007 (= —NF : AR
368,189,0007T) B AR AR/ A
AREBEEZERNEBRRITEE -

BRI R ITIF 3 R R 1T 48 81 09 RUE AF
B2 BN EL7
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34.

152 VYuan

TRADE PAYABLES AND OTHER LIABILITIES

. EHEARRRAMBER

2020 2019

“EZTF —T-hF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFR ARETT

Trade payables B O EMER 912,264 1,422,392

Other payables H P& < BR 3K 29,299 40,383

Other tax payables H th &~ B 18 21,408 28,387

Payroll payables JERTITE 1,012 1,031
Advance payment from a counterparty R Z¥H FHERIE LI

in relation to a forward contract B 2 5 (B 5 21)

(note 21) 2,500 =

Receipts in advance (note) 78 Uk BR 7k (BT %) 241,110 73,908

1,207,593 1,566,101

Trade payables arisen from oil and gas purchase contracts
are granted by suppliers with an average credit period
ranging from seven days to six months after the bills of lading
date of delivery, and trade payables arisen from production
and sales of LNG are granted by suppliers with an average
credit period ranging from 30 days to 90 days after date of
delivery.

Note: Receipts in advance represent advance payments from customers of
oil and gas sales contracts.

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables
presented, based on the invoice date, at the end of the
reporting period:

AHRARARBEANZEZRMNER
ROEERARNEREANRLAE
NEATEFZFAEERRL - £ &
REERIECRAR ZESEMNERZKTY
HEBZX N AHRKI0OAEIORTF
ZFAEEHED -

MaE: BRERFROBRRAREEANER
FREMNKEA -

ATRIA2FEZEMNERRNRES
RRERABETZRIEK D

2020 2019

i e =3 —T-hF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFR ARBFT

Within 90 days 90HA A 458,248 1,067,083
91-180 days 9121808 228,200 233,000
181-365 days 181%365H 223,271 117,810
Over 1 year il —F 2,545 4,499
912,264 1,422,392
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35. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 35. B EE
2020 2019
- Jof- Y- —E—hE
RMB'000 RMB’'000

ARBFR ARBTT

Sales of goods HE S m
— LNG — BIERARR 97,079 29,625
— Vehicle gas at refuelling stations — 0d vk B A 1,329 545
— Piped gas — BBRAR 4,076 2,573
Provision of services = AR %
— Construction of gas pipeline — BERERAREBER
infrastructure B 2,921 3,517
— LNG transportation — BIERARER 462 687
105,867 36,947
As at 1 April 2018, contract liabilities amounted to RZE-N\FEOA—RB:  6H8BEA
RMB25,282,000. The amount was recognised as revenue A R #25,282,0007C - Z £ BN EE
during the year ended 31 March 2019. ZE-NF-A=T—"HLEFE®ER
R ES o
All contract liabilities as at 31 March 2019 were recognised as RZE-NF=A=+—HHOFMEE
revenue during the year ended 31 March 2020. All contract WEEERBE_Z_ZTF=A=+
liabilities as at 31 March 2020 are expected to be recognised —RIEFEERRNGE RZT_ZF
as revenue during the year ended 31 March 2021. FZA=1T—HBHABEHNAEEEH
BRBE-FE-_—F=A=+—HL
FEEARKE -
The increase in contract liabilities from sales of LNG is due HEBRIERAARNEHBEE M H
to more customers are demanded for payment in advance RAEBERESZEFELNK -

by the Group.

36. AMOUNT DUE TO AN ASSOCIATE 36. FEt—RIBE AT RIE
2020 2019
—EC-EHF —T—-hF
RMB'000 RMB’'000

ARBFR ARBTT

Amount due to an associate e — B B 2 X B FOIE 28,947 37,057
The amount represents payable for purchase of LNG which Z e AR WE R RA RSB
are granted with a credit period of 30 days. The amount is B -BTHEESRARIIA Ze8EAR
unsecured, interest-free and aged within 30 days. mEA - 2B REREAIEA -

T MREKRBERLE 2020 F5& 153



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR A B 35 R AR B 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BHE_ T TF=-A=1+—HILFE

37. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

37. RITRHAMBEES

2020 2019
i i =3 —T—NF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBFT
Bank borrowings RITEE 1,169,404 979,113
Other borrowings EMEE 108,600 136,176
1,278,004 1,115,289
Bank and other borrowings repayable: JEEEMETRHEMEE :
— Within one year — —FR 1,204,402 1,037,611
— More than one year, but not — BE—FEIEBEMRF
exceeding two years 30,000 70,678
— More than two years, but not — HBBMFENERLF
exceeding five years 7,000 7,000
1,241,402 1,115,289
Other borrowing that are repayable on E#8/R X M/EEZ ZKEE
demand due to default of payment WEMEE(RRBHEET
(shown under current liabilities) 5l 7)) 36,602 —
1,278,004 1,115,289
Less: Amount due within one year and & R —FREI R R K H
shown under current liabilities E\ET@J/T\E'J/TAIE (1,241,004) (1,037,611)
Amount repayable after one year and ZER —F & EE KR IERE
shown under non-current liabilities BE NI REORIE 37,000 77,678
Analysed as: Pakiv=
Secured BEMA 818,977 740,013
Unsecured i 459,027 375,276
1,278,004 1,115,289

The secured loans as at end of each reporting period were
secured by the Group's assets as set out in note 44.
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37. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

(Continued)

During the year, the Group has defaulted in repayment of
other borrowing with a carrying amount of RMB36,602,000
as at 31 March 2020. The Group has been negotiating
with the lender for extension of the borrowing but those
negotiations had not been concluded. Since the lender
has not agreed to waive its right to demand immediate
payment as at the end of the reporting period, the loan has
been classified as a current liability as at 31 March 2020.
Up to the date of approval for issuance of the consolidated
financial statements, the negotiations are still in progress.
The directors of the Company are confident that their
negotiations with the lender will ultimately reach a successful
conclusion. In any event, should the lender call for immediate
repayment of the loan, the directors of the Company believe
that adequate alternative sources of finance are available to
ensure that there is no threat to the continuing operations
of the Group.

The ranges of effective interest rates per annum (which are
also equal to contractual interest rates) on the Group's bank
and other borrowings are as follows:

37. RITERHMEE(EH)

FR - AEEHEREEN-_Z-_TF=
A=+—HEHEEARARE36,602,000
THEMEE -AEE—EHEEHERA
MEREEETER @ B BEERNE
RER - HRERALKRRABHRER
BN REM RIS HROEFR - B
%&ﬁmaﬁ_7_7¢ A=+—H”
’%EZ%/AL@JE\T, © Ei?ﬂi/ﬁﬂ éliv?/:n\
kR sA  EESEEMEET -
KAREEFRGE - ﬁ¥@ﬁmAﬁﬁ
ZHERRKRSERE —(EE A
EEMBRAT - WEE AEI%%1
BEX ARAEERAEERHNE
m@ﬁXfﬁﬁ$ﬁlmﬁfmAT
DZ%% °

AREZRITREMEE ZERFF
K(FEGHMNEHR) ZEEMT -

2020 2019

—B-BFE  —T-AF

Fixed-rate bank borrowings ERRITEE 2.87%-5.79% 4.10%-7.50%
Fixed-rate other borrowings EREMEE 8.00%-10.00% 8.00%—10.00%
Variable-rate bank borrowings FRIBITEE 4.90%-6.50% 4.90%—-6.31%

Variable-rate bank borrowings amounted to RMB413,000,000
and RMB77,000,000 at 31 March 2020 and 2019 respectively.
The borrowings are arranged at the interest rate based on
benchmark interest rate from the People’s Bank of China plus,
if applicable, a premium.

R-B-_ZFER-_F-NE=ZA=F
—B FERTEEIHNRBARR
413,000,0007T & A E #77,000,000
T RBERBEZANRZHUTEAR
RITHM 2 ZEFI RN EQER) &
BRER -

T MREKRBERLNE 2020 F5& 155



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR GE

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BHE_ T TF=-A=1+—HILFE

37. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 37. |RTRHEMEE(E)
(Continued)
The Group's borrowings that are denominated in currencies AEBEZRABEEEERNEEEIAIN
other than the functional currencies of the relevant group MEETENEEIFHNT

entities are set out below:

2020 2019
i et 33 —hEF
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT
United States dollars (“USD") EYA(E i) 71,374 67,233
HKD BT 36,602 68,943
38. LEASE LIABILITIES 38. HHEE®E
2020
i e 33
RMB’'000
ARBTR
Lease liabilities payable: ENEERE:
Within one year —F R 1,750
Within a period of more than one year but not RE—FLALETBBERFE
more than two years 587
Within a period of more than two years but not REMFAFETEROF
more than five years 206
2,543
Less: Amount due for settlement with 12 months & : WA BBEET I RA12E B A
shown under current liabilities B H 4 H A (1,750)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months RIERBDEBETIN T ZRT=EH
shown under non-current liabilities BINHAE 2 KB 793
Lease obligations that are denominated in currencies other S E BRI EEUIINNE K
than the functional currencies of the relevant group entities AEMNHEEREHINT
are set out below:
RMB’'000
ARBTR
As at 31 March 2020 RZZE_ZEF=A=+—H 1,092
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39. GUARANTEED NOTES

Pursuant to a subscription agreement dated 27 April 2018
("Subscription Agreement”) entered into by the Company,
Mr. Wang, Champion Ever, Galaxy King Limited (“Galaxy
King”), a shareholder of the Company, and an independent
third party, guaranteed notes with principal amount of
HKD150,000,000 and HKD150,000,000 (collectively referred
as the "Guaranteed Notes”) were issued by the Company at
par to the independent third party on 4 May 2018 (the “Issue
Date 1”) and 30 May 2018 (the “Issue Date 2"), respectively.
Both Champion Ever and Galaxy King are wholly-owned by
Mr. Wang.

The Guaranteed Notes are denominated in HKD and carry
interest at 8% per annum. Interest is payable every six
months in arrears. The Guaranteed Notes will mature on the
second anniversary of the respective issue dates which will
fall due on 4 May 2020 and 30 May 2020 respectively. The
Company can redeem the Guaranteed Notes in whole or in
part, at par together with interest calculated at the rate of 8%
per annum accrued thereon up to the date of redemption.
The effective interest rate of the Guaranteed Notes is 9.5%
per annum.

The Guaranteed Notes were secured by the certain shares
of the Company owned by Champion Ever and Galaxy King
and guaranteed by Mr. Wang.

During the year, the Group has redeemed a portion of the
Guaranteed Notes with a principal amount of HKD3,000,000
(equivalent to RMB2,655,000) (2019: nil).

The Guaranteed Notes expose the Group to foreign currency
risk as it is denominated in HKD which is different from the
function currency of the Company.

39.

BRRER
BIBARA - T & BE - NAF]
% ¥ Galaxy King Limited ([Galaxy
King ) RBIE=FTZAHA=
)\ill[lﬁ THENRBERZE  NE8E
7 51l /150,000,000 7T % 150,000,000
BTHEREE(EHEAIMERERED
HARBI DR _FT—-\FLAMA
(FETEH-—DR=ZZ-—NFRERA=T
BUZETRA-_DREERTTEY
F£=7 o ®E kGalaxy Kingt3H E 5
2 EHE -

EREB B T E RIRFF X8%
AR FBESNEAIMN—IK -
f%mﬁ%ﬂﬁ/\*ﬁfﬁﬁ*ﬁﬁﬁﬂlﬁ% —FK
- SR T _TFRAAMNAR
—T_THERA=TH - ARAAE
BEBLOLEEBLERER - &R
B ZEEOHEIERANNEREF

K%t HE) EREENERF X
59.5% o

EREEHTE RGalaxy KingT#EHE
WAREE TROEERRBE LA
EELR o

FRN AEEEBELALLERERE
N4 % 53,000,000 T (HHERAR
#2,655,00070) (T — L& ) o

HRERRBABITE  MAETH

BIRARR M NEE R - HUKE B &
ZHMNE R B o
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40. SHARE CAPITAL 40. &
Nominal
value per Number of
share shares Amount
SkEE BEHEE k|
HKD HKD’'000
A TT FAET
Authorised: JETE
As at 1 April 2018 and RZE—-—N\FMA—H
31 March 2019 and :T hi_ﬂ =+t—BK
31 March 2020 —E-FF=-ZRA=+—H 0.1 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRER:
As at 1 April 2018 RZE—N\FWMA—H 0.1 6,518,338,952 651,834
Issue of shares (Note) 1T Mt (B 5%) 0.1 27,282,179 2,728
As at 31 March 2019 and E’\_f ﬂi_ﬂ_‘f’ HX
31 March 2020 —E-ETF=—A=+—H 6,545,621,131 654,562
Analysed for reporting purposes as: HERAEMEL 22 :
RMB'000
ARETT
At 31 March 2020 RZEZZEF=A=+—H 551,378
At 31 March 2019 RZEBE-—RF=ZA=+—H 551,378

Note:

On 21 April 2015, the Group entered into an agreement with sellers to
acquire an aggregate of 49.7% equity interests in Xishui Jingiao Company,
which was accounted for as an associate of the Group. Pursuant to the sales
and purchase agreement, the total consideration was RMB36,735,000 of
which RMB20,000,000 had been settled by cash in prior years, the remaining
RMB335,000 was settled by cash during the year ended 31 March 2019 and
RMB16,400,000 was to be satisfied by procuring the Company to issue and
allot to one of the sellers of a total 34,102,724 consideration shares at an issue
price of not less than HKD0.60 each upon the fulfilment of certain conditions
precedent.
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40.

41.

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

On 29 December 2017, the Group and the sellers entered
into a supplemental agreement pursuant to which the
deadline for fulfilment of the conditions precedent was
extended to 31 December 2018 and the number of
consideration shares was adjusted to 27,282,179 with the
issue price of the consideration shares adjusted to HKDO0.75
(equivalent to RMBO0.66) each. Details are set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 21 April 2015, 22
April 2015, 2 July 2015, 30 September 2015, 30 November
2015, 30 June 2016, 30 December 2016, 9 January 2017 and
29 December 2017.

In May 2018, the directors of the Company were of the
opinion that the abovementioned conditions precedent,
being the fire safety planning and permission, were satisfied.
On 25 July 2018, the Company allotted and issued 27,282,179
new shares of the Company at the market price of HKD0.73
(equivalent to RMBO0.63) each to the seller after obtaining the
listing approval of the consideration shares. Accordingly, a
gain of approximately RMB437,000 was recognised in profit
or loss for the year ended 31 March 2019.

DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 7 December 2018, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company (the “Vendor”) entered into a sale and
purchase agreement (the “S&P Agreement”) with an
independent third party (the “Purchaser”) pursuant to which
the Purchaser has conditionally agreed to acquire and the
Vendor has conditionally agreed to sell the entire equity
interest in Ju Yuan at a cash consideration of RMB423,000,000
which shall be settled by instalments as follows:

1. RMB169,200,000 shall be payable in cash by the
Purchaser on the completion date of the transaction
(the "Completion Date”);

2. RMB1,200,000 shall be deemed to have been paid by
the Vendor novating the amount due to Ju Yuan to the
Purchaser on a dollar-to-dollar basis on the Completion
Date;

40.

41.

B & (48)
R-EBE—+E+-_A=-+AHA8 K&
BEHEFTLMAHE B EK
TERIEHNRPEEEZE T —N\F+
A=+t BRABEROHBKEAES
27,282,1790% + KRB (D K 1T E H
B AEERR0.75% T (HHE N ARE0.66
L) BRAFBERARGEBH B A
“E—RHFWA-_+—H —ZT—EHHF
MA-—+=ZH -ZT—RFtHA=H-
“E-FFNA=+H - —E—hE+
—A=+8 - -ZFE—R"EXA=F+8"
—E—RF+-_A=+HB -ZFT—+t
F-ANBERZZTE—+tF+ZA=+
NERNRAER -

RZE—NFRA ARREEZRAE
AT 50 R AK 1 (BN E B &2 2 48 &) 5T
MEEER - RZZT—NFE+HA=-+
AR - WMERERGOE EmH AR -
RARIEMSERTRO7IBITLEE
RARB0637T)AE FH AEE KT
27,282 V79 A RBIF I o H L - B
BHE-_ZE-hAhE=A=+—HBILFE
P18 2= N RE R & Ay A R #5437,000
-

HE—RMHBAT
R-ZZE—NE+-_A+tH ARA—ME
ME2ENBARTEF)E—FB
VE=FUEANDTLEEHZE(E
Egl) BRHEEAFAEBRMEHREWE
REFBEGHERELEERBZETHEED
fe#E - WeREABAREKAL23,000,000
T BIATE AR HA

. BARXZ5xKAHTEX
BHDANREXNTARE
169,200,0007T

2. BEFBEEARTEXEHIZEE
HAEMEE F T ARE1,200,000
TR RENBRITHIE:

TEMRBIERAR AR 2020 F3K 159



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

.ﬁ.

LUk B

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BHE_ T TF=-A=1+—HILFE

41.

DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (Continued)  41. tﬂ’i fe P 8 22 B (48)

3. RMB126,900,000 shall be payable in cash by the B ARk B2 1208 A
Purchaser on the 120th day following the Completion R & FHARM126,900,0007T
Date; and 53

4. the remaining balance of RMB125,700,000 shall be 4. B HR T E & E3608 A
payable in cash by the Purchaser on the 360th day R & T FEARK125,700,000
following the Completion Date. JC °

In addition, upon satisfaction (or waiver) of the conditions o R—E—hhF-A+HB (&

precedent of the S&P Agreement on or prior to 15 February % # IE BHA) 3k 2 A& i K (S E #A

2019 (the “Long Stop Date”), the Vendor shall procure Ju C)EEMENLRIGHEE  EHAE

Yuan to declare a special dividend (the “Special Dividend”) REZFTRHEBILERATRHOAR

of approximately RMB97,200,000 on the Long Stop Date. #97,200,0007T £ 45 Al B 2 ([ Bl Bx

The Special Dividend shall be payable in cash within twelve B - ARET R & ?é%thEIHH&n

months following the Long Stop Date to the Vendor, as the BREBHRI AR T2 —RE - AR

Vendor is the sole shareholder of Ju Yuan on the Long Stop BAEANRKEEILHBHE T _EARNN

Date and prior to Completion Date. Further, the Purchaser REXMNTER o I WETTREE

has undertaken to pay any balance of the Special Dividend if RERBRBARMBESNZ  BEFE

Ju Yuan fails to pay to the Vendor within the above deadline. AEINERNRE ZEME

All the conditions precedent were satisfied on 14 February FIBERGHER-_ZE-—NF_A+H

2019 and the completion of the transaction took place on 13 HEX RNEETBEEES#ELE

March 2019 upon the approval of the transfer of shares of Ju EEETRMNE KXHFRT-NLF

Yuan by the relevant PRC regulatory authorities. —A+t=H=EK-

RMB’000
ARBFT

Consideration: RME:

Cash received B IR & 169,000
Deferred cash consideration I Lfﬁéﬁﬁgﬁ 252,800
Novation of amount due to Ju Yuan T BT IR BB 1,200

423,000

During the period between 1 April 2018 and the date of
disposal, Ju Yuan contributed RMB42,841,000 profit to the
Group's results. Ju Yuan did not have a material effect on
the Group's cash flows during the year. The abovementioned
deferred cash consideration of RMB252,800,000 was settled
in May 2019.
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41. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (Continued) 41. HE—RIMEBAS ()

RMB’000
ARETT
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which EXLEHBENEERE GBS
control was lost:
Bank balances and cash RITHEHBRE S 177
Trade and other receivables B 5K E A e U BR X 6,937
Long-term receivable = H e W 38 160,420
Equity instrument at fair value through BRATFEGAHMZEE AR
other comprehensive income fRARTA 194,000
Deposit paid for acquisition of an associate RE—RABERAFENcE: 190,748
Dividend payable FEfT AR B (97,213)
Trade payables and other liabilities EoEMERNEMERE (8,963)
Tax payable [ ARE R (33,204)
Deferred tax assets EIERIBE E 2,049
414,951
Gain on disposal: HEZWZS -
Consideration received and receivable B U K IR (B 423,000
Net assets disposed of BEHEBEEFE (414,951)
Gain on disposal HE k&= 8,049
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEFELTEERAFE
Consideration received in cash during the year FABEWRESRKE 169,000
Less: bank balances and cash disposed of BEHERITEHRNIRS (177)
168,823
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42.

“E-FEZA=t-ALEE

INFORMATION OF SUBSIDIARIES 42. B AT
Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that %gii;ﬂ%ﬂﬁ@ﬁZﬁﬁ’ﬁ

have material non-controlling interests ATHR
Proportion of equity Profit (loss)
interest held by allocated to Accumulated
non-controlling equity non-controlling non-controlling
owners interests interests
FEREZREFTARAZ SETHERESZ
Name of subsidiary MEASEHE HE 25 b 6 i (B E) RitEmmEs
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
—g-%F -—FT-NF —¥-%¥EFE -T-NF -¥-BF -—FT-h%F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000

ARETFET AR®TEZ ARBFRT ARETRT

Xingxing Energy EEgR 31.0% 31.0% (3,248) 7,435 87,721 90,969
Huixin Energy [EZaR 31.0% 31.0% (7,328) 4,377 (18,849) (11,521)
Huaheng Energy ES 4R 50.0% 50.0% 21,087 5,119 65,801 44,714
Individually immaterial BE# &8 TE K

subsidiaries with BEAIFERER

non-controlling ZHERAR N/A N/A

interests ER T iE A (1,253) 813 9,126 10,379

9,258 17,744 143,799 134,541
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42. INFORMATION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries

that have material non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Summarised financial information in respect of each of
the Group's subsidiaries that have material non-controlling
interests are set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts before intragroup
eliminations.

42. MEBASTIEE (&)

BEEXEERERZHEEE
Pt I8 2 B 5 1R (&)

TXEINEAEAFERER AR
BEMBARZHMBEMBEE - TX
P 81 B 75 & KL 45 22 45 5 1B 7 AR 4K 88 AT
ZEH e

Xingxing Energy: EERIR:
2020 2019
—E-EHF —E-NF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AREBFR ARET T
Current assets MEE E 336,941 317,275
Non-current assets ERBEE 171,229 200,895
Current liabilities mEBAaE (225,199) (224,729)
Non-current liabilities JEMEBEE — —

Equity attributable to owners RRARERAEIEER

of the Company 195,250 202,472
Non-controlling interests FE P2 AR #E & 87,721 90,969
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42. INFORMATION OF SUBSIDIARIES 42. B AT EH(
(Continued)
Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries FEXEERESZHEESE
that have material non-controlling interests BATHIE
(Continued)
Xingxing Energy: (Continued) EERER: (HF)
2020 2019
—E-FHE —E-NF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETR ARET T
Revenue W = 581,430 627,730
Expenses (-2 (591,900) (603,754)
(Loss) profit and total comprehensive FR(EE) &N &
(expense) income for the year 2E(AX) WA LT (10,470) 23,976
(Loss) profit attributable to: LATA TR (EE) mH
Owners of the Company RRREE A (7,222) 16,541
Non-controlling interests I 15 Bk #E 2 (3,248) 7,435
2020 2019
—E-FHE —E-NF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AREBTR ARET T
Net cash (used in) from CEEEAA (T3 2
operating activities HeFR (3,594) 7,289
Net cash from (used in) wEEBMG (A2
investing activities HeFR 1,955 (6,873)
Net cash used in financing activities BEGTHMACREFHE (774) (10,515)
Net cash outflow IR & F (2,413) (10,099)
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42. INFORMATION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries

42. MEBASTIEE (&)

BEEXEERERZHEEE

that have material non-controlling interests Pt B & Sl =¥ 1R (&)
(Continued)
Huixin Energy : BE 2% 88 R
2020 2019
—EEHE —T-NF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARET T
Current assets MEEE 200,135 77,009
Non-current assets IERBEE 324,442 351,480
Current liabilities mEAE (585,384) (465,654)
Non-current liabilities EmBAE — —
Equity attributable to owners RARERAEIERER
of the Company (41,958) (25,644)
Non-controlling interests JE 15 AR #E 2 (18,849) (11,521)
2020 2019
—EEHE —T-NF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AREFR ARET T
Revenue U = 426,946 489,795
Expenses 2 (450,588) (475,675)
(Loss) profit and total comprehensive FR(EE) B X
(expense) income for the year 2EFAX) WAL (23,642) 14,120
(Loss) profit attributable to: LA A AR (E518) & F -
Owners of the Company ViN/NETEZ PN (16,314) 9,743
Non-controlling interests FEVE IR AR (7,328) 4,377
Net cash (used in) from operating activities #E & Z7% (FTR)MEZ
R e 3 (19,914) 114,139
Net cash (used in) from investing activities 1% & & E) (FTA) FT1S 2
W& FE (247) 2,993
Net cash from (used in) financing activities B E EB TS (FTA) 2
ReIFHE 26,929 (119,800)
Net cash inflow (outflow) BemACRL) F58 6,768 (2,668)
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42. INFORMATION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries

42. MEBASTIEE (&)
BEEXIEKRERZHERSE

that have material non-controlling interests Pt B & Sl =¥ 1R (&)
(Continued)
Huaheng Energy : ETHRIR:
2020 2019
—EEHE —T-NF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARET T
Current assets MEEE 84,473 65,162
Non-current assets ERBEE 183,340 185,046
Current liabilities mEEE (100,026) (150,334)
Non-current liabilities EREBEE (37,000) (11,000)
Equity attributable to owners RARERAEIERER
of the Company 64,986 44,160
Non-controlling interests IE ¥ f% == 65,801 44,714
2020 2019
—EEHE —T-NF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AREFR ARET T
Revenue U = 404,163 306,390
Expenses X (362,250) (296,216)
Profit and total comprehensive income FARRMNEEEBAERE
for the year 41,913 10,174
Profit attributable to: PATR A £ FE A & F)
Owners of the Company ViN/NETEZ PN 20,826 5,055
Non-controlling interests FE 1 AR = 21,087 5,119
Net cash from operating activities REXBREZHE ¥R 30,707 4,427
Net cash used in investing activities KREEBMAZHE €38 (9,505) (12,71)
Net cash (used in) from financing activities B & )& 8) (FTA) T 5
W& FE (31,143) 19,552
Net cash (outflow) inflow B ORH)ARAFEE (9.941) 11,268
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43.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF")
Scheme for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The
assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the
Group and in funds under the control of trustee.

For members of the MPF Scheme, the Company contributes
5% of relevant payroll costs to the scheme, which
contribution is matched by employees but subject to a
maximum amount of HKD1,500 (equivalent to RMB1,330) per
month for each employee thereafter, which is matched by
employee. In addition, the Group’s contribution to a state-
managed retirement benefit scheme in the PRC are expensed
as fall due while the state government in the PRC undertakes
to assume the retirement benefit obligations of all existing
and future retirees of the qualified staff in the PRC. The
Group is required to contribute certain percentage of payroll
costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits.

The retirement benefit cost charged to the profit or loss
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income represents contributions payable to
the schemes by the Group at the rates specified in the rules
of the schemes.

The total expense recognised in profit or loss of
RMB5,229,000 (2019: RMB6,449,000) represents contributions
paid to these plans by the Group at rates specified in the
rules of the respective plans.

43.

B KR FIEHE
AEBAERENEBZLARER
RUBSIMEAES (BES)EE -
HEAERAEBZAES MK
B BRTANRSHAEE -

ARP) R & T8 K B AT ERV (R
REBIEKAZS% (BETMELE
BER) HRREBERERESARS
1,500 7T (FHE RN AKR1,3307T) © &
BEREREER - N RNEER
FEREEE 2 BRIRE G E 2 B3R
Ty B HA B 51 4B B 52 - i R B AT
HERERMBRERARRFEZEE
RERBEZRABHNEME - A&H
ARTERARZE THEARERNK
BAGTEIHAR  ARBHRHES -

REaBahEtE2HBARERZE
i B AN BR 2 R OR AR B A AN 15 A 52 (8
BE R 2 E L RAF XM Z

K -

BEPHERZ ARES2290005T (=
T—NE: AR#6,449,0007T) 2 FIX
R I A E IR B &R A AT
FIAZ b Rm St a8 2K -
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44. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

The following assets were pledged at end of each reporting
period as collaterals for certain banking facilities granted to

44.

EEHRR
THREERNSREMRETIER - (E
AFEEERETROBEZER

the Group: Ao
2020 2019
i i =3 —E-NF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBFT
Property, plant and equipment M BERZE 376,505 411,087
Prepaid lease payments AT E — 19176
Right-of-use assets EREEE 18,274 —
Pledged bank deposits BIKIHRITE R 557,000 368,189
951,779 798,452

As at the end of each reporting period, equity interests
owned by the Company or the Group in certain subsidiaries
and an associate, and certain shares of the Company owned
by Champion Ever and Galaxy King, were pledged to banks

to secure loan facilities granted to the Group.

As at 31 March 2020, the other borrowing of HKD40,000,000
(equivalent to RMB36,602,000) (2019: HKD80,000,000
(equivalent to RMB68,387,000)) as set out in note 37 is
secured by (i) the charge over the entire issued share capital
of Fully World Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Group, to which Firmwill Investment Limited, another wholly
owned subsidiary of the Group, execute as a security in
favour of the lender, and (i) a floating charge over all or any
part of the property and/or assets of Fully World Limited to
be created by Fully World Limited as security in favour of the

lender.
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45. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 45. HZE R AEH
(a) Operating lease commitments (a) EEHERIE
The Group as lessee REBEREEA
2019
—E-NF
RMB'000
ARETT
Minimum lease payments paid under RAEEENZRAEYELSE
operating leases for its office premises HAZEHEE
during the year 2,815
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RBEBRR - NEERBETATH
commitment for future minimum lease payments under HAERNEN 2 RRKEMR
non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as TREZIHBERAT
follows:
2019
—E-NF
RMB’000
AR T T
Within one year —FR 2,849
In the second to fifth year inclusive MEZRF BREEREME 2,307
5,156
Operating lease payments represented rental payable REMERBEREAEERE T
by the Group for certain office premises. Leases were MAEYERNZES - BT
negotiated for an average term of one to two years. RERER > PHEBR—EM
E o
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45. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

(Continued)
(b) Contingent liabilities

As at 31 March 2020, the Group issued financial
guarantee to the banks in respect of bank loans
obtained by associates of RMB115,000,000 (2019:
RMB135,000,000) which are jointly and severally

liable with other investors of the associates.

amount represents the maximum amount that could
be required to be paid if the guarantee was called
upon in entirety by the banks. In the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the fair value of the financial
guarantee contract is insignificant at initial recognition
and the directors consider that the ECL of the financial
guarantee contracts are minimal at the end of the
reporting periods and determined that no impairment
loss is necessary. Should the actual outcome be
different from expected, impairment losses will be
recognised in the consolidated financial statements.
Details of the impairment assessment of financial

guarantee contracts are set out in note 47.

46. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's

overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts
(which include bank and other borrowings, lease liabilities
and guaranteed notes disclosed in notes 37, 38 and 39
respectively, net of bank balance and cash) and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued

share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. As a part of this review, the directors of the
Company consider the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. Based on recommendations of
the directors of the Company, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends,
new share issue, the issue of new debts or the redemption

of existing debts.
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a)

(b)

Categories of financial instruments

47. &gt TR

(a)

EMIESHE

2020 2019
> ok~ o3 3 —E-hE
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARETT ARBTTT
Financial assets EREE
Financial assets at amortised cost HEERAANR 2
TREE 2,975,572 3,048,328
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEFABZRZ
TREE 7,744 7,500
Derivative financial instrument THESRIA 2,500 3,150
Financial liabilities EREE
Amortised cost B 5 B AR 2,530,828 2,881,149

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments are trade and
other receivables, amount due from a non-controlling
equity owner of a subsidiary, long-term receivable,
amounts due from associates, amount due from a
related party, pledged bank deposits, bank balances
and cash, financial asset at fair value through profit
or loss, trade payables and other liabilities, amount
due to an associate, lease liabilities, bank and other
borrowings and guaranteed notes. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.

The management monitors and manages the financial
risks relating to the operations of the Group through
internal risk assessment which analyses exposures by
degree and magnitude of risks. These risks include
market risk (including currency risk and interest rate
risk), credit risk, and liquidity risk. The policies on
how to mitigate these risks are sets out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

(b)

7T

HHEEAMEEEERBK

AEEZETESRTABREES
R Eptb e AR SR - B U — BT
NA—BERBEHEAAR
R REERFIA - BB E R
AR - R — BB RE ALK
R BEEARITER - RITER
kRE  BAFEFABRDED
TREE  BIEMNERKEM

BfE BABERARRIEA HE
BfE ROTRHEMEEUAREE

REW - RS MIALHIE
B % 46 7 Y R B o

EEEEBATRRMGE (D
BB 2 18 E R KN BE 1 e B 3R
EAREEERR VHRE
ZERREeREMmERER(BEE
ERRENEER) EERR
RREEE R o a0 RE K %
FRRZBRENTX - EEE
BN E R R AR E
B 215 15 DA R B 0B R i
17 °
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 47. =M I A (&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) MBEEEEHERBRK
policies (Continued) (%)
Market risk ™5 &
The Group's activities expose primarily to the market rEEZEBRRTIERER .
risks of changes in exchange rates, interest rates and MEZHREMERRR 2T
other price risk. There has been no significant change BRB - RZEFE  AEEE
to the Group's exposure to market risks or the manner fremBERIEEREREGE
in which it manages and measures the risk over the ZRBHENLEERES -
years.
(i) Currency risk (i) B e
Certain subsidiaries of the Company have entered AR BEZHMBARE
into foreign currency transactions, which expose RIVINER S - BUEARK
the Group to foreign currency risk. = [ ER 51 EE EL B o
The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign R EHER - AEE A
currency denominated monetary assets and Kot EBEERER
monetary liabilities at the end of reporting period BREZEEENT:
are as follows:
Assets Liabilities
BE afs
2020 2019 2020 2019

—g-%F -T-NEF ZB-BE -FTNE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFTE ARSTT AR®FE ARSTR

usD X 241 31 71,374 67,233
HKD BT 1,030 1,582 317,904 333,940
The Group currently does not have a foreign 7N £ [ 3R B 7 4 S S
currency hedging policy. However, management BE- A EEEQE
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will EONERR W SR E T E
consider hedging significant foreign currency B R H R E RN R
exposure should the need arise. % o
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

47. €T R (48)

(b) HHEBEEEERBK

policies (Continued) (%)
Market risk (Continued) ™5 E ke (E)
(i) Currency risk (Continued) () EEEEE)
Sensitivity analysis BREE DT
The following table details the Group’s sensitivity TRENAEEHAREK
to a 5% (2019: 5%) increase and decrease in HBEBING EF KT ¥5%
RMB against relevant foreign currencies. The ZE—NF5%) 2 BURK
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding EHE - HRELTER
foreign currency denominated monetary items TN EHE 2 B R AT
and adjusts their translation at the end of the BE¥IEE  WAHREHR
reporting period for a 5% (2019: 5%) change AN [E R Z B)5% (ZF
in foreign currency rates. 5% (2019: 5%) is the —j'LE 5%) TEE H % -
sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign 5% (ZZE—NEF : 5%) 1A
currency risk internally to key management TEEBAERILERIN
personnel and represents management'’s m@ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁZ@(@fﬁtt
assessment of the reasonably possible change K -UTRREERBHINEG
in foreign exchange rates. A negative number [ERAIRE S IR BB 27T 1h o
below indicates an increase in loss for the year TXBEERTARKEHIE
(2019: decrease in profit for the year) where RMB 8B B E5%FT A AN
weakening 5% against the relevant currencies. For BEEREM(ZZE-hF:
a 5% strengthening of RMB against the relevant REZRABD) o AR
currency, there would be an equal and opposite Eﬁﬁﬁ?hﬁgﬂ'@S%ﬁ—r -
impact on the loss (2019: profit) for the year. rEEEBER(CE-NEF:
/ﬁnﬁc‘J)Hﬁ1ﬁﬁXﬁ1§Z$ﬁﬁ,
%E °
2020 2019
i e =3 —hF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBFT
usD ETT
Impact on the loss HAFEER
(2019: profit) for the year —E-NEF RN cEE (3,557) (3,346)
HKD BT
Impact on the loss HAFEERE
(2019: profit) for the year (ZE—NF G f)) 2 ¥ & (15,844) (16,618)
(i) Interest rate risk (i) FE =
The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate ANEE B E IR 1T 4 88 IR 1T
risk due to the fluctuation of the prevailing market BEEE (DARBRITER
interest rate on bank balances and the variable M &= R B A R R 17 P R
rate bank borrowings which carry at prevailing MEFHEZFBABIZER
deposit interest rates and variable rates based on 1770 3% F &% B ifn 8 BR 2
the interest rates quoted by the People’s Bank of WemENERR
China, respectively.
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(if)  Interest rate risk (Continued)
The Group's fair value interest rate risk relates
primarily to its fixed rate pledged bank deposits,
long-term receivable, fixed rate bank and
other borrowings, guaranteed notes and lease
liabilities. The Group currently does not have an
interest rate hedging policy to hedge its exposure
to interest rate risk. However, the management
will consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

For the variable-rate bank balances at 31 March
2020 and 2019, the directors consider the Group's
exposure to cash flow interest rate risk is minimal
taking into account the minimal fluctuation on
market interest rate. Accordingly, no sensitivity
analysis on interest rate risk on bank balances is
presented.

The sensitivity analyses below have been
prepared based on the exposure to interest
rates for variable-rate borrowings at the end
of each reporting period which was assumed
to be outstanding for the whole year and the
stipulated change taking place at the beginning
of the financial year and held constant throughout
the year in the case of instruments that have
floating rates. A 50 basis points increase or
decrease for variable rate bank borrowings is
used when reporting interest rate risk internally
to key management personnel and represent
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rate.

If interest rates had been increased/decreased by
50 basis points in respect of borrowings and all
other variables were held constant, the Group's
post-tax loss (2019: profit) would increase/
decrease by approximately RMB1,580,000 (2019:
decrease/increase by RMB327,000) for the year.
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

47. €T R (48)
(b) HEEMEEHERBR

policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Other price risk
The Group is exposed to price risk on derivative
financial instrument in relation to an interest in an
associate as set out in note 21 which is measured
at FVTPL. The fair value will be affected either
positively or negatively, amongst others, by the
changes in settlement risk from Sellers and the
underlying fair value of the 34.5% equity interest
in Lvdong Shuiyun Company. No sensitivity
analysis is presented as the directors consider the
Group's exposure to the price risk on derivative
financial instrument is insignificant.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 March 2020, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the
Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of
the respective recognised financial assets as stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position and
the amount financial guarantee provided by the Group
as disclosed in note 45. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements to cover
its credit risks associated with its financial assets and
financial guarantee contracts except that settlement of
certain trade receivables are backed by bills issued by
reputable banks.

(&)

™% A b ()

(i) E 1B 1R
7K % [ T i BfY RE 21 P 4%
AFEFABDETFED
ERBERRZEEAH
WiTE eI A ZERE
B RFEKZD (EHE
B W& E R R KA
KB R T 34.5% M R
AT EZIE@ESRA R
E-HRESRA AK
EEENTESR TAE
BRERLTEKX I E
2HNHEEDN

FERBEBEFG
RZZE-_TF=A=+—H &
SEEBREAEERR TR
B BRRABREmMLLZAE
HERRcHEEREERN
FTASPTIE BB v AN B IR A BT 7S
BERe®E ZEERBRESEY
FHREBTETMEAEEE
XEEEE  AEEVYEEEE
Al $5 98 G ok H fth (5 B 1B SR 18
NREESREERPFER
GHEBZEERR  HEETE
SEWBERAMBRITELH
EEEN -
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
assessing the potential customer’s credit quality,
determination of credit limits, credit approvals
and makes periodic collective assessments as well
as individual assessment on the recoverability of
receivables based on historical settlement records,
reasons for extended repayment period and past
experience. The Group only accepts bills issued or
guaranteed by reputable PRC banks if trade receivables
are settled by bills and therefore the management
of the Group considers the credit risk arising from
the discounted bills is insignificant. Other monitoring
procedures are in place to ensure that follow-up action
is taken to recover overdue debts. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group's
credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on bank deposits and bank balances is
limited as such amounts are placed in banks with high
credit ratings assigned by PRC credit rating agencies
or state-owned banks located in the PRC.

In determining the ECL for bank balances and pledged
bank deposits, the management of the Group has
taken into account the estimated default loss rates
in reference to the international credit rating agency
and forward-looking information, as appropriate. There
had been no significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition. The management of the Group has
estimated the ECL basing on the carrying amounts of
bank balances and pledged bank deposits at the end of
the reporting period multiplying the estimated default
loss rates. The Group has considered the consistently
low historical default rate, and concluded that credit
risk inherent in the Group's outstanding bank deposits
and pledged bank deposits is insignificant.
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 40% (31
March 2019: 80%) and 83% (31 March 2019: 93%) of
the total trade receivables was due from the Group's
largest customer and the five largest customers
respectively within the oil and gas transactions
segment.

47. €T R (48)

(b)

%ﬁ‘%ﬂﬂ“”ﬂﬁ SR BUR
'IE

= & & B & 6 B 57 14 ()

AEBHREERRET  F
RESREWRRAENI0% (=
Z-NE=ZA=+—8:80%) &
83% (ZE—NF=ZHA=+—8:
93%) D RIRRAEE HRAR S
DEHORATPRAARTRE -

The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment REBAIEE R BT R &
comprises the following categories: BT R -
Internal Trade receivables/ Other financial assets/
credit rating  Description contract assets other items
BEHEWERR Hh&mMEE
ABEEFR #HE EHNEE HitlEE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default Lifetime ECL — 12-month ECL
and does not have any past-due not credit-impaired
amounts
e HFETMENRRRE SHEHEERRE — NREAEHEEBR
BY EEmaHRE EEERE
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates Lifetime ECL — 12-month ECL
but usually settle in full not credit-impaired
BRRE BEHRARTRIHEERER PHEREERE — L2EABRHEEER
ERGE-EY & EEERE
Doubtful There have been significant increases Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
in credit risk since initial recognition not credit-impaired not credit-impaired
through information developed
internally or external resources
A] &E BRADHIIBERAFER FHEHEERRE — 2URHEEEFE —
B V)i W LA SRS B L B BRE 5E N EEERE EEERE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is  Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
credit-impaired credit-impaired credit-impaired
B#E EEBRREELREERE SHEHEERRE — 2URHEEEE —
EERE EERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the Amount is written off ~ Amount is written off
debtor is in severe financial difficulty
and the Group has no realistic prospect
of recovery
i35 BRETEBABAREVBRE -  MEHSE MisHe®
H$%l1ﬁau%@/ﬁm7

TTFARIERER AT 2020 F 3R

177



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR A B 35 R AR B 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-T-TFEZA=t+ - ALEE

47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)
The table below details the credit risk exposures
of the Group’s financial assets, contract assets and
financial guarantee contracts which are subject to ECL

47. €T R (48)

(b) HHEBEEEERBK

(&)
1= & & B & r B 57 1d ()

TRFAFLAAEHERETRYE
EBEBRAENEREE 64
BENMBGERE O E R

assessment: EERR :
2020 2019
Gross Gross
External Internal  12-month or carrying carrying
Notes credit rating credit rating lifetime ECL amount amount
12@A=5 24 —EZ¥E ZT-NF
Bier SMEBIEEFR ABEETR BEHESER MREEE REABE
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARE®TET
Financial assets at  ZEEH B ANEKRE
amortised cost SHEE
Long-term receivable & Hi fE U 1B 22 N/A Loss  Credit impaired 5,088 —
~EA E18  (Lifetime ECL)
EERE
(CHEHGEEER)
N/A Low risk  Lifetime ECL — 5,088
i A BREKR 2HEHEESE
5,088 5,088
Trade receivables Z 5 IR R 27 N/A Low risk  Lifetime ECL 741,392 1,951,062
i A EREKR 2HEHEEER
AAA* Low risk  Lifetime ECL 175,000 79,000
AAA* EREKR 2HEHEEER
N/A Watch list  Lifetime ECL 1,425,035 —
i@ A BRRE 2HEHEEER
2,341,427 2,030,062
N/A Note (i) Lifetime ECL 54,115 221,798
iE A Ffi 5 () (provision matrix)
2HEHEEEE
(BEER)
N/A Loss  Credit impaired 3,301 2,011
T i A BB EERE
2,398,843 2,253,871
Dividend receivable JE U B B 27 N/A Note (i) 12-month ECL - 97,213
T i A MisEG) REAEHEEER
Consideration KB 27 N/A Note (i)  12-month ECL - 252,800
receivable ~EA MisEi) 12@ABEEERE
Other receivables H iy fE W 3R IB 27 N/A Note (i) 12-month ECL 12,332 7944
NEA M) 1REAEHEEER
Amounts due from FE o Bt & N R FROB 29 N/A Note (i) 12-month ECL 380 983
associates T i A MisEG) 1REAEHEEER
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 47. T A (4F)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) MBEEEEHERBRK
policies (Continued) (&)
Credit risk and impairment assessment = & [ B 2 Rk B 51 1k ()
(Continued)
2020 2019
Gross Gross
External Internal  12-month or carrying carrying
Notes credit rating credit rating lifetime ECL amount amount
1R2EA2H —E-EE ZZT-hE
fiat SMBIEETR AEBEETR BEHESBR R 48 {8 RE#E

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRE ARETR

Amount due from a LS B B A A FE 4R AR 30 N/A Note (i)  12-month ECL 1,204 1,204
non-controlling BaBEAZRE T iE A M) 1REAEHEEER
equity owner of a
subsidiary
Amount due froma  EREBEALZ 31 N/A Note (i) 12-month ECL = 1,866
related party ;A TER MFEG) 12EARBREEER
Pledged bank deposits B # # #1777 % 33 AAA? N/A  12-month ECL 557,000 368,189
AAA? TEA LEARBEEER
Bank balances RITHE R 33 AA-AAA? N/A  12-month ECL 29,302 67,101
AA-AAA? TER PREARSEEER
Other items HitIEE
Contract assets BRNEE 28 N/A Note (i) Lifetime ECL 3,446 3970
@A BiEE() 2BEHEEER
Financial guarantee ~ BTG {EIR &4 45 N/A Note (i)  12-month ECL 115,000 135,000
contract @A MisEG) REAEHEEER
* These represent credit rating grades of the relevant banks which * RERBHEBROBBIRITHREAT
issued the bills. BER -
# These represent credit rating grades originated from PRC credit t ZEERETEGEAFREBNERD
rating agencies. ARER -

TTERRIZEBRER AR 2020 £ 179



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR A B 35 AR B R

For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE_Z_ZF=A=+—HILEFE

47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Notes:

(i) Trade receivables and contract assets
For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group has
applied the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure
the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. Except for debtors with
significant outstanding balances or that are credit-impaired
and contract assets which are assessed individually, the Group
determines the ECL on the remaining trade receivables by
using a provision matrix, grouped based on past due status.

Trade receivables with significant outstanding balances and
that are credit-impaired with gross carrying amounts of
RMB2,166,427,000 and RMB3,301,000 (2019: RMB1,951,062,000
and RMB2,011,000) respectively, as at 31 March 2020 were
assessed individually and loss allowances of RMB20,267,000
and RMB3,301,000 (2019: RMB4,780,000 and RMB2,011,000)
have been recognised respectively. Contract assets with
carrying amounts of RMB3,446,000 (2019: RMB3,970,000) as
at 31 March 2020 were assessed individually and no loss
allowances (2019: nil) have been recognised as the lifetime
ECL involved in insignificant. The estimated loss rates
applied in each debtor with significant balances or that are
credit impaired are estimated with reference to the external
credit rating, historical default rates, past due status, current
conditions at the report date and are adjusted for forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort. The contract assets have substantially the same risk
characteristics as the trade receivables for the same type of
contracts. The Group has therefore concluded that the loss
rates for trade receivables are a reasonable approximation of
the loss rates for contract assets.

Trade receivables of RMB175,000,000 (2019: RMB79,000,000) as
at 31 March 2020 are backed by bills issued by reputable PRC
banks and therefore the management of the Group considers
the credit risk is insignificant and no loss allowances are
recognised.
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment

(Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(i) Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued)
Trade receivables of RMB54,115,000 (2019: RMB221,798,000) are
assessed based on provision matrix as at 31 March 2020 within
lifetime ECL (not credit impaired) and the average loss rate
is minimal. The estimated loss rates applied in each category
of debtors in the provision matrix are estimated based on
historical default rates, past due status, current conditions at
the report date of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort. The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure relevant information about specific debtors is updated.

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL that
has been recognised for trade receivables under the simplified

47. €T R (48)
(b) HEEMEEHERBR

(48)

1= & & B & r B 57 1d ()

M o

(i)

(&)

ESRKERRANEE (&)

E 5 FE W AR 5 A R #54,115,0007T
—E—NF: AR¥221,798,000
TR EHEHEEEBRA QL
ECBEREA)BER-T-_TF=
A=+—B0EEERETUTGE -
fFHEBERGN - REEEM
FEERARSEBAERA G
BIEERTIRIEEHANELELD
KEERRL RBEBHNE
A FOAMGE  YREET B
%Rk A% 0T B Al 15 K AT BE
MERIELAZE EEETHR
BN UEREBETEEBA
HEBEERBRIER -

TRINBREBEAEREDE
WERERANEHMBHERER

approach. HE) o
Lifetime ECL (not Lifetime ECL
credit-impaired) (credit-impaired) Total
2HEY 2HEY
EEEBES EEEBES
(EEERE) (EERE) @zt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®FTT AR®FTT AR®FTT
At as 1 April 2018 R-ZF-NEMA—H 2,848 2,206 5,054
Changes due to financial instruments RZZ-N\FEA—H
recognised as at 1 April 2018: BREBIAMLRNZE
— Impairment losses reversed — REBERERD (2,848) (195) (3,043)
New financial assets originated MEENSRMEE 4,780 — 4,780
As at 31 March 2019 R-ZF-A&E=ZA=+-H 4,780 2,011 6,791
Changes due to financial instruments BER=T—NFMA—H
recognised as at 1 April 2019: BRERIAMBBRNEE :
— Impairment losses recognised — BERRHRERERE 3,204 = 3,204
— Impairment losses reversed — BEEREESE (4,340) (66) (4,406)
New financial assets originated MEENGRHEE 16,623 1,356 17,979
As at 31 March 2020 R-F-FE=RA=+—-H 20,267 3,301 23,568
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment

(Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(ii) Other financial assets

The Group has assessed the financial position of the debtors
of other financial assets (excluding trade receivables and
contract assets) at the end of the reporting period using the
past due and historical loss information and concluded that
there has been no significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition. The Group also considered that the credit
risk on pledged bank deposits and bank balances is limited
since they are placed with banks with high credit ratings. After
assessment, the Group considered the prospect of recovery
of the long term receivable is remote due to the severe
financial difficulty of the counterparty and determined that
a full impairment should be made and an impairment loss of
RMBS5,088,000 is recognised in profit or loss. No loss allowance
is made for other financial assets (excluding trade receivables
and contract assets) except for a reversal of loss allowance
of RMB1,693,000 (2019: loss allowance of RMB1,693,000) for
dividend receivable was recognised in the profit or loss due
to the settlement of the balance during the year.

For financial guarantee contracts, the maximum amount that
the Group has guaranteed under the respective contracts was
RMB115,000,000 as at 31 March 2020 (2019: RMB135,000,000).
The Group has performed impairment assessment at the end
of the reporting period and concluded that there has been
no significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition
of the financial guarantee contracts. Accordingly, the loss
allowance for financial guarantee contracts issued by the
Group is measured at an amount equal to 12m ECL and no loss
allowance was recognised in the profit or loss.
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 47. &R I A (&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) MBEEEEHERBRK
policies (Continued) (48)
Credit risk and impairment assessment = & B B 3R B 71 14 (&)
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued) s (&)
(ii) Other financial assets (Continued) (ii) Hib e @& E (&)
The following tables show reconciliation of loss allowances that TRITESRERRSHERER
has been recognised for dividend receivable: BHEHER:
12-month ECL
1R2ERAEHEEEE
RMB’000
ARBFTT
At as 1 April 2018 R-¥E—-N\EWA—H =
New financial assets originated HEEANSREE 1,693
As at 31 March 2019 AZE-AE=ZA=+—H 1,693
Changes due to financial instruments recognised ER=-T—hNFMNAE—HER SR IAMLH
as at 1 April 2019: WE:
— Impairment loss reversed = }%@‘;ﬁiﬁg i (1,693)

As at 31 March 2020 R-T-FHE=A=+—H =

Liquidity risk

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and the flexibility through the use
of borrowings. The management closely monitors the
liquidity position of each company within the Group
and expects to have adequate sources of funding to
finance the Group's operations.

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group's operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management
monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures
compliance with loan covenants. The management also
take remedial actions regarding the default occurred
during the year including negotiation with lender to
extend the borrowing and seeking other sources of
financing to minimise the impact to the Group.

The Group relies on guaranteed notes and bank and
other borrowings as significant sources of liquidity.

TUF RRAE

REBESRERE
AEBEZERNERNARBE
MEESEBHEREZE T
- ERETRYERARESER
AZRBESKI  BHER
RESRBERAEEZEER
HER -
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

47. ST R (48)

(b)

HBEEREEEERBUR

policies (Continued) (48)
Liquidity risk (Continued) ABESER(E)

The following tables detail the Group's contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities. The tables have
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on
which the Group can be required to pay. Specifically,
other borrowing of RMB36,602,000 that the Group
has defaulted in repayment during the year ended
31 March 2020 is included in the earliest time band
regardless of the probability of the lenders choosing to
exercise their rights for requesting immediate payment.
The maturity dates for other non-derivative financial
liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates.
The table includes both interest and principal cash
flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate,
the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate
at the end of the reporting period.

TRANAEEERABENGD
A - ZRERBDERAEH
AR ERMNFNREAPRES
BMEENARBRASRERH -
ARgms  ARERBE_T—
ZFEZA=1T-HALFEERE
R H A £ B A R #36,602,000
TRIAZRPREE - T E R
ANBEBITEERNERTAX
Mrmlgets - R IEITE SR A
BZRHATDRIEREERA
HET - 2XkBeaMERkEAE
BAEERE - MAERERF
SETE - AIRBREBIIRE R

Al F

EHRZFE -

Weighted  On demand Total
average or within 61-180 181-365 1-2 2-5 undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 60 days days days years years cash flows amount
miE REREH kBRBEE
FHFx R60KM  61F180K 181E365K 1E28 2E5H REAE BREE
% RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFRE ARBTRT ARETR ARBFTT ARETR ARBFRE ARBTR
As at 31 March 2020 R-B-TE
=A=+-H
Non-derivative financial FUTELHER

liabilities
Trade payables and other BHRARR R

liabilities Hih 8 & 942,575 - - - - 942,575 942,575
Lease liabilities HEAE 4.75 400 799 624 611 209 2,643 2,543
Amount due to an associate  EfTH & DA FIE 28,947 - - - - 28,947 28,947
Bank borrowings RITEE

— fixed rate — BEEF = 2.87-5.79 8,515 338,746 425,745 - - 773,006 756,404

— variable rate — 3B 4.90-6.50 50,010 330,680 2,981 34,431 3,026 421,128 413,000
Other borrowings HipfE &

— fixed rate — B ® 8.00-10.00 109,847 - - - - 109,847 108,600
Guaranteed notes BERRE 9.50 297,588 - - - - 297,588 281,302
Financial guarantee contract BSERAN 115,000 = = = _ 115,000 -

1,552,882 670,225 429,350 35,042 3,235 2,690,734 2,533,371
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

47. €T R (48)

(b) B4 %5 E b

EEBERBK

. o . =
policies (Continued) (%)
Liquidity risk (Continued) ABESER(E)
Weighted ~ On demand Total
average or within 61-180 181-365 1-2 2-5  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 60 days days days years years cash flows amount
miE RERER AUERRE
RRZLIES R6ORA  61Z180K  181E365K 1225 2E5% mERE REE
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFT ARBTT ARETR ARBTT ARETR AREFT ARETR
As at 31 March 2019 R-ZF-hE
=A=+-8
Non-derivative financial FTESHER

liabilities
Trade payables and other BHRARR R

liabilities Hh 8 & — 1,463,806 — — — — 1,463,806 1,463,806
Amount due to an associate FE B & R AR = 37,057 = = = = 37,057 37,057
Bank borrowings BITEE

— fixed rate — BEME 4.10-7.50 38,304 612,765 314,736 = — 965,805 902,113

— variable rate — 2EHE 4.90-6.31 716 44,989 22,808 4,443 7,276 80,232 77,000
Other borrowings Hig &

— fixed rate — BT x 8.00-10.00 2,117 72,662 4,507 68,452 — 148,338 136,176
Guaranteed notes BRRRE 9.50 3,372 6,688 10,342 259,094 — 279,496 264,997
Financial guarantee contract ~ B ER A4 — 135,000 — — — — 135,000 —

1,680,972 737,104 352,393 331,989 7,276 3,109,734 2,881,149

The amount included above for financial guarantee
contract is the maximum amount the Group could be
required to settle under the arrangement for the full
guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed by the
counterparty to the guarantee. Based on expectations
at the end of the reporting period, the Group considers
that it is more likely than not that no amount will be
payable under the arrangement. However, this estimate
is subject to change depending on the probability of
the counterparty claiming under the guarantee which
is a function of likelihood that the financial receivables
held by the counterparty which are guaranteed suffer
credit losses.

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities is
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates
differ to those estimates of interest rates determined
at the end of each reporting period.

JCF
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 47. £R T & (4&)
(c) Fair values () 2F{H

Fair value of the Group's financial assets that are REEMEENRQNTVENE
measured at fair value on a recurring basis ZEEEERMEEZLATE
Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured at AEEETERMEEINE®R
fair value at the end of each reporting period. The HHRURQFERFE - TREM
following table gives information about how the fair FHETZEeMEERTE
values of these financial assets are determined (in B 75 E (LE R TR 2 b E i)
particular, the valuation technique(s) used), as well IWNEAFEE=EH AENA]
as the level of the fair value hierarchy into which the BREEHAFTEFTEDE
fair value measurements are categorised (levels 1 NRTEER(E—EEF=H)2E
to 3) based on the degree to which the fair value is &

observable.

Fair value Valuation technique(s)

Items Fair Value hierarchy & key inputs

I5H AFE AFEEFER RFERHREEGANE

Derivative financial RMB2,500,000 Level 3 Discounted cash flow method
instrument — Forward (2019: nil) was used to capture the
Contract (note 21) present value of the receipt

of consideration by the Group
as forward price based on an
appropriate discount rate (note)

MTEEMIA — BHE4 AR¥2500,0007T E34% Al KAMRREREEZRBEEN
(Bt 5E21) (ZE-hEF:T) MIREAEAEERRRED
REEREER T
Derivative financial nil Level 3 Binomial Option pricing Model
instrument — Put option  (2019: RMB3,150,000)
(note 21)
PTEERIA —RHHE & E34% Al —IEAHEEERN
(F 5E21) —T-hEF:
A R #3,150,0007T)

Note: Significant unobservable inputs of derivative financial Miek: TESRIANEATABEY
instruments include the discount rate, the settlement risk from BEERERR - BEHFMNEERER
the Sellers and the underlying fair value of the equity interest RIRERENERATE - AR
of the investments. No sensitivity analysis is presented as the RAREEFRARITESRIAMN
directors of the Company consider the movement in fair value AFEESPHATEKN WAL ES
of derivative financial instrument is insignificant. S BREE DT °
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c)

Fair values (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis
(Continued)

47. ﬁﬁgla(nﬁ)

() AF{E(E)
REEMEEUAFETE
ZEEEERMEEZLATFE
(%)

Fair value Valuation technique(s)

Fair value hierarchy & key inputs
AFEE AFEER FHEBRAREAZHGANE
Financial assets at RMB7,744,000 Level 2 Discounted cash flow:
FVTPL (note 32) (2019: RMB7,500,000) Future cash flows are estimated based
on expected return, discounted
at a rate that reflects the risk of
underlying investments.
BAFEFAEZN  ARMK7744,0007T E28 BMIRIME N
Bl & & (P 5E32) —E-NF: RRBEREBRBEEPRRRMEE @ 1
A R #7,500,0007T) J B 4B 8 1% & R B ) A SR AL IR o

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements
The movement of derivative financial instrument is set
out in note 21.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the net loss on
fair value change of derivative financial instruments
of RMB650,000 (2019: gain on fair value change
RMB3,150,000) is recognised to profit or loss.

In estimating the fair value of derivative financial
instrument, the Group uses market-observable data
to the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are
not available, the Group engages third party qualified
valuer to perform the valuation of the derivative
financial instrument. The directors of the Company work
closely with the qualified external valuer to establish
the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the
model.

There were no transfers between the different levels of
the fair value hierarchy in the current and prior periods.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values.

E=ZRATVEFEZHER
MESRTRAZEFHHNKE
21 °

REBEE-_ZT-_TEF=F=+—H
HEE AT EATE
HE) 7 18 F R A R 650,000
T(ZCE—NEF:- A FEZFHUK
2= A R #3,150,0007T) W 18 %
E@ab

REFITEESRTAZAYE
B ASEXAAAEEAN T
BRAIBREE - WAESE &
AlAE AREEERE=7
BERMGEMSITESR TAE
TEE - ARBEFRG BRI
ERfAE R 2 A EA B B AL
BEMERM kB AE -

RAEE NGB E R - TRAQF
BEER2EALEES -

ARAEZRRNEEUBRE
NIZBHERKAARZERMEE
ke@ARzEEELEZEAFE
BE -
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48. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities
are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will
be, classified in the Group's consolidated statement of cash
flows as cash flows from financing activities.

48. A GTHELABRZHER

TRAMZIAEERETHHEL
WEEEE HPeRRe MRS
2 METPFELZAENBE
EARBRERESHNAREGRAR
EREXTHIEABELRDAERS

s =
LB °

Bank and
Lease Guaranteed other
liabilities notes borrowings Total
RITR
HEEE AERER Hihg & st
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARBTT AREFTIT ARBTIT ARBTET
At 1 April 2018 H-B—NFmA—B — — 622,708 622,708
Financing cash flows MERESRE — 233,109 416,398 649,507
Interest expense BN =3 — 21,338 66,624 87,962
Exchange difference VE R AE%R — 10,550 9,559 20,109
At 31 March 2019 R-E—hAhE=A=+—H — 264,997 1,115,289 1,380,286
Adjustment upon application & & /& B 15 3k & % 8l
of HKFRS 16 65 12 1E H Y A B 4,489 — — 4,489
As at 1 April 2019 (restated) RZ-Z—hLFWMA—H
(&g E351) 4,489 264,997 1,115,289 1,384,775
Financing cash flows MERESRE (2,328) (27,486) 79,981 50,167
Interest expense BN 167 25,818 74,425 100,410
Exchange difference fE R =% — 17,973 8,309 26,282
New lease NHEE 215 — — 215
At 31 March 2020 R-E-_FTF=H=+—H 2,543 281,302 1,278,004 1,561,849
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49.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
OTHER DISCLOSURES

Balances with related parties are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position and the related notes.

Save as disclosed in respective notes above, the Group had

49. FRAZEANEI XS REMIKE

HEMEALZERZ2INNEEMB
R K M AR L o

B LA EREMEREEN  AREZ

the following transactions with related parties: EHREALRSGWAT:
2020 2019
—FEE —T-NEF
RMB'000 RMB’'000
ARETR ARBTT
(a) Purchase of LNG from an (a) M—EBMEATEE
associate WILR AR
— Guiran Pipeline Company —EMEBR 220,365 236,346
(b) Purchase of oil and gas contract (b) E—ZHFHAEANLTE
from a related party BELHMRXAREN
— Circle Energy (Hong Kong) Co., — TTRRER) A
Limited (note) {ERNCIC D) —_ 287,308
(c) Sales of oil and gas contract to (c) E—ZBEEANLH
a related party ERMRRARED
— Circle Energy (Hong Kong) Co., — TFRREBE
Limited (note) [ENCINC D 466,161 —
Note: The company is a subsidiary of Circle Energy. Miz: ZRAIRTFRRZIMERR -

As at 31 March 2020, the amount due to Guiran Pipeline
Company of RMB28,947,000 (2019: RMB37,057,000) was
included in the Group's amount due to an associate. The
amount due from Circle Energy (Hong Kong) Co., Limited
of RMB268,720,000 (2019: nil) was included in the Group's
trade receivables. The amount due from Circle Energy of
RMB1,866,000 as at 31 March 2019 which was arisen from
sales of LNG in prior years which was included in amount
due from a related party.

RZBE-ZTHE=A=+—H ENER
& B A FIE AR 28,947,000t (=
T— N4 AR¥37,057,0005T) 25FA
RNEBEFER—RHEBEQRRE - B
TFREREB)ERARREARE
268,720,000t (ZE — N F: T)E &
AREENEZGREKER - R=F—
NEZA=+—HERTFERKE
AR #1,866,000 L HELEBBAEFE
HERERAGD It ARK—FHE
BE ALTHIER -
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49. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND

OTHER DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(d) Compensation of key management
personnel
The remuneration of members of key management of
the Group including the directors and chief executive
of the Company during the year are as follows:

49. ERAEANTX S RHMIEE

(%)
(d) TE=EEANEZ H

AEBZTEEHEXE(BRE
ARBZEERITHAR) 2F
EEEmT

2020 2019

—B=BE  -T-AF

RMB’'000 RMB’000

AREFR ARBETT

Short-term benefits 5 HE A 9,490 9,751
Post-employment benefits iR K18 A 494 606
9,984 10,357

50. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 29 April 2020, the Company, Champion Ever, Galaxy
King, Mr. Wang and an independent third party entered
into the amendment agreement (“Amendment Agreement”),
pursuant to which the parties have conditionally agreed to
extend the maturity date under the Guaranteed Notes to 30
April 2022 and to revise certain terms of the Subscription
Agreement and the note instrument dated 4 May 2018
("Note Instrument”) executed by the Company. All the
conditions precedent under the Amendment Agreement
have been satisfied, the undertaking of the Company, the
revised terms and the extension of the maturity date of
the Subscription Agreement and the Note Instrument have
become effective on 4 May 2020. Further details of this
transaction are set out in the Company’s announcements
dated 29 April 2020 and 4 May 2020.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR GE

o =1

For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE_Z_ZF=A=+—HILEFE

51. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY

Statement of financial position of the Company at the end

51. XABMBRAER

RB|EHR - AT 2B AR R EER

of the reporting period is summarised as follows: Btz
2020 2019
—E-EHF —E-NF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AREBTR ARET T
Non-current assets IERBEE
Investment in a subsidiary RBRARZIEE 1,205,415 2,597,910
Amounts due from subsidiaries & W BT B8 R B 3R IE 329,028 862,163
1,534,443 3,460,073
Current assets mENEE
Other receivables H {th B UL BR 3R 42 42
Bank balances and cash RITHEBREE S 407 977
Amounts due from subsidiaries & W B B8 R B 3R 407,436 100,414
407,885 101,433
Current liabilities mEAaE
Other payables H A FE 5 BR 3K 41 157
Other borrowings HEEE 108,600 69,498
Guaranteed notes BERER 281,302 —
389,943 69,655
Net current assets MEBEEFR 17,942 31,778
Total assets less current liabilities REERRBERE 1,552,385 3,491,851
Capital and reserves MR &
Share capital [N 551,378 551,378
Reserves (note 52) & % (M4 7552) 1,001,007 2,608,798
Total equity - E 1,552,385 3,160,176
Non-current liabilities EmBAE
Other borrowings HtgE = 66,678
Guaranteed notes BERER — 264,997
— 331,675
1,552,385 3,491,851
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE_Z_ZF=A=+—HILEFE

52. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

52. KA EI#EE

Share Other Translation Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
BoiE HitbHEE BERE it st
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETRT ARBTT ARBTT ARBT
(note)
(P &)
At 1 April 2018 RZZE-N\FMA—AH 4,452,014 62,921 (178,113) (116,780) 4,220,042
Loss and total comprehensive FREELEHEF L5
expense for the year — — — (1,626,138) (1,626,138)
Issue of shares B1IRHG 14,894 — — — 14,894
At 31 March 2019 RZZE-—NE=A=+—H 4,466,908 62,921 (178,113) (1,742,918) 2,608,798
Loss and total comprehensive F R E1E Kk 2 HFH X 85
expense for the year - - - (1,607,791) (1,607,791)
At 31 March 2020 RZZ-ZF=RA=+—H 4,466,908 62,921 (178,113)  (3,350,709) 1,001,007

Note: The other reserve represents the credit arising from the capital
reduction where the par value of each existing share was reduced by
the cancellation of the paid-up capital on each existing share in prior

years.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020

BE-F-FF=A=T-ALFE

53. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 53. B ASIH1E

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31 March 2020 and

2019 are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/ Place of

Nominal value
of issued ordinary
share/paid-up

KRR BE_EFR T —NLF=
A=+—HZHMBRARFBWOT:

Percentage of
nominal value of
issued share capital/
registered capital held

Name of subsidiary registration  operation registered capital by the Company Principal activities
HEMAIL ERMTLEREE FARABHCRTRAEE/
HEASEHE i b B SR GREAMEX gMEXZER TEEH
2020 2019
ZBZ%E _TNH
Ying Luen International Investment Hong Kong Hong Kong HKD240,000,000 100.0% 100.0%  Investment holding and oil
Limited* B8 S 240,000,000/ 7T contracts trading
BREABREERAA REZERREMENER
Union Honor Limited* BVI BVI HKD464,332,742 100.0% 100.0%  Investment holding
BRERAF EBEAE EBEXKEE 40433274287 REER
BEMTZHREBRDFE" (note b) PRC PRC RMB427,200,000 100.0% 100.0%  Investment holding and sales
TF M RAER AR (M Eb) HE $ (Registered capital: of liquefied natural gas
RMB957,000,000) RAZBRRBERELRAR
A R #427,200,0007T
(EMER: ARE
957,000,0007T)
BRLEMEERRER A PRC PRC RMB120,000,000 69.0% 69.0%  Production and sale of LNG
Xingxing Energy (note c) FE F A R #120,000,0007T EERHERILRAR
SESHTEZLRER R (M Ec)
EMMEREREB AR PRC PRC RMB70,000,000 69.0% 69.0%  Production and sale of LNG
Huixin Energy (note c) H F A K #70,000,0007C EERBEERILRAR
EMTERERERAA (M)
EMEZHRREFRAR* PRC PRC RMBA40,000,000 50.0% 50.0%  Sale of piped gas
Huaheng Energy (note a) HE f A R #40,000,0007T HEEBRAR
EMNETHRREBRAR (HEa)
FEEEZMABERETLAT hotec) PRC PRC RMB26,700,000 57.3% 57.3%  Sales of vehicle gas at
HEZZMEEREE DR (i) H HE (Registered capital: refuelling stations and
RMB26,700,000) LNG
AR 26,700,000 HEMAAKERARR
(EMER: ARE RIERAR
26,700,0007T)
EMMEERMRARDF (note ¢ PRC PRC RMB10,000,000 69.0% 69.0%  Provision of logistics service
EMNTEZNRARAR (M) e e A K #10,000,0007 REDRRS
EMETREBRAF* (hote ¢) PRC PRC RMB22,800,000 100.0% 1000%  Investment holding
AMETREAR AR (i 5Ec) T P AR #22,800,0007C REER

TTFARIERER AT 2020 F 3R
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For the year ended 31 March 2020

BE-F-FF=A=T-ALFE

53. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Place of
incorporation/ Place of

53. B AT H1B(E)

Nominal value
of issued ordinary
share/paid-up

Percentage of
nominal value of
issued share capital/
registered capital held

Name of subsidiary registration operation registered capital by the Company Principal activities
HERRIL ERTLEREE FLABFCRTRIEE
MEASEMH i TEHE BREMER #MEFzEo TEEH
2020 2019
=g=85 -TF
EMBREERRRIEERAT" (note ) PRC PRC RMB20,000,000 71.0% 71.0%  Power distribution and
EMBRERRRBERDA(ME) # (Registered capital: related service
RMB20,100,000) RS RAABRY
A K #20,000,0007C
(AMER: ARE
20,100,0007T)
Fully World Limited* Hong Kong Hong Kong HKD1 100.0% 100.0%  Oil trading
CEARRA B e BT AHES
Firmwill Investments Limited BVI BVI usb1 100.0% 100.0%  Investment holding
ERREBARAR HERAHE RBREXES (E REER
BMNEERRHEEBBDA* hoteb) PRC PRC USD990,000 100.0% 100.0%  Qil and gas trading
EMEERRHEERTRD T(Mﬁfb) FE HE 990,000% T AARKRARES
Colourful Rite Limited* BVI BVI USD10,000 100.0% 100.0%  Investment holding
VEERRT RBEAEE HEBRELES 10,0003 7T REER
Right Central Limited * Hong Kong Hong Kong HKD1 100.0% 100.0%  Inactive
REBRAR Bk BB BT RS E
White Night Global Limited * BVI BVI usb1 100.0% 100.0%  Inactive
EBEREE HEBRAHES (EH WA E
& They are subsidiaries indirectly held by the Company. * ZERRBAARHEEREGZHB AR
Notes: M 5
(a) Pursuant to a supplementary agreement entered into between (a) RIE A EEE S AR S — B50% B
the Group and the other 50% equity owner of Huaheng Energy BEAR_ZE——F+_A=-+NBHF
on 28 December 2012, the equity owner has committed to follow YRS ZEREEABCERAR
the voting direction and decision of the Group on shareholders'’ BREABGREEFESZLLERB/EAEEZ
meeting and board of directors’ meeting except for certain special RERRRORE - EH BIE N oR Dt
resolution relating to increase or reduction of registered capital, MEXR - ptENHF  BERAZETE
merger or spinoff, change of legal form, dismissal or liquidation and B MARBENRBITEZRRIRA
amendments to memorandum and articles of association of Huaheng BERRARAAZE THINARRER
Energy. Based on the legal opinion, the other equity owner has no SN RIBEEBR S UREERA
right to revoke its commitments unilaterally without the consent from ERESAEERE T & TH 8 [2]
the Group. As such, the directors of the Company are of the opinion Ho&q o Bt AR A 3 © AN
that the Group has obtained control over Huaheng Energy and has HEESEFRRIE ST
accounted for Huaheng Energy as a subsidiary of the Group. BERERAEEZHBER
(b) The subsidiaries were set up as wholly-owned foreign investment (b) ZEW BN A ThR AR E
enterprise registered in the PRC. BABERE -
(c) The subsidiaries were set up as companies with limited liability (c) ZENBRARDARPEKZZERA
established in the PRC. G
(d) None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting at 31 (d) MEMEARNBEENR_E_TF=A=
March 2020 or at any time during the year. T—HIRAFEEMERDABTRZ
EREBES -

194 Yuan Heng Gas Holdings Limited 2020 Annual Report



Financial Information of Five Years

LEMBHE

For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE_Z_ZF=A=+—HILEFE

Year ended 31 March
BEZ=A=+—-HIL¥E
RESULTS E3 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
ZEIEFE ZE-NEF ZE-N\E ZT—+tHF T F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFT AREBTRT ARBTRT ARBTE ARETR

Gross amounts from 4 B g 4 2
operations 6,447,235 8,552,947 8,149,851 7972,843 6,841,169
(Loss) profit before tax bR AT (B 18 ) & FI (32,839) 71,277 212,415 (91,328) (6,086)
Income tax expense FTRHAEX (11,584) (25,176) (38,977) (13,919) (13,935)
(Loss) profit for the year FREE) & (44,423) 46,101 173,438 (105,247) (20,021)

At 31 March
R=A=+-—H

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ZBEREE 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
—EDEE —E-hF —T-N\F —E—tHF —T—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETFT AREBETRT ARBTRT ARBTRT ARETR
Total assets BEE 4,447,620 4,601,384 3,618,201 3,008,258 3,082,805
Total liabilities BAEE (3,005,065)  (3,114,726) (2,172,316) (1,744,611)  (2,204,205)
Net assets FEE 1,442,555 1,486,658 1,445,885 1,263,647 878,600

Note: In 2019, the Group had applied HKFRS 9, HKFRS 15 and other amendments Mad: RZE—NF A5BECEAEBUBEREE

to HKFRSs. Accordingly, certain comparative information for the years ended BIZE9SE - BERMBMELERFE1SRKRE ST
31 March 2018, 2017 and 2016 may not be comparable to the years ended 31 HRELRHEMERT - Bt - BE_ZT—N\F -
March 2019 and 2020 as such comparative information was prepared under —EtERZE-AFZA=ZT-BHIEFEN
HKAS 18, HKAS 11 and HKAS 39. ATHERENRVUARBEE_"FT-NAFR_F

—EE=-A=t-RALHFELER REAZE
LBRERDREBEEBGHEAFGE FEE
FPERIEISE RE R G ERIEIRRE -

In 2020, the Group has applied HKFRS 16 and other amendments to HKFRSs. RZZ_ZF AEBECEREBUBREE
The comparative information for the years ended 31 March 2019, 2018, 2017 B 16 R B EMBRELR N EMER - &
and 2016 have not been restated on initial application of HKFRS 16. EE-NEFE —E-NF ZZT—+FK=F

—AREFEZRA=T-HLEFENEBREHT ER
BREREAEVB RS EAFEIGREFET
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